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DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATIONS

Directors recommended a payment of final cash dividend @ Rs. 3.50 per share (2019: 2.25 per share).and 10% Bonus Issue (2019: 
Nil).
The following appropriation on account of dividend was made during the year:

 

EARNING PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 for the Company are PKR 17.66 and PKR 17.31 (31 
December 2019: PKR 11.05 and PKR 10.95) per share. Similarly, the basic and diluted earnings per share for the Group are PKR 
17.78 and PKR 17.43 (31 December 2019: PKR 12.86 and PKR 12.75) per share.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP DURING 2020

Activities:

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017, and listed on the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in the business of software development, trading of software and business 
process outsourcing services. 

The Group comprises of Systems Limited (Holding Company) and its subsidiaries – TechVista Systems FZ LLC, E-Processing 
Systems (Private) Limited, SUS (Private) Limited and Systems Venture (Private) Ltd.

TechVista Systems FZ LLC (TVS), a limited liability Company incorporated in Dubai Technology and Media Free Zone Authority, is 
a 100% owned subsidiary of Systems Limited. TVS is engaged in the business of developing software and providing ancillary 
services. TVS has also invested in TechVista Systems LLC of which currently owns 49%. This company is also registered as a 
software house but does not have any independent operations and was created to support the projects of TechVista Systems FZ 
LLC. TVS has also invested in Techvista Systems Pty Ltd, a company incorporated in Australia to manage projects.

Balance as at 31 December 2019
Total comprehensive income for the year
Less: 
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 at the rate
of PKR 2.25 per share
Add:
Affect of share options 
Balance as at 31 December 2020

Un-appropriated profit (PKR)

3,390,143,582
2,193,914,942

277,920,824

1,833,713
5,307,971,413

On behalf of the Board of Directors we are pleased to present the 44th Annual Report to the 
members together with Audited Group Financial Statements and Auditors Report for the year 
ended December 31, 2020.

DIRECTOR’S
REPORT
to the shareholders
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E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited (EPS), a private limited Company registered under Companies Act 2017, is a 44.60% 
owned subsidiary of Systems Limited. EPS is currently engaged in the business of purchase and sale of teleco’s airtime and 
related services. The product of the Company is called OneLoad.

Systems Venture (Private) Limited, a private limited company registered under Companies Act 2017, is a 99.98% owned 
subsidiary of Systems Limited. Systems Ventures is established in Pakistan to invest in new ventures, start ups and incubate new 
ideas.

SUS JV (Private) Limited, a private limited company registered under the Companies Act, 2017 is a 94.99% owned subsidiary of 
Systems Limited. The Company is set up for the Balochistan Land Revenue Management Information Systems project. The 
project is related to digitization of land records and development of a web-based management information system.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group truly reflect the state of Company’s affairs and fair review of their 
business.

Performance:

Standalone:

The Company’s revenue comes primarily from Software Development, Managed Services, Consulting Services and Business 
Process Outsourcing/Contact Center. Dominant portion of the Companys  revenue ie 80% is derived from exports of services to 
various geographies such as North America, Europe and Middle East and about 20% from domestic market. The Company is well 
diverisified into various business verticals such as Telco, Retail, CPG, Pharma and the financial sector. Moreover, the service 
offerings are also well diversified in the form of Data Integrations, Modern Dev App, Cloud and Digital Services, as well as 
Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) and Omni Channel Contact Center,. 

During the year ended 31 December 2020, standalone revenues of the company grew by 40% over the corresponding period last 
year, from Rs. 5,348.6 million to Rs. 7,513.8 million.  Gross profit and operating profit increased by 58% and 88% respectively. 
Profit for the year increased by 61% from 1,364.1 million to Rs. 2,193.9 million, which translated into an 85% growth in net profit 
without accounting for exchange gain in both years. Basic and diluted earnings per share increased by 60% and 58% respectively 
as a consequence of higher operating profit and profit for the period. 

The increase in profits for the year is primarily driven by topline growth, led by the North American and Europe Segment which 
can be seen in the segment performance as well. This growth has been achieved without significant addition to headcount by 
optimization and efficient utilization of existing resource. Currency devaluation impact for the year is at Rs. 81.8 million which is 
significantly lower than last year.

Moreover, the Company was quick to adapt to the changing world post-pandemic and as a consequence was able to minimize the 
impact on the business by focusing on the CORE. Three technologies are in high demand; Digital; Data and Cloud. The Company 
got positive traction from its overseas markets in these areas and signed up new opportunities whilst developing a healthy 
pipeline for future growth.  

12



Standalone
Particulars
Revenue
Gross profit
Operating Profit
Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
Earnings per share (basic)
Earnings per share (diluted)

FY 2020         
7,513,766,845
2,797,980,818

2,044,597,986
2,267,329,045
2,193,914,942

17.66
17.31

FY 2019
       5,348,568,742

1,776,380,215
1,089,190,751

1,392,672,376 
         1,364,131,709 

11.05
10.95

Y/Y
40%
58%
88%
63%
61%
60%
58%

Other Income - Standalone
Particulars
Other Income
Exchange Gain

FY 2020         
190,803,294

81,841,960
272,645,254

FY 2019
       119,473,774

223,172,268
342,646,042

Consolidated
Particulars
Revenue
Gross profit
Operating profit
Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
Earnings per share (basic)
Earnings per share (diluted)

FY 2020                  
9,876,827,710 

         3,257,187,507 
         2,113,716,697 

         2,282,258,059 
2,164,297,683 

                         17.78 
                         17.43 

FY 2019
            7,535,648,069 

      2,369,346,463 
      1,329,745,065

      1,601,214,519 
      1,567,932,821 
                     12.86 

                          12.75 

Y/Y
31%
37%
59%
43%
38%
38%
37%

Other Income - Consolidated
Particulars
Other Income
Exchange Gain

FY 2020         
153,359,078

81,841,960
235,201,038

FY 2019
      95,319,307

223,172,268
318,491,575

Consolidated

During year ended 31 December 2020, consolidated revenue grew by 31% from Rs. 7,535.6 million to Rs. 9,876.8 million. Gross 
profit and operating profit increased by 37% and 59% respectively. Exchange gain for the year amounted to Rs. 81.8 million as 
compared to Rs. 223.1 million for last year on consolidated basis. Net profit for the period increased by 38% from 1,567.9 million to 
Rs. 2,164.3 million. Basic and diluted earnings per share increased by 38% and 37% respectively over the same period last year.

Growth in revenue is contributed by both the Company and its subsidiaries and rigorous controls on costs helped it flow through 
to the bottom line.

Performance by Segment – (Standalone)

The segment analysis shows a robust growth across all four segments, with the North American and European Regions leading. 
Export sales of the Company (excluding E-Processing Systems) are approximately 80% of total sales, in line with the Company’s 
target of  further increasing the export component in its portfolio going forward. Diversification into new regions and new markets 
will support this objective as the company is actively looking to expand in newer areas.

2019 2020 2019

1,368,160,077     7,513,766,845   5,348,568,742    
(1,139,128,148)     (4,715,786,027)  (3,572,188,527)   

229,031,929        2,797,980,818   1,776,380,215     

(81,406,735)         (118,794,068)      (99,693,155)         
(44,847,110)         (499,848,346)     (448,471,106)       

(126,253,845)       (618,642,414)      (548,164,261)       

102,778,084        2,179,338,404   1,228,215,954     

(134,740,418)      (139,025,203)       
272,645,254      342,646,042       

(49,914,195)         (39,164,417)         
87,990,641         164,456,422        

2,267,329,045  1,392,672,376     
(73,414,103)        (28,540,667)        

2,193,914,942    1,364,131,709      

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

2,956,900,042    825,305,235  475,048,351    725,170,596   548,460,272   1,595,444,642   
(1,664,852,689)   (498,779,658) (295,198,103)    (572,919,574)  (473,009,587)  (1,251,615,979)    
1,292,047,353    326,525,577   179,850,248    152,251,022    75,450,685      343,828,663      

(12,037,257)         (4,024,698)      (1,933,876)        (7,462,548)      (4,315,287)       (89,900,101)        
(301,387,312)       (66,340,926)    (48,420,151)      (59,381,802)    (53,816,533)     (49,484,834)       
(313,424,569)      (70,365,624)    (50,354,027)    (66,844,350)   (58,131,820)      (139,384,935)     

978,622,784       256,159,953   129,496,221     85,406,672     17,318,865       204,443,728      

Europe Middle East
2020

Revenue from contracts with customers 4,367,846,372  
Cost of revenue (2,392,470,816)  
Gross profit 1,975,375,556   

Selling and distribution expenses (17,406,721)        
Administrative expenses (324,640,784)    

(342,047,505)    
Profit / (loss) before taxation and
unallocated income and expenses 1,633,328,051    

Unallocated income and expenses:
Other operating expenses
Other income
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit for the year

North America Pakistan

----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, TVS registered a revenue of AED 57.8 million (2019: 62.9 million) and earning a profit of 
AED 1.9 million (2019: AED 4.8 million). Slight reduction in the revenue is the result of more offshoring in 2020 to improve margins 
for the business. However, lower profits in TVS this year are due to an overlapping period during this transition where there was 
a bench of onsite resources. The offshoring has resulted in a higher contribution from the subsidiary to the company’s standalone 
revenue and profits. 

The subsidiary EP Systems, being a retail centric business, despite the pandemic situation, has shown growth over the past year 
and has increased its sales volume, GP margin as compared with last year. OneLoad business picked momentum this year with 
total throughput of Rs 12.5 billion in transaction value for the year. The Company has achieved revenue growth of 13% from PKR 
316.1 million in 2019 to PKR 357.5 million in 2020.  This revenue growth and optimization of commissions and other costs has 
enabled the Company to achieve a Gross Profit in 2020 of PKR 139.9 million which is 50% higher as compared to PKR 93.2 million 
in 2019. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS OF PROFIT

2021 Plans

The Company has seen a robust demand in the digital space globally which is aligned with the company’s strategy which includes 
Digital and Business transformation (largely Digital Commerce, Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM)) along with strategic alignment on Cloud and Data. The Company is actively pursuing these areas and working 
to develop its core competence in these segments so as to meet global demand and growth opportunities in these sectors. It is 
widely belived amongst the digital ecosystem that capturing tomorrow's market will require organizations to define it. The era of 
the fast follower is effectively now over! 

Since the company is well diverisifed in terms of service offerings and locations, the company is seeing growth in all the three 
international regions where it is present and similar trends are visible in the domestic market. In the post-covid world, with the 
acceptability of remote working, offshoring has become more acceptable and the customers are now open to consider Pakistan 
as an outsourcing destination. This has increased an overall demand in the IT industry and IT exports from Pakistan have grown by 
over 30% in last 7 months. The company’s growth is aligned with the industry growth and international demand for IT Services.

Additionally, the company is well aligned with the Telco sector in the domestic market. Revenue per user (RPU) has been 
challenged in the Telco space because of high competition so customers in this sector are looking for touch free operations and 
hyper automation as they look to optimize and reduce their Opex. In response, the company is addressing this challenge through 
offshoring and managed services contracts. With the 5G rollout, there are a lot of new business cases coming up and latency and 
speed will no longer be a challenge after 5G. The company is expanding its team for the research of 5G and in the IOT space so the 
company can take advantage of this technology advancement.

During covid, the transformation and transition from onsite business concentration to offshore resources for the Middle East 
Region is a strategic move for the company and creates stickiness with the customer, gives scale and results in robust cashflows 
for the company as well as higher profitability for the group. TVS is expected to show sustainable growth with better margins. 
Moreover, TVS is entering into alliances with digital transformation consulting firms as they also need scale in the backend 
execution space and TVS is poised to take advantage as the company has an offshore back office and onsite resources. 

Qatar market was lagging for 2 to 3 years due to the embargos and travel restrictions between UAE and Qatar which restricted 
business opportunities. Following the lifting of embargoes and restrictions, the company sees possibilities of growth in that 
market as well. 

In the North American market, the company’s investment in business solutions and products has resulted in increased footprint in 
the form of new logos. With the company’s service offerings for defined industry verticals, the company sees lifetime value from 
the customers and the new customer acquisitions are expected to result in growth and expansion in this region. The company is 
continuously investing to find growth avenues by investing in R&D and setting up of research labs to work on new use 
cases/technologies.
 
In the European market, the company’s investment is paying off, with the company expanding its customer base. As there is a 
scarcity of skilled resources in this market , the company has possibilities of offering offshore work.

The company is also looking to invest in mature start-ups and new ideas through its subsidiary Systems Ventures. This will give 
additional inorganic revenue growth in the relevant business verticals and relevant technology areas. Focus is on organisations 
with a unique skillset or a specialized product or service offering.

On the Call center/BPO front, the company is positive and optimistic that export BPO revenue will increase as the economy is in 
the recovery phase. The company is focusing on growing the omni channel contact center business with investments  to acquire 
business in this space.
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During the year, the International Finance Corporation (IFC), a member of the World Bank Group, has acquired a 20 percent equity 
stake in EP Systems. This infusion of funds and expertise will prove to be beneficial for EP Systems and Pakistan’s Fintech market 
as a whole. EP Systems is striving  to enable retailers, particularly small retailers, to effectively serve mass market, low income 
consumers and satisfy their demand for a number of services. 

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE COMPANY

RISK FACTORS

Following are some of the risk factors that may impact our business and financial results:

CHANGES DURING FINANCIAL YEAR CONCERNING THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY OR OF ITS 
SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT OPERATION

There has been no change in the nature of business of the company or its subsidiaries. For the subsidiary EP System, the Company 
has received an investment from IFC to secure 20% stake in the business. 

MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS LIKELY TO AFFECT THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY BUSINESS

Technology is rapidly changing and demands are on the higher side for the disruptive technologies. In order to grow at a faster 
pace, the Company has to scale up and nurture talent. Scaling into relevant technologies will have a significant impact on future 
performance and position of the Company’s business. 

IMPACT OF COMPANY BUSINESS ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Since the Company is in the software business, the Company does not have any adverse impact on the environment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company acknowledges its responsibility towards society and performs its duty by providing financial assistance to projects 
for society development by various charitable institutions on consistent basis.   

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The management of Systems Limited as a Group is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the Company’s and the 
Group’s system of internal control in order to identify and manage risks faced by the Group. The system provides reasonable, 
though not absolute, assurance that:

Economic Depression - Globally, North American and European countries can go through real depression and slow recovery. If 
Companies file for bankruptcy and seek Government support, recoveribility of current receivables can be a challenge.

Income Inequality - Risk of severe income inequality in Pakistan which can cause social unrest and will affect interest of foreign 
customers and investors

Risk of Travel advisory - Investors and buyers will not be able to travel to the country in case of any travel advisory. Since the 
Company is in services business and though a lot of work is happening offshore, however travel restrictions will impact 
business since resources will not be able to visit foreign clients.

Pricing Pressures – In case of demand compression, there will be a large supply of talent pool but less demand. This will result 
in a  price war and that, potentially effects profit margins

Currency risk – Currency is expecting to be stable this year and the company doesn’t see a high currency risk in this region

Country risk – The Company is well poised for digital Pakistan but with recent forecast, the country is going into a negative GDP 
situation, there will be unemployment, and less demand in public sector spending. 

Other income – Other income is tied with interest rates. If interest rates fall further or in case of significant dollar devaluation, it 
will adversely impact Company’s returns on investments. 

•

•

•

Assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition;

Proper and reliable accounting records are available for use within the business;

Adequate control mechanisms have been established within the operational businesses, and

Internal financial controls deployed within the Company have been satisfactory throughout the year.

•
•
•
•

•

•
•

•



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, the directors are pleased to confirm that:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board comprises of seven (7) directors with one (1) female director. During the year, five (5) board meetings were held.
 
The names of directors and number of meetings attended by each director is as follows:

For TechVista Systems FZ LLC, Mr. Asif Peer is the Managing director of the company.
For E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited, the directors of the company are – Mr. Aezaz Hussain, Chairman, Mr. Asif Peer and Mr. 
Muhammad Yar Hiraj.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee and Human Resource & Compensation Committee. 

The names of members of Board Committees and number of meetings attended by each member is as follows:

Audit Committee:

Human Resource & Compensation Committee:

Name of Director
Mr. Aezaz Hussain
Mr. Asif Peer
Mr. Arshad Masood
Ms. Romana Abdullah
Mr. Ayaz Dawood
Mr. Asif Jooma
Mr. Tahir Masaud
Mr. Syed Mohammad Shabbar Zaidi
Mr. Omar Saeed

Category
Non Executive
Executive
Non Executive
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent

Meetings Attended
5
5
3
3
4
4
4
1
1

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company and the Group, present its state of affairs fairly, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity

Proper books of accounts of the Company and each of its subsidiaries have been maintained

Appropriately accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial 
statements and there have been no departures therefrom

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored

There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability along with the subsidiaries to continue as a going concern

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in listing regulations

•

•
•

•

•
•
•

Board of Directors

Name of Member
Mr. Ayaz Dawood
Ms. Romana Abdullah
Mr. Tahir Masaud

Meetings Attended
5
4
5

Existing Committee

Name of Member
Mr. Asif Jooma
Mr. Tahir Masaud
Ms. Romana Abdullah

Meetings Attended
1
1
1

Existing Committee
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CHANGES TO THE BOARD

The current terms of the directors was completed on December 1, 2020 and fresh elections were conducted for the appointment 
of directors through extra ordinary general meeting held on 3rd December 2020. The Board would like to record its appreciation 
for the invaluable contributions rendered by the outgoing directors Mr. Ayaz Dawood and Mr. Tahir Masaud.

The Board also extends warm welcome to Mr. Syed Mohammad Shabbar Zaidi and Mr. Omar Saaed as new fellow members. The 
Board is confident that the team would operate cohesively for the benefit of the Company and that the new members shall lend a 
fresh perspective and spirit towards the progress of the Company.

The term of the new board will stand completed on 3rd December 2023.

COMPOSITION OF THE NEW BOARD & COMMITTEES AFTER ELECTIONS

FORMAL ORIENTATION AT INDUCTION

Detailed orientation is conducted upon induction of each new Board member, apprising them on business operations, environment 
and long term strategy of the Company. Extensive training programs are offered to the directors for enhancement of managerial 
and governance skills.

POLICY ON NON EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

All non-executive and independent directors of the Company are entitled to remuneration for attending Board and Committee 
meetings along with reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with these meetings.

A director may be paid such extra remuneration as the Board may determine, for serving on any Committee or devoting special 
attention to the business of the Company or performance of services which, in the opinion of the Board, are outside the scope of 
statutory duties of a director.

Detail of the remuneration paid to executive and non-executive directors during the year is given in Note 34 of the attached 
financial statements.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed with the Annual Report.

INVESTMENTS OF PROVIDENT FUND

The value of provident fund operated by the Company, based on the un-audited accounts of the fund as on 31 December 2020 
amounts to PKR 693.6 million (31 December 2019: PKR 446.8 million)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Pattern of Shareholding as at 31 December 2020 is annexed with the annual report. The shareholding pattern of TechVista 
Systems FZ LLC and E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited as at 31 December 2020 is enclosed.

TRADING BY DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVES AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN

The Company’s Directors, executives and their spouses and minor children did not trade in the Company’s shares during the year 
ended 31 December 2020 other than those disclosed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

REVIEW OF RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance and applicable laws and regulations, details of all related party transactions 
are placed before the Audit Committee and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the same are placed before the Board 
for review and approval.

Name of Director
Mr. Aezaz Hussain
Mr. Asif Peer
Mr. Arshad Masood
Ms. Romana Abdullah
Mr. Asif Jooma
Mr. Syed Mohammad Shabbar Zaidi
Mr. Omar Saeed

Category
Non Executive
Executive
Non Executive
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent

Status
Re-elected
Re-elected
Re-elected
Re-elected
Re-elected
Newly elected
Newly elected

Audit Committee
X
X
X

X

Board of Directors Human Resource &
Compensation Committee
X
X

X



QUARTERLY AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the Board. Quarterly financial statements of the 
Company, along with consolidated financial statements of the Group, were approved, published and circulated to shareholders 
within one month of the closing date, while Half yearly financial statements of the Company and consolidated financial 
statements of the Group were reviewed by the external auditors, approved by the Board, published and circulated to shareholders 
within two months of the closing date.

AUDITORS

EY Ford Rhodes has completed its tenure for the year 2020 and retire at the conclusion of the 44th Annual General Meeting. Being 
eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its subsidiary companies E-Processing Systems (Private) 
Limited and TechVista Systems FZ-LLC are also included.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company and the Group have occurred between the 
end of the financial year and the date of this report except as disclosed in this report, if any.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Board takes this opportunity to thank the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ valued customers, bankers and other stakeholders 
for their cooperation and support. The Board greatly appreciates hard work and dedication of the management and all employees 
of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Asif Peer
Chief Executive Officer

Aezaz Hussain
Chairman

Date: 3rd March 2021
Lahore
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Information of shareholding as at 31 December 2020 as required under Code of Corporate Governance is as follows

Category Shareholder's category Number of shares held Percentage %
1 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - 

IGI INVESTMENT ( PVT ) LTD 4,611,086                                3.70%
M/S B.R.R. GUARDIAN MODARBA 2,313,934                               1.86%

6,925,020                               5.56%
2 Mutual Funds

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 2,510,600                                2.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP STOCK FUND 1,636,210                                1.31%
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND 800,000                                  0.64%
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND 745,890                                  0.60%
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 729,600                                  0.59%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 554,650                                  0.45%

1                                305,001                   310,000                  306,871                         
1                                320,001                   325,000                 324,663                        
1                                325,001                   330,000                 325,750                        
1                                330,001                   335,000                 332,800                        
1                                340,001                   345,000                 342,630                        
2                                345,001                   350,000                 697,569                        
1                                380,001                   385,000                 381,550                         
1                                390,001                   395,000                 394,035                        
1                                395,001                   400,000                 398,599                        
1                                415,001                    420,000                 419,300                         
1                                465,001                   470,000                 465,800                        
2                                550,001                   555,000                 1,109,050                      
1                                590,001                   595,000                 591,600                         
1                                620,001                   625,000                 623,900                        
1                                655,001                   660,000                 657,756                        
1                                670,001                   675,000                 673,332                        
1                                725,001                   730,000                 729,600                        
1                                745,001                   750,000                 745,890                        
1                                785,001                   790,000                 789,306                        
1                                795,001                   800,000                 800,000                        
1                                805,001                   810,000                  807,997                        
1                                1,050,001                 1,055,000               1,051,789                      
1                                1,070,001                 1,075,000               1,070,260                     
1                                1,075,001                 1,080,000               1,079,300                     
1                                1,115,001                  1,120,000                1,117,238                       
1                                1,255,001                 1,260,000               1,258,800                     
2                                1,260,001                 1,265,000               2,524,505                    
1                                1,330,001                 1,335,000               1,332,201                      
1                                1,505,001                 1,510,000                1,510,000                      
1                                1,635,001                 1,640,000               1,636,210                      
1                                1,700,001                 1,705,000               1,703,275                     
1                                1,720,001                 1,725,000               1,722,200                     
1                                1,725,001                 1,730,000               1,726,136                      
1                                1,730,001                 1,735,000               1,731,594                      
1                                1,940,001                1,945,000               1,940,295                     
1                                2,485,001                2,490,000              2488438
1                                2,510,001                 2,515,000               2510600
1                                3,455,001                3,460,000              3458934
1                                3,495,001                3,500,000              3499900
1                                4,110,001                 4,115,000               4114880
1                                4,605,001                4,610,000               4606836
1                                5,495,001                5,500,000              5500000
1                                6,100,001                 6,105,000               6100160
1                                7,435,001                7,440,000              7439900
1                                7,535,001                7,540,000              7537100
1                                7,810,001                 7,815,000               7812190
1                                7,895,001                7,900,000              7898267
1                                15,175,001               15,180,000             15178781

2,646                      114,021,692            114,466,600          124,606,015                

                                                                                                                 

 Number of 
Shareholders From To

Shareholding Total Shares held
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TRUSTEE-ANPL MANAGEMENT STAFF GRATUITY FUND 1,650                                         0.00%
THAL LIMITED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT FUND 1,150                                         0.00%
BAWA SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. - MF 800                                           0.00%
NOVO NORDISK PHARMA (PVT.) LTD. STAFF PROV. FUND 800                                           0.00%
TRUSTEES UBL FUND MANAGERS LTD. EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 650                                           0.00%
GATRON (INDUSTRIES) LIMITED STAFF PROVIDENT FUND 550                                           0.00%
ADAM SECURITIES LTD. - MF 500                                           0.00%
TRUSTEES UBL FUND MANAGERS LTD. EMPLOYEE PROVIDENT FUND 400                                           0.00%
BVA (PRIVATE) LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 250                                           0.00%

11,802,760                            9.47%

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 62,750                                     0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 61,750                                      0.05%
CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 60,700                                     0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE APF-EQUITY SUB FUND 59,700                                     0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND 59,650                                     0.05%
CDC-TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 49,500                                     0.04%
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND 36,500                                     0.03%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 34,240                                     0.03%
WELLCOME PAKISTAN LIMITED PROVIDENT FUND 31,650                                      0.03%
CDC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 26,100                                      0.02%
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 25,900                                     0.02%
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 25,800                                     0.02%
TRUSTEE-THE KOT ADDU POWER CO. LTD. EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 20,000                                     0.02%
TRUSTEES OF PAKISTAN MOBILE COMMUNICATION LTD-PROVIDENT FUND 18,250                                      0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 17,550                                      0.01%
EFG HERMES PAKISTAN LIMITED - MF 12,500                                      0.01%
PAKISTAN HUMAN DEVELOPMENT FUND 12,310                                       0.01%
ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED NON-MPT EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 10,050                                      0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND 8,600                                        0.01%
BYCO PETROLEUM PAKISTAN LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 8,510                                         0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 7,965                                        0.01%
THAL LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 7,100                                         0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE AGIPF EQUITY SUB-FUND 6,900                                        0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND - II 5,900                                        0.00%
CDC-TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 5,800                                        0.00%
TRUSTEE-THE KOT ADDU POWER CO. LTD. EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 5,500                                        0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 5,100                                         0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE AGPF EQUITY SUB-FUND 4,670                                        0.00%
BIPL SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 4,500                                        0.00%
N. U. A. SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 2,900                                        0.00%
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB PAK (PVT) LTD EMP PROV FUND 2,350                                        0.00%
THAL LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 2,320                                        0.00%
THE CRESCENT TEXTILE MILLS LTD EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 2,100                                         0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 2,050                                        0.00%
ARIF HABIB LIMITED - MF 2,000                                        0.00%
TRUSTEE-ANPL MANAGEMENT STAFF PROVIDENT FUND 1,700                                         0.00%

CDC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND 554,400                                  0.44%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 465,800                                  0.37%
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN TAHAFFUZ PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 381,550                                   0.31%
CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 325,750                                  0.26%
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 289,150                                   0.23%
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 252,300                                  0.20%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 218,470                                   0.18%
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 207,600                                  0.17%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND 168,520                                   0.14%
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 154,650                                   0.12%
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 147,500                                   0.12%
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND EQUITY ACCOUNT 127,850                                   0.10%
CDC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND 114,550                                    0.09%
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 113,500                                    0.09%
AZIMUT PAKISTAN EQUITY FUND (OEIC) PLC 107,000                                   0.09%
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL STOCK FUND 103,655                                   0.08%
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN  ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 91,600                                      0.07%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP BALANCED FUND 75,550                                     0.06%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND 73,900                                     0.06%
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 68,400                                     0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND 66,500                                     0.05%

Category Shareholder's category Number of shares held Percentage %
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3 Directors and their spouses and children

Arshad Masood 17,667,219                              14.18%
Aezaz Hussain 7,864,440                              6.31%
Aezaz Hussain IRRV Grantor TR 7,898,267                               6.34%
Asif Peer 8,040,455                              6.45%
Neelam Hussain 104,621                                    0.08%                                  
Romana Abdullah 550                                           0.00%
Asif Jooma 603                                           0.00%
Ayaz Dawood 32,500                                     0.03%
Syed Muhammad Shabbar Zaidi 553                                           0.00%
Omar Saeed 1,000                                         0.00%
Tahir Masaud 110                                             0.00%

41,610,318                             33.39%

4 21,349,667 17.13%

1,172,024 0.94%5

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 787,498                                  0.63%6

                                 6,161,200 4.94%Banks DFIs and NBFIs, Insurance Companies, Modarabas and Pension Funds 

CONSILIUM EXTENDED OPPORTUNITIES FUND LP                                 1,262,360 1.01%
EAST CAPITAL                                 1,258,800 1.01%
EFG HERMES OMAN LLC                                 1,079,300 0.87%
JOM SILKKITIE ASIA EQUITY INVESTMENT FUND                                    623,900 0.50%
PEDDER STREET ASIA ABSOLUTE RETURN MASTER FUND LIMITED                                     591,600 0.47%
T. ROWE PRICE FUNDS SICAV - FRONTIER MKTS EQ F[000912600018]                                     419,300 0.34%
AL MEHWAR COMMERCIAL INVESTMENTS LLC 0.28%
COELI SICAV I - FRONTIER MARKETS FUND 0.27%
MCKINLEY CAPITAL MEASA FUND OEIC LIMITED 0.27%
RWC FRONTIER MARKETS EQUITY MASTER FUND LIMITED 0.18%
ARISTEA SICAV NEW FRONTIERS EQUITY FUND 0.15%
SILK INVEST NEW HORIZONS FRONTIER FUND 0.11%
ACADIAN FRONTIER MARKETS EQUITY FUND 0.07%
SILK-AFRICAN AND FRONTIER MARKETS FUND 0.06%
THE FAR EAST VALUE MASTER FUND LIMITED 0.06%
KYKLOS CAPITAL PARTNERS LP 0.02%
RWC FUNDS-RWC NEXT GENERATION EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY 

                             23,964,140 19.23%

9 Others/Public                               10,833,388 8.69%

                          124,606,015 100.00%

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights
Arshad Masood 17,667,219                              14.18%
Aezaz Hussain 7,864,440                              6.31%
Aezaz Hussain IRRV Grantor TR 7,898,267                               6.34%
Asif Peer 8,040,455                              6.45%
Tundra Sustainable Frontier Fund 7,537,100                                6.05%
Salma Humayun Mian 7,453,300                               5.98%

38,793,562                            31.13%

7

8 Foreign Companies
TUNDRA SUSTAINABLE FRONTIER FUND                                 7,537,100 6.05%
GREYHOUND ASIA FUND LIMITED                                  4,114,880 3.30%
EVLI EMERGING FRONTIER FUND                                3,499,900 2.81%
DUET EM FRONTIER FUND LIMITED                                 1,722,200 1.38%

0.01%FUND

                                   349,670 
                                   342,630 
                                   332,800 
                                     218,100 
                                    189,700 
                                    137,200 
                                       90,100 
                                      77,000 
                                      74,000 
                                      28,000 
                                       15,600 

Ex-Employees

Executives
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E-Processing Systems (Pvt.) Limited
Information of shareholding as at 31 December 2020 as required under Code of Corporate Governance is as follows

Category Shareholder's category Number of shares held Percentage %
1 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - 

M/S Systems Limited 179,507 44.60%
179,507                                  44.60%

2 Mutual Funds -                                            -                            

3 Directors and their spouses and children
Aezaz Hussain 1                                                  0.00%
Asif Peer 13,948                                      3.47%
Muhammad Yar Hiraj 100,612                                    25.00%
Neelam Hussain 13,947                                      3.47%

128,508                                  31.93%

4 Executives -                                            -                            

5 Foreign Investment (IFC) 80,491                                      20.00%

6

7 Others                                        13,947 3.47%

                                  402,453 100%

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights

Muhammad Yar Hiraj 100,612                                    25.00%
Systems Limited 179,507                                   44.60%
International Finance Corporation 80,491                                      20.00%

360,610                                   89.60%

Banks DFIs and NBFIs, Insurance Companies, Modarabas and Pension 
Funds

                                                 -                                    -   
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING - GROUP COMPANIES
The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:  

-                                       -                                     
50 100%

-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     

50 100%

-                                       -                                     
9,998                                  99.98%

-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
2                                           0.02%

10,000                               100%

-                                       -                                     
9,499                                  94.99%

-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
-                                       -                                     
501                                       5.01%

10,000                               100%

 Number ofshares held 
Percentage of 

holding

 Number ofshares held 
Percentage of 

holding

 Number ofshares held 
Percentage of 

holding

TechVista Systems FZ-LLC
The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Directors and their spouses and minor childeren -                                          
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 1                                               
Banks, DFIs and NBFIs -                                          
Insurance Companies -                                          
Modarbas and Mutual Funds -                                          
General Public -                                          
Joint Stock Companies -                                          
Others -                                          

1

Sytems Ventures (Pvt) Limited
The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Directors and their spouses and minor childeren -                                          
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Banks, DFIs and NBFIs -                                          
Insurance Companies -                                          
Modarbas and Mutual Funds -                                          
General Public -                                          
Joint Stock Companies -                                          
Others 2                                               

2                                              

SUS (Pvt) Limited
The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Directors and their spouses and minor childeren -                                          
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 1                                               
Banks, DFIs and NBFIs -                                          
Insurance Companies -                                          
Modarbas and Mutual Funds -                                          
General Public -                                          
Joint Stock Companies -                                          
Others 1                                               

2                                              

Number of 
Shareholders

Number of 
Shareholders

Number of 
Shareholders
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given to all the members of Systems Limited (the “Company”) that 44th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company is scheduled to be held on 31 March 2021 at 11:00 A.M. through video-link (provided below) to 
transact the business mentioned hereinafter. 

Please note that due to the surge in Covid-19 cases and in order to control the spread of the virus, the Company 
shall hold its meeting only through video-link by registrations on the details provided at the end of this Notice.  

Please note that registration for the meeting shall close at 10.50am on 31 March 2021 after which participants / 
shareholders shall be unable to register for the meeting. Any and all participants / shareholders who would have 
registered within the prescribed timeline shall receive a meeting link and shall be able to access the meeting 
therefore, the Company emphasizes on timely registrations in a manner provided below. 
 

Ordinary Business: 

1.  To confirm the minutes of the last Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 03 December 2020 (provided in 

the Annual Report). 

2. To, receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 

2020 together with the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ report thereon. 

3. To approve and declare cash dividend @ 35 % i.e. PKR 3.5/ per share, for the year ended 31 December 

2020 and issuance of bonus shares at 10% i.e. 1 share for every 10 shares, as recommended by the Board 

of Directors. 

4. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2021. The Board of 

Directors upon recommendation of audit committee has recommended M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered 

Accountants, being eligible for re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending 31 

December 2021. 

Special Business 

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modification, the following special resolution in terms 
of Section 199 of Companies Act, 2017, for renewal of (a) investment in the form of loan to SUS Joint 
Venture (Private) Limited, a subsidiary company of the Company, of Rs. 50 million; (b) investment in the 
form of loan and guarantee in UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited, an associated company of the 
Company, of Rs. 200 million; and (c) investment in the form of loan in E-Processing Systems (Private) 
Limited, a subsidiary company of the Company, of Rs. 340 million;  
 
“Resolved that the Company shall renew investment in the above mentioned companies in the given 
amounts on the terms and conditions to be contained in the agreement to be executed between the 
Company and the subsidiary in terms of Section 199 of Companies Act, 2017.   

 
“Resolved further that Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer, the Chief Executive of the Company (the “Authorized 
Officer”) and / or Ms. Roohi Khan, Chief Financial Officer, be and is hereby empowered and authorized to 
undertake, execute and implement all the decisions in respect of the Investment and to take and do and/or 
cause to be taken or done any/all necessary acts, deeds and things, and to take any or all necessary 
actions which are or may be necessary, incidental and/or consequential to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution, including signing and execution of documents and agreements and to complete all necessary 
legal formalities and to file all necessary documents as may be necessary or incidental for the purposes 
of implementing the aforesaid resolution”. 
 

6. To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modification, the following special resolution in 
accordance with Section 83 (1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017 for issuance of shares other than right to an 
individual as required by SECP, in line with the shareholders’ approval already obtained in the Annual 
General Meeting dated 26 April 2019 to issue shares other than rights to employees of Visionet Systems. 
 
“Resolved that the issuance of 400,000 shares through other than rights issue for cash consideration to 
Mr. Jawad Khan at the price already approved by shareholders, as token of appreciation for his dedicated 
contributions towards North American and European offshore businesses, be and is hereby approved.” 
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“Resolved further that Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer, the Chief Executive of the Company (the “Authorized 
Officer”) or such other person delegated by him and / or Ms. Roohi Khan, Chief Financial Officer, be and is 
hereby empowered and authorized to undertake, execute and implement all the decisions in respect of the 
said issuance and to take and do and/or cause to be taken or done any/all necessary acts, deeds and 
things, and to take any or all necessary actions which are or may be necessary, incidental and/or 
consequential to give effect to the aforesaid resolution, including signing and execution of documents and 
agreements and to complete all necessary legal formalities and to file all necessary documents as may be 
necessary or incidental for the purposes of implementing the aforesaid resolution.” 

 
7. To approve material changes to the Company’s Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2009, which inter alia 

include the following: 
 

a. To amend clause 3.2. to remove the names of the members and to include the phrase “members 
of the Human Resource and Compensation Committee of the Company”; 
 

b. To delete the definition of “Lock-in Period” and insert a Special Lock-in Period for the CEO/ Senior 
Executives of the Company for sale of shares. 

 
c. To insert definition of “vesting period” which shall mean a period of two (2) years from the Date 

of Grant  
 

d. To amend and approve minor linguistic changes in clauses 3.7, 6.1, 7.1 and 12.2. 
 

e. To amend clause 11.7 to state: “In case of a rights or bonus issue by the Company, the 
Compensation Committee shall make fair/reasonable adjustments to the number of Options 
granted or to the Exercise Price in respect thereof for unvested Options.” 

 
“Resolved that the changes to the Company’s Employee Stock Option Scheme be and is hereby 
approved.” 
 
“Resolved further that Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer, the Chief Executive of the Company (the “Authorized 
Officer”) or such other person delegated by him and / or Ms. Roohi Khan, Chief Financial Officer, be and is 
hereby empowered and authorized to undertake, execute and implement all the decisions in respect of the 
said issuance and to take and do and/or cause to be taken or done any/all necessary acts, deeds and 
things, and to take any or all necessary actions which are or may be necessary, incidental and/or 
consequential to give effect to the aforesaid resolution, including signing and execution of documents and 
agreements and to complete all necessary legal formalities and to file all necessary documents as may be 
necessary or incidental for the purposes of implementing the aforesaid resolution.” 

 
Other Business:  

8. Any other Business with the permission of the Chair.  

By Order of the Board 

  

Saad Hasan Aslam       10 March, 2021  
Company Secretary       Lahore 
 

NOTES: 
 

1. The Share Transfer books of the Company will be closed from 25 March 2021 to 31 March 2021 (both 
days inclusive). Transfer received at the address of M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami 
Commercial Street 2,D.H.A., Phase VII, Karachi-75500. Pakistan at the close of business on 24 March 2021 
will be treated in time for the purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.  
 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to 
attend and vote in his/her place. Proxies completed in all respect, in order to be effective, must be received 
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time of meeting.  
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3. Pursuant to the directive of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, CNIC numbers of 
shareholders are mandatorily required to be mentioned on Dividend Warrants. Shareholders are, 
therefore, requested to submit a copy of their CNIC (if not already provided) to the Company Share 
Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2,D.H.A., Phase VII, 
Karachi-75500. Pakistan. 

 
4. The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of 

the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding Tax 
on the amount of dividend paid by the companies/banks. These tax rates are as follows:  

(a) For filers of income tax returns 15% 
(b) For non-filers of income tax returns 30% 

 
To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30% all 
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax- payers list (ATL) provided on the website 
of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into 
ATL before the date of payment of the cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be 
deducted @30% instead of 15%.  
 
The joint shareholders are requested to provide shareholding proportions of principal shareholders & 
joint shareholders as withholding tax will be determined separately on Filer/Non-filer status based on 
their shareholding proportions otherwise it will be assumed that shares are equally held.  

 
 
The Corporate shareholders having CDC account are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) 
updated with their respective participants, whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of their 
NTN Certificate to the Company or Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited. The 
shareholders while sending NTN or NTN Certificate, as the case may be, must quote Company name and 
their respective folio numbers. 

 
5. SECP through its notification SRO 787(1) /2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the circulations of 

Audited Financial Statement along with Notice of Annual General Meeting to the Members through e-mail. 
Therefore, all members of the Company who wish to receive soft copy of Annual Report are requested to 
send their e-mail addresses. The consent form for electronic transmission could be downloaded from the 
Company Website: www.systemsltd.com. Audited financial statements & reports are being placed on the 
aforesaid website. 

 
6. All the account holders whose registration details are uploaded as per CDC Regulations shall authenticate 

their identity by showing original CNIC at the time of attending the meeting. In case of corporate entity, a 
certified copy of resolution of the Board of Directors / valid Power of Attorney having the name and 
specimen signature of the nominee should be produced at the time of meeting.  
 

7. In order to make process of payment of cash dividend more efficient, e-dividend mechanism has been 
envisaged where shareholders can get amount of dividend credited into their respective bank accounts 
electronically without any delay. In this way, dividends may be instantly credited to respective bank 
accounts and there are no chances of dividend warrants getting lost in the post, undelivered or delivered 
to the wrong address, etc. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through Notice 
No. 8(4) SM/CDC 2008 dated 5 April 2013 has advised all Listed Companies to adopt e-dividend 
mechanism due to the benefits it entails for shareholders. In view of the above, you are hereby 
encouraged to provide a dividend mandate in favour of e-dividend by providing dividend mandate form 
duly filled in and signed. 
 

8. In order to facilitate voting and passing of resolution during the online webinar (accessible through the 
link provided below), the participants shall be given the option to “raise hand” in the webinar – which 
shall be considered the participant’s approval of the resolution. Once the resolution is passed, participants 
shall be required to “lower hand” in order for the next resolution to be processed. The same process shall 
be repeated for each resolution.  

 
Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 

This statement set out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the annual general 
meeting of the Company to be held on 31 March 2021. 
 
Agenda Item No. 5 
 
Nature of information required to be disclosed pursuant to The Companies (Investment in Associated Companies 
or Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, for renewal of investment in: 
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(a) Disclosures for all types of investments:- 
(A)  Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: - 
i name of the associated company SUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited  
ii  basis of relationship 94.99 % shareholding / Common directorship  

iii  
earnings per share for the last three years 
 

N/A  

iv  
break-up value per share, based on latest audited 
financial statements;  

Rs.50.58  

V 
financial position, including main items of statement 
of financial position and profit and loss account on 
the basis of its latest financial statements; and  

Statement of Financial Position – 31 December 2020 
Non-current assets - 
Current assets 28,649,008 
Shareholders’ equity 505,763 
Non-current liabilities - 
Current liabilities  28,143,245 
Profit & Loss A/C – 31 December 2020 
Revenue 30,849,865 
Cost of revenue 41,378,175 
Gross profit (10,528,310) 
Loss for the year (17,982,598) 

 

vi  

in case of investment in relation to a project of 
associated company or associated undertaking that 
has not commenced operations, following further 
information, namely, -  
 

N/A  

(I)  
description of the project and its history since 
conceptualization;  

(II)  
starting date and expected date of completion 
of work;  

(III
) 

time by which such project shall become 
commercially operational; 

(IV
) 

expected time by which the project shall start 
paying return on investment; and  

 (V)  
funds invested or to be invested by the 
promoters, sponsors, associated company or 
associated undertaking distinguishing 
between cash and non-cash amounts; 

(B) General Disclosures 
(i)  maximum amount of investment to be made;  Investment in the form of loan of Rs. 50 million  

(ii)  
purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the investing 
company and its members from such investment and 
period of investment;  

Purpose: To meet working capital requirements of SUS Joint 
Venture (Private) Limited.  
 
Benefit: The completion of project will results in distribution 
of profits by SUS Joint Venture (Pvt.) Limited to Systems 
Limited.  
 
Period of Investment: The period of i nvestment shall be one 
(1) year.  

(iii)  

sources of funds to be utilized for investment and 
where the investment is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds, -  

Loan shall be granted by Systems Limited. 

(I)  
justification for investment through 
borrowings; 

SUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited is only a special purpose 
vehicle for executing LRMIS  project awarded to SUS Joint 
Venture (Private) Limited  

(II)  
detail of collateral, guarantees provided and 
assets pledged for obtaining such funds; and 

N/A  

(III
) 

cost benefit analysis; N/A  

 

Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  

 
 SUS Joint Venture (Pvt.) Limited : 
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(iv)  
salient features of the agreement(s), if any, with 
associated company or associated undertaking with 
regards to the proposed investment;  

None. Agreement shall be executed in line with section 199 of 
Companies Act, 2017 and  resolution of shareholders to be 
passed in annual general meeting.  

(v)  

direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, 
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in 
the associated company or associated undertaking or 
the transaction under consideration;  

Mr. Asif Peer, CEO of Systems Limited is also member and 
director in SUS Joint Venture (Pvt.) Limited.  

(vi)  

in case any investment in associated company or 
associated undertaking has already been made, the 
performance review of such investment including 
complete information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and  

There is no impairment or write -off. 

(vii)  
any other important details necessary for the 
members to understand the transaction;  

N/A  

In case of investments in the form of loans, advances and guarantees, following disclosures in addition to those provided und er 
clause (a) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 3 shall be made, - 
(i)  category-wise amount of investment; N/A  

(ii)  

average borrowing cost of the investing company, 
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the 
relevant period, rate of return for Shariah compliant 
products and rate of return for unfunded facilities, as 
the case may be, for the relevant period 

ERF loan: Average borrowing cost of investing company is 
SBP rate plus 0.78%. 

(iii)  
rate of interest, mark-up, profit, fees or commission 
etc to be charged by investing company  

Higher of KIBOR or borrowing cost of investing company in 
line with section 199 of C ompanies A ct 2017. 

(iv)  
particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in 
relation to the proposed investment; 

N/A  

 

Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  

(v)  

If the investment carries conversion feature i.e. it is 
convertible into securities, this fact along with terms 
and condition s including conversion formula, 
circumstances in which the conversion may take 
place and the time when the conversion may be 
exercisable; and 

N/A  

(vi)  
repayment schedule and terms and conditions  of 
loans or advances to be given to the associated 
company or associated undertaking;  

Principal: One (1) year from disbursement.  
Mark-up: Quarterly basis.  

 
UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited:

(b) Disclosures for all types of investments:- 
(B) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: - 
i name of the associated company UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited  
ii  basis of relationship 49.99 % shareholding / Common directorship 

iii  
earnings per share for the last three years 
 

N/A  

iv  
break-up value per share, based on latest audited 
financial statements;  

Rs. (39,768)  

V 
financial position, including main items of statement 
of financial position and profit and loss account on 
the basis of its latest financial statements; and  

Statement of Financial Position – 31 December 2020 
Non-current assets - 
Current assets 484,301,365 
Shareholders’ equity (397,676,358) 
Non-current liabilities - 
Current liabilities  881,977,723 
Profit & Loss A/C – 31 December 2020 
Revenue 60,204,224 
Cost of revenue 121,365,486 
Gross profit (61,161,262) 
Loss for the year (117,471,469) 

 

Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  
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vi  

in case of investment in relation to a project of 
associated company or associated undertaking that 
has not commenced operations, following further 
information, namely, -  
 

N/A  
(I)  

description of the project and its history since 
conceptualization;  

(II)  
starting date and expected date of completion 
of work;  

(III
) 

time by which such project shall become 
commercially operational; 

(IV
) 

expected time by which the project shall start 
paying return on investment; and  

 (V)  funds invested or to be invested by the 

Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  

promoters, sponsors, associated company or 
associated undertaking distinguishing 
between cash and non-cash amounts; 

(B) General Disclosures 
(i)  maximum amount of investment to be made;  Rs. 200 million 

(ii)  
purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the investing 
company and its members from such investment and 
period of investment;  

Purpose: To meet working capital requirements of UUS Joint 
Venture (Private) Limited and to give guarantee to Pakistan 
Civil Aviatio n Authority.  
 
Benefit: The completion of project will results in distribution 
of profits by UUS Joint Venture (Pvt.) Limited to Systems 
Limited.  
 
Period of Investment: The period of investment shall be one 
(1) year.  

(iii)  

sources of funds to be utilized for investment and 
where the investment is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds, -  

Loan shall be from own funds while guarantee shall be issued 
by the banker of Systems Limited. 

(I)  
justification for investment through 
borrowings; 

UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited is only a special purpose 
vehicle for executing Pakistan Civil Aviation Authority 
(PCAA) project awarded to consortium of Systems Limited 
and Beijing UniStrong Science & Technology Co. It is Systems 
Limited liability to issue guarantee to (PCAA).  

(II)  
detail of collateral, guarantees provided and 
assets pledged for obtaining such funds; and 

Building  

(III
) 

cost benefit analysis; N/A  

(iv)  
salient features of the agreement(s), if any, with 
associated company or associated undertaking with 
regards to the proposed investment;  

None. Agreement shall be executed in line with section 199 of 
Companies Act, 2017 and resolution of shareholders to be 
passed in annual general meeting.  

(v)  

direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, 
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in 
the associated company or associated undertaking or 
the transaction under consideration;  

Mr. Asif Peer, CEO o f Systems Limited is also member and 
director in UUS Joint Venture (Pvt.) Limited.  

(vi)  

in case any investment in associated company or 
associated undertaking has already been made, the 
performance review of such investment including 
complete information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and  

There is no impairment or write -off. 

(vii)  
any other important details necessary for the 
members to understand the transaction;  

N/A  

In case of investments in the form of loans, advances and guarantees, following disclosures in addition to those provided under 
clause (a) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 3 shall be made, - 
(i)  category-wise amount of investment; N/A  

(ii)  

average borrowing cost of the investing company, 
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the 
relevant period, rate of return for Shariah compliant 
products and rate of return for unfunded facilities, as 

ERF loan: Average borrowing cost of investing company is 
SBP rate plus 0.78%. 
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Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  

the case may be, for the relevant period 

(iii)  
rate of interest, mark-up, profit, fees or commission 
etc to be charged by investing company  

Higher of KIBOR or borrowing cost of investing company in 
line with section 199 of companies act 2017. 

(iv)  
particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in 
relation to the proposed investment; 

Unsecured 

(v)  

If the investment carries conversion feature i.e. it is 
convertible into securities, this fact along with terms 
and conditions including conversion formula, 
circumstances in which the conversion may take 
place and the time when the conversion may be 
exercisable; and 

N/A  

(vi)  
repayment schedule and terms and conditions of 
loans or advances to be given to the associated 
company or associated undertaking;  

Principal: One (1) year from disbursement.  
Mark-up: Quarterly basis.  

  
E-Processing Systems (Pvt.) Limited : 

(a) Disclosures for all types of investments:- 
(A)  Regarding associated company or associated undertaking: - 
I  name of the associated company E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited 
Ii  basis of relationship 44.60% shareholding/Subsidiary/ Common directorship  

Iii  
earnings per share for the last three years 
 

31 Dec 2020 
(Rs.) 

31 Dec 2019 (Rs.) 31 Dec 2018 
(Rs.) 

(170.14) (88.38) (106.46) 
 

Iv  
break-up value per share, based on latest audited 
financial statements;  

Rs. 1203.68 

V 
financial position, including main items of statement 
of financial position and profit and loss account on 
the basis of its latest financial statements; and  

Statement of Financial Position – 31 December 2020 
Non-current assets 189,400,450 
Current assets 633,464,501 
Shareholders’ equity 484,426,080 
Non-current liabilities - 
Current liabilities  338,438,871 
Profit & Loss A/C – 31 December 2020 
Revenue 357,570,526 
Cost of revenue 217,643,145 
Gross profit (139,927,381) 
Loss for the year (85,070,123) 

 

Vi  

in case of investment in relation to a project of 
associated company or associated undertaking that 
has not commenced operations, following further 
information, namely, -  
 

N/A  

(I)  
description of the project and its history since 
conceptualization;  

(II)  
starting date and expected date of completion 
of work;  

(III)
 

time by which such project shall become 
commercially operational; 

(IV)
 

expected time by which the project shall start 
paying return on investment; and  

 (V)  

funds invested or to be invested by the 
promoters, sponsors, associated company or 
associated undertaking distinguishing 
between cash and non -cash amounts; 
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(B) General Disclosures 
(i)  maximum amount of investment to be made;  Rs. 340 million 

(ii)  
purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the investing 
company and its members from such investment and 
period of investment;  

Purpose: To meet increased working capital requirement of E -
Processing Systems (Private) Limited arising due to expansion 
of operations and expected launch of new feature its product 
OneLoad.  
 
Benefit: The investment would support E -Processing Systems 
(Private) Limited in smoothly meeting growing working 
capital requirements due to expansion of operations and 
launching of new features in its product OneLoad. Expansion 
in operations and new featu res would generate profit for 
shareholders including investing company.  
 
Period of Investment: The period of investment shall be one 
(1) year and convertible into equity at the discretion of the 
investor.  

(iii)  

sources of funds to be utilized for investment and 
where the investment is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds, -  

Own Funds  

(I)  
justification for investment through 
borrowings; 

N/A  (II)  
detail of collateral, guarantees provided and 
assets pledged for obtaining such funds; and 

(III
) 

cost benefit analysis; 

(iv)  
salient features of the agreement(s), if any, with 
associated company or associated undertaking with 
regards to the proposed investment;  

Agreement is executed in line with section 199 of Companies 
Act, 2017. 

(v)  

direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, 
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in 
the associated company or associated undertaking or 
the transaction under consideration;  

Mr. Aezaz Hussain, Chairman and Mr. Asif Peer, CEO of 
Systems Limited are also directors of E-Processing (Private) 
Limited.  
Mr. Aezaz Hussain, Chairman, Mr. Arshad Masood, Director 
and Mr. Asif Peer, CEO of Systems Limited are also member 
in E -Processing Systems (Private) Limited either directly or 
through direct relatives. 

(vi)  
in case any investment in associated company or 
associated undertaking has already been made, the 

With this investment, E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited 
was able to develop its product OneLoad, launch its 

Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  

performance review of such investment including 
complete information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and  

commercial operations in 2016 and met its working capital 
requirements. Since launch of commercial operation, E -
Processing Systems (Private) Limited is able to multiply its 
revenues, number of transactions and number of retailers each 
month. Currently, OneLoad product is executing 3.6 million 
transactions per month while number of retailers using 
OneLoad product are around 10,000.  
 
There is no impairment or write -off. 

(vii)  
any other important details necessary for the 
members to understand the transaction;  

N/A  

In case of investments in the form of loans, advances and guarantees, following disclosures in addition to those provided und er 
clause (a) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 3 shall be made, - 
(i)  category-wise amount of investment; N/A – Single category 

(ii)  

average borrowing cost of the investing company, 
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the 
relevant period, rate of return for Shariah compliant 
products and rate of return for unfunded facilities, as 
the case may be, for the relevant period 

ERF loan: Average borrowing cost of investing company is 
SBP rate plus 0.78%. 
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(iii)  
rate of interest, mark-up, profit, fees or commission 
etc to be charged by investing company  

KIBOR or borrowing cost of company whichever is higher  

(iv)  
particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in 
relation to the proposed investment; 

Unsecured 

(v)  

if the investment carries conversion feature i.e. it is 
convertible into securities, this fact along with terms 
and conditions including conversion formula, 
circumstances in which the conversion may take 
place and the time when the conversion may be 
exercisable; and 

N/A  

(vi)  
repayment schedule and terms and conditions of 
loan or advances to be given to the associated 
company or associated undertaking.  

Principal: One (1) year from disbursement.  
Mark-up: Quarterly basis.  

Ref. 
No.  

Requirement  Relevant Information  

Agenda Item No. 6 
 
The Board of the Company hereby proposes to issue 400,000 shares of Systems Limited to Mr. Jawad Khan in line 
with approval of shareholders already obtained on 26th April 2019 to issue shares to employees of Visionet 
Systems, as per the details provided hereunder: 
 
Name and Profile of the Allottee: Mr. Jawad Khan 
 
Share Value: Rs. 75.34/-  
 
Purpose of Issuance: The Company wishes to issue 400,000 (four hundred thousand) shares against cash 
consideration to Mr. Jawad Khan as a token of appreciation for his dedicated contribution, in accordance with 

section 83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “2017 Act”) read along with the applicable Companies (Further 
Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 (the “2018 Regulations”) thereof. 
 
Justification: As per the new Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, employee stock options can 
only be issued to the employees of the Company and / or its subsidiary. Therefore, the Company already obtained 
approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 26th April 2019 to issue 400,000 shares to 
employees of Visionet Systems/Visionet Deutschland. As per the requirement of SECP, the company is seeking 
specific approval to issue these shares to Mr. Jawad Khan for his dedicated performance. 
 
Details of the average market price of the Company shares during last three months: Rs. 437.84/- 
 
Details of the average market price of the Company during six months: Rs. 396.58/- 
 
Latest Available Market Price: Rs. 480.99/- 
 
Shareholding after proposed issue: 400,000 shares i.e. 0.32% of the paid up capital of the Company 
 
The shares so offered shall rank parri passu in all respects with the existing shareholding of the Company. The 
said issuance shall be subject to the approval of the Commission.  
  

Video-link Details 
 

Please note that registration for the meeting shall close at 10.50am on 31 March 2021 after which 
participants / shareholders shall be unable to register for the meeting. Any and all participants / 
shareholders who would have registered within the prescribed timeline shall receive the link to join the 
meeting and shall be able to access the meeting through the link, therefore, the Company emphasizes 
on timely registrations following the link below: 
 
https://systemsltd.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN__TRj5N52SwOlcBnF1sdspg 
 
In case of any queries, please feel free to email at: corporate@systemsltd.com  
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Present: 

 Mr. Aezaz Hussain  
 Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer  
 Ms. Roohi Khan Chief Financial Officer

Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

 
 
Attendance: 
 

 76 Shareholders representing a total of 58.78% shareholding were present in the meeting in person 
and through proxy. 

 

Minute 
No. Description 

1 To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on 29 May 2020 
 

The members confirmed the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on 29 May 2020 
and be taken as approved. 
 
Accordingly the following resolution was passed: 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on 29 May, 2020 be 
and hereby approved.  

2 To elect seven (7) Directors as fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the 
provisions of section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 for the period of three (3) years.  

 
 

Chairman informed the members that the number of Directors as fixed by the Board of 
Directors in accordance with section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 are seven (7).  
 
Chairman further informed that the company invited nominations for election of Directors 
from the members of the Company and received following eight (8) nominations against 
seven positions of the directorship: 

1. Mr. Aezaz Hussain 

MINUTES OF  THE EXTRAORDINARY 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
of Systems Limited held through video link on December 3, 2020 at 02:00 p.m.

Minute 
No.
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Minute 
No. Description 

2. Mr. Arshad Masood 

3. Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer 

4. Mr. Asif Jooma 

5. Mr. Omar Saeed 

6. Mr. Shabbar Zaidi 

7. Ms. Romana Abdullah 

8. Mr. Zubair Anjum 

Based on the votes received from the shareholders of the meeting, seven (7) directors 
were elected on the Board of the Company. 
 
Resolved that the following seven (7) Directors who have offered themselves and 
consented to act as Directors shall be elected Directors of the Company for the period of 
next three year commencing from December 3, 2020. 

1. Mr. Aezaz Hussain 

2. Mr. Arshad Masood 

3. Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer 

4. Mr. Asif Jooma 

5. Mr. Omar Saeed 

6. Mr. Shabbar Zaidi 

7. Ms. Romana Abdullah 

3 As there was no further business to be transacted, the Chair thanked all the members for 
attending and declared that meeting is closed.   

 

 
 

December 3, 2020

  
 

Chairman of the Meeting
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION 

DIVIDEND REMITTANCE

WITHHOLDING OF TAX
& ZAKAT ON ORDINARY
DIVIDEND

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

INVESTOR’S GRIEVANCES

GENERAL MEETINGS & 
VOTING RIGHTS

BOOK CLOSURE DATES

REGISTERED OFFICE

SHARE REGISTRAR

LISTING ON STOCK 
EXCHANGES

STOCK CODE / SYMBOL

The stock code / symbol for 
trading in ordinary shares of 
Systems Limited at Pakistan 
Stock Exchange in SYS.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

DIVIDEND 

During the year, the Company 
has complied with all 
applicable provisions, filed all 
returns/forms and furnished 
all the relevant particulars as 
required under the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 
(Now, Companies Act, 2017) 
and allied rules, the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan Regulations and the 
listing requirements.

The Board of Directors in 
their meeting held on 3rd 
March 2021 has proposed a 
dividend on ordinary shares 
at Rs. 3.50 per ordinary share 
and 10% bonus issue

Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed 
from 25 March 2021 to 31 
March 2021 (both days 
inclusive).  

E-1, Sehjpal Near DHA Phase - 
VIII (Ex.-Air Avenue), Lahore 
Cantt.
T: +92 42 111-797-836
F: +92 42 3 636 8857

Ordinary shares of Systems 
Limited are listed on Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited. 

THK Associates (Private) 
Limited. Plot no 32-C, Jami
Commercial, Street 2 DHA Phase
VII, Karachi.
T: +92 (21) 111 000 332
F: +92 (21) 35310187

Ordinary dividend declared and 
approved at the Annual General 
Meeting will be paid within the 
statutory time limit of 30 days.
(i) For shares held in physical 
form: to shareholders whose 
names appear in the Register of 
Members of the Company after 
entertaining all requests for 
transfer of shares lodged with 
the Company on or before the 
book closure date.
(ii) For shares held in electronic 
from: to shareholders whose 
names appear in the statement 
of beneficial ownership 
furnished by CDC as at end of 
business on book closure date.

As per the provisions of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, 
income tax is deductible at 
source by the Company at the 
rate of 15% in case of filer and 
30% in case on non-filer 
wherever applicable.Zakat is 
also deductible at source form 
the ordinary dividend at the rate 
of 2.5% of the face value of the 
share, other than corporate 
holders or individuals who have 
provided an undertaking for 
non-deduction.

Cash dividends are paid 
through electronic mode 
directly into the bank account 
designated by the entitled 
shareholders.

Pursuant to section 158 of 
repealed  Companies Ordinance 
1984 (now, section 132 of 
Companies Act, 2017) Systems 
Limited holds a General 
Meeting of shareholders at 
least once a year. Every 
shareholder has a right to 
attend the General Meeting. 
The notice of such meeting is 
sent to all the shareholders at 
least 21 days before the 
meeting and also advertised in 
at least one English and one 
Urdu newspaper having 
circulation in Karachi, Lahore 
and Islamabad.Shareholders 
having holding of at least 10% 
of voting rights may also apply 
to the Board of Directors to call 
for meeting of shareholders, 
and if the Board does not take 
action on such application 
within 21 days, the 
shareholders may themselves 
call the meeting.
All ordinary shares issued by 
the Company carry equal voting 
rights. Generally, matters at the 
general meetings are decided 
by a show of hands in the first 
instance. Voting by show of 
hands operates on the principle 
of “One Member-One Vote”. If 
majority of shareholders raise 
their hands in favor of a 
particular resolution, it is taken 
as passed, unless a poll is 
demanded.
Since the fundamental voting 
principle in the Company is 
“One Share-One Vote”, voting 
takes place by a poll, if 
demanded. On a poll being 
taken, the decision arrived by 
poll is final, overruling any 
decision taken on a show of 
hands.

To date none of the investors or 
shareholders has filed any 
significant complaint against any 
service provided by the Company 
to its shareholders. 76



www.jamapunji.pk

PROXIES

SERVICE STANDARDS

Transfer of shares

Transmission of shares

Issue of duplicate share certificates

Change of address

30 days after receipt

30 days after receipt

30 days after receipt

2 days after receipt

For requests received
through post

30 days after receipt

30 days after receipt

30 days after receipt

1 day after receipt

For requests received
over the counter

WEB PRESENCE

Pursuant to section 161 of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now, section 137 of Companies Act, 2017) and according to 
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, every shareholder of the Company who is entitled to attend 
and vote at a general meeting of the Company can appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of 
him/her. Every notice calling a general meeting of the Company contains a statement that a shareholder is entitled to 
appoint a proxy.

The instrument appointing a proxy (duly signed by the shareholder appointing that proxy) should be deposited at the office 
of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the meeting.

Systems Limited has always endeavored to provide investors with prompt services. Listed below are various investor 
services and the maximum time limits set for their execution:

Well qualified personnel of the Shares Registrar have been entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring that services are 
rendered within the set time limits.

Updated information regarding the Company can be accessed at its website, www.systemsltd.com. The website contains the 
latest financial results of the Company together with the Company’s profile.

Fundamental knowledge and 
understanding of financial market is 
crucial for the general public and lack 
of financial literacy or capability makes 
them vulnerable to frauds. SECP 
recognizes the importance of investor 
education and therefore initiated this 
investor education program, called 
'JamaPunji', an investor training 
program, to promote financial literacy 
in Pakistan.
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
on the Statement of Compliance with best Practices of the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Systems Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 
2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the 
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 
with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control 
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of 
Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s 
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price 
or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. 

Chartered Accountants
Lahore
10 March 2021 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
with the Code of Corporate Governance  

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:- 

1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:  
 
a. Male:      six (6) 
b. Female:      one (1)  

 
2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 

 
i. Independent Directors:   four (4)  
ii. Other Non-executive Director: two (2) 
iii. Executive Directors:   one (1 )  
iv. Female directors:   one (1)  

 
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 

companies, including this company; 
 

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures; 
 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company; 
 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and 
these Regulations; 
 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the 
Board; 
 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations; 
 

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:  

i. Mr. Ayaz Dawood (Retired) 
ii. Mr. Tahir Masaud (Retired) 
iii. Mr. Asif Jooma 
iv. Mr. Arshad Masood 
v. Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer 
vi. Mr. Aezaz Hussain 
vii. Ms. Romana Abdullah 
viii. Mr. Omar Saeed (New Appointment) 
ix. Mr. Shabbar Zaidi (New Appointment) 

 
10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of 

internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and 
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations; 
 

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board; 
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.- 
 

a. Audit Committee: 
 

i. Mr. Shabbar Zaidi   
ii. Mr. Omar Saeed    

iii. Ms. Romana Abdullah   
 

b. HR and Remuneration Committee: 
 
i. Mr. Asif Jooma    
ii. Mr. Arshad Masood   

iii. Mr. Omar Saeed    
iv. Ms. Romana Abdullah   
 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 
to the committee for compliance; 
 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per 
following:  
 

a. Audit Committee:    Quarterly Meetings  
b. HR and Remuneration Committee: Half Yearly Meetings  

 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit 
function to who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are 
conversant with the policies and procedures of the company; 
 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners 
of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, 
company secretary or director of the company; 
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard; 
 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with; and 
 

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 
36 are below (if applicable): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR. AEZAZ HUSSAIN 
Chairman 
March 3, 2021 

Chairman
Member
Member 

Chairman
Member
Member
Member 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Systems Limited
Report on the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Systems Limited (the Company), which comprise 
the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or 
loss, the unconsolidated statement of  comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the 
unconsolidated statement of cash flows  for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated 
statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of  
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash 
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the profit, the 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Following are the key audit matters: 

  
1. Revenue recognition  

The Company’s revenue is derived from a number of 
revenue streams, as referred to in Note 24 to the 
accompanying unconsolidated financial statements, 
including outsourcing services and software sale in the 
form of short term and long term projects, sometimes 
leading to revenue being recognized over multiple 
accounting periods. These often include sale of software 
bundled with related customization / development and 
support services leading to multiple performance 
obligations in individual transactions. 

Further, as referred to in Note 33 to the accompanying 
unconsolidated financial statements, a significant portion 
of the Company’s revenue transactions is with related 
parties.  

Revenue is recognized based on performance obligations 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included: 

 Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the 
appropriateness of the Company’s revenue recognition 
policies including those relating to assessment of 
performance obligations and compliance of those 
policies with applicable accounting standards; 

 Selecting a sample of revenue transactions recognized 
during the year and recalculating the revenue 
recognized along with evaluation of the management 
basis used in determining the performance obligations 
in accordance with accounting policy; 

 Performing substantive procedures on related party 
revenue transactions including review of contractual 
terms, underlying invoices, and analytical procedures; 

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
as mentioned in Note 3.15 to the accompanying 
unconsolidated financial statements, which requires 
significant management judgement and estimates in 
relation to assessment of distinct performance 
obligations along with respective standalone selling 
prices and budgeting the cost to be incurred.  

Due to complexity of accounting for multiple revenue 
streams, significant judgement and estimation involved 
in the revenue recognition process and the significance 
of related party transactions to the Company’s revenue, 
we have identified revenue recognition as a key audit 
matter.  

 Performing substantive analytical procedures 
including monthly trend analysis of revenue by 
comparing the trends with our understanding of the 
business and external economic environment; 

 Comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue 
transactions recorded before and after the reporting 
date with underlying documentation to assess 
whether revenue has been recognized in the 
appropriate accounting period; and 

 Assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in respect 
of accounting policy, revenue recognized, and related 
party revenue transactions entered into during the 
year. 

 
Information Other than the unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon  

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion 
on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the unconsolidated Financial Statements   

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the unconsolidated Financial Statements   
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting  
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basi s of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:  

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);  

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated 
statement of  comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated 
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;  

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company’s business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.  

 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sajjad Hussain Gill. 
 
 
 
 

 
Chartered Accountants
Lahore
10 March 2020
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020 2019
ASSETS Rupees Rupees

Non-current assets 
Property and equipment 4 1,507,959,243   1,416,645,016 
Intangibles 5 21,345,888 38,657,318        
Long term investments 6 272,073,147 271,973,167 
Advance against purchase of land - 28,750,000        
Right-of-use assets 7 204,396,352      145,860,345      
Long term deposits 36,127,162 51,939,797        

2,041,901,792   1,953,825,643   

Current assets 
Contract assets 8 533,940,810      434,270,823      
Trade debts 9 2,438,437,498   1,799,468,312 
Loans, advances and other receivable 10 205,366,771      328,160,020      
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 11 187,928,945 130,644,102 
Interest accrued 38,450,000        2,491,952          
Short term investments 12 2,644,845,556   780,000,000      
Tax refunds due from the Government 13 166,007,954      192,799,516      
Cash and bank balances 14 1,577,759,692   1,095,555,314 

7,792,737,226   4,763,390,039   
TOTAL ASSETS 9,834,639,018   6,717,215,682 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital
200,000,000 (2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,000,000,000   2,000,000,000   

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 15 1,246,060,140 1,235,202,990 
Capital reserves 16 699,654,498      591,119,759
Revenue reserve: Un-appropriated profit 5,307,971,413 3,390,143,582   

7,253,686,051   5,216,466,331 
Non-current liabilities
Long term advances 17 53,857,626 26,868,774        
Long term loan 18 98,013,227 - 
Deferred grant 8,338,896          - 
Lease liabilities 19 189,409,537      129,188,921

349,619,286 156,057,695      
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 20 722,653,295 534,812,425      
Unclaimed dividend 7,617,635 8,345,525          
Contract liabilities 21 88,669,355 104,154,979 
Short term borrowings 22 1,250,000,000 650,000,000      
Accrued mark-up on borrowings 9,804,346 4,873,969          
Current portion of long term loan 18 100,754,617 - 
Current portion of deferred grant 3,095,996 - 
Current portion of lease liabilities 19 37,983,731 29,284,595        
Current portion of long term advances 10,754,706 13,220,163 

2,231,333,681 1,344,691,656 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,834,639,018 6,717,215,682 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 24 7,513,766,845     5,348,568,742    
Cost of revenue 25 (4,715,786,027)    (3,572,188,527)   
Gross profit 2,797,980,818     1,776,380,215

Selling and distribution expenses 26 (118,794,068)       (99,693,155)        
Administrative expenses 27 (499,848,346)       (448,471,106)      
Other operating expenses 28 (134,740,418)       (139,025,203) 

(753,382,832)       (687,189,464) 
Operating profit 2,044,597,986     1,089,190,751

Other income 29 272,645,254        342,646,042       
Finance costs 30 (49,914,195)         (39,164,417) 
Profit before taxation 2,267,329,045     1,392,672,376 
Taxation 31 (73,414,103)         (28,540,667)        
Profit for the year 2,193,914,942 1,364,131,709

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 35 17.66 11.05

Diluted earnings per share 35 17.31 10.95

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 2,193,914,942   1,364,131,709  

Other comprehensive income - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,193,914,942   1,364,131,709  

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Share 
premium

Employee 
compensation 

reserve

 Un-appropriated 
profit 

Balance as on 01 January 2019 1,122,135,480 505,511,843 27,568,374 2,423,653,841 4,078,869,538 

Profit for the period - - - 1,364,131,709 1,364,131,709

Other comprehensive income - - - - - 

Impact of adoption of IFRS-15 - - - (63,086,929)        (63,086,929)  

Transactions with owners
Exercise of share options 853,970 6,637,891 (2,422,708) - 5,069,153 
Share based payments - - 55,909,956 - 55,909,956 
Forfeited share options - - (2,085,597) 2,085,597 - 
10% Bonus shares issued 112,213,540 - - (112,213,540) - 

113,067,510 6,637,891 51,401,651 (334,555,039)      (163,447,987)  

Balance as on 31 December 2019 1,235,202,990 512,149,734 78,970,025 3,390,143,582 5,216,466,331

Profit for the period - - - 2,193,914,942 2,193,914,942

Other comprehensive income - - 

Transactions with owners
Exercise of share options 10,857,150 102,757,736  (38,330,430)        - 75,284,456 
Share based payments - - 47,125,289 - 47,125,289 
Forfeited share options - - (3,017,856) 1,833,713 (1,184,143) 

10,857,150 102,757,736       5,777,003  (276,087,111)  (156,695,222)      
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1,246,060,140  614,907,470       84,747,028         5,307,971,413  7,253,686,051  

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Revenue 
reserve

Capital reserves

---------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------

- (277,920,824)      (277,920,824)      

Total equity

Issued, 
subscribed
and paid-up 

share
capital

(224,427,096)      (224,427,096)      - 

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
at the rate of Rs. 2.25 per share

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
at the rate of Rs. 2 per share

- - 

- - 
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

Note 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rupees Rupees

Cash generated from operations (36) 1,936,417,462 1,894,746,855  

Finance costs paid (24,732,884) (37,979,453) 

Taxes paid (38,336,368) (52,030,550) 

(63,069,252) (90,010,003) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,873,348,210 1,804,736,852 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (290,033,960)       (552,780,904)       

Development expenditures (3,677,392)  (5,940,743)  

Sale proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 17,305,636 47,652,982 

Short term investments - net (1,857,502,251)  (485,000,000)       

Increase in long term investment (99,980)  (220,895,188)       

Profit received on deposit accounts 25,119,146 18,464,427 

Profit received on short term investments 94,201,454 81,863,191

Decrease / (increase) in long term deposits 15,812,635 (33,903,044)         

Net cash used in investing activities (1,998,874,712)  (1,150,539,279)    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in short term borrowings 600,000,000  200,000,000        
Increase in long term loan 210,000,000 -      
Proceeds from exercise of share options 75,284,456 5,069,153            
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (50,135,594)  (23,851,915)         
Dividend paid (278,648,714)  (218,057,391)       
Increase in long term advances 24,523,395 11,863,138          
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 581,023,543 (24,977,015)         

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 455,497,041 629,220,558        

Net foreign exchange difference 26,707,337 65,574,126          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,095,555,314 400,760,630        
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (14) 1,577,759,692 1,095,555,314 

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Company are as under:

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

- Provisions and directives issued under the Act.

2.2 Basis of preparation `

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

Plot No. 21, 1st Floor Fazeelat Arcade, Sector G-11 Markaz,
Islamabad

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act, differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act, have been followed.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except, as
otherwise stated in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Systems Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Act, 2017 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is principallyengaged in the business of
software development, trading of software and business process outsourcing services. The registered office of
the Company is situated at E-1, Sehjpal Road, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue), Lahore Cantt.

The Company's significant accounting policies are stated in Note 3. Not all of these significant policies require
the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The followingis intended to
provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity,
judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these unconsolidated financial
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ from
these estimates. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company, in which investments in the
subsidiary companies namely E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited ,TechVista Systems FZ- LLC, SUS JV
(Private) Limited and Systems Ventures (Private) Limited have been accounted for at cost less accumulated 

Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. These unconsolidated financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. 

Business Units Geographical 
Location

Head Office Lahore

Address

E-1, Sehjpal, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue), Lahore
Cantt.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

Karachi
Regional Office Islamabad

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) ; and 

Regional Office E-5, Central Commercial Area, Shaheed-e-Millat Road, Karachi
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2.4.1 Provision for taxation (Note 3.3)

2.4.2 Useful lives and residual values of property and equipment and intangibles (Note 3.4)

2.4.3 Expected credit losses (Note 3.10.1)

2.4.4 Revenue recognition (Note 3.15)

2.4.4.1 Identification of distinct performance obligations

2.4.4.2 Estimating stand-alone selling prices of performance obligations

2.4.4.3 Stage of completion

2.4.5 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options (Note 3.19)

The Company determines stand-alone selling prices of all performance obligations in a bundled contract, which
include sale of license, implementation, support, warrantyand training. The totaltransaction price is allocated to
all distinct performance obligations based on estimated cost of completion, plus target margin on each of the
performance obligations.

For contracts with multiple components to be delivered, the Company applies judgement to determine
performance obligations which are distinct; or not distinct, which are aggregated with other performance
obligations until a bundle is identified that is distinct.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company determines stage of completion on the basis of cost incurred to date as a percentage of total
estimated cost to deliver the performance obligations.

The Company reviews the useful lives of property and equipment and intangibles at each reporting date. Any
change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of property and
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its views on items of material nature are in
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) for trade debts and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, and customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information which
includes forecast economic conditions. At every reportingdate, the historicalobserved defaultrates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for an additional term. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew i.e. it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in
business strategy).  
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2.4.6 Provisions (Note 3.13)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 New standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements which became effective

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Definition of business (amendments)

3.2

The Company has interest in joint operation UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited, a Company set up specifically
for executing multi-year contract “Package 04A – Airport Information Management System (AIMS)”, a turnkey
project for New Islamabad International Airport by Pakistan Civil Aviation Authority.

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflowof economic benefits willbe required to
settlethe obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as
a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period.

Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly

Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractuallyagreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When the Company undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Company as a joint operator recognizes
in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and

The Company accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint
operation in accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
When Company transacts with a joint operation in which a Company is a joint operator, the Company is
considered to be conducting the transaction with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses
resulting from the transactions are recognized in the Company's standalone financial statements only to the
extent of other parties' interests in the joint operation. When Company transacts with a joint operation in which
Company is a joint operator, the Company does not recognize its share of the gains and losses until it resells
those assets to a third party.

Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of unconsolidated financial
statements of the Company are consistent with previous year except as described in Note 3.1, below:

IAS 1 and IAS 8 Presentation of Financial Statements & Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors: Definition of Material, to clarifythe definition of material and its alignment with the definition used in
the Conceptual Framework (amendments)

The Company has adopted the followingaccounting standards, amendments and interpretationsof IFRS which
became effective for the current year but did not have any material effect on the accounting policies and
unconsolidated financial statements:

IFRS 9, IAS 39 & IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (amendments)

IFRS 16 - Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions (amendments)
Amendments to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
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3.3 Taxation

3.3.1 Current

3.3.2 Deferred 

3.4 Property and equipment 

3.4.1 Operating fixed assets

3.4.2 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any.

3.5 Intangibles

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax
rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

Capital work in progress represents expenditure on property and equipment which are in the course of
construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant property and equipment category as and when
assets are available for use. 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable thattaxable profitswillbe available against which the deductible temporarydifferences,
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Intangible assets acquired from the market are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment losses.

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss
except for freehold land which is stated at historic cost. Cost of operating fixed assets consist of purchase cost,
borrowing cost pertaining to construction period and directly attributablecost of bringing the asset to working
condition. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates thatare expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantivelyenacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to
other comprehensive income in which case it is included in other comprehensive income.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Profit or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets represented by the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included in income. 

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is significant.

Depreciation on propertyand equipment is charged to income by applying straightline method on pro rata basis
so as to writeoff the historical cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 4.1.
Depreciation charge commences from the month in which the asset is available for use and continues until the
month of disposal.
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- Completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so that it will be available for use or sale.

- The Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.
- The Company has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.
- Intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

-

-

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.7 Staff benefits

After initial recognition, internallygenerated intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using straightline method at the rate given in Note 5. Full
month amortization on additions is charged in the month of acquisition and no amortization is charged in month
of disposal.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whetherthey are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable
amount, assets are writtendown to their recoverable amounts and the resultingimpairment loss is recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted in
the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

The Company's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a
corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Company's ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) is recognized as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred;

The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset.

The cost of an internallygenerated intangible asset comprises all directlyattributablecosts necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Development costs not meeting the criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred.

Development costs incurred on specific projects are capitalized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

Impairment loss recognized in prior periods is assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

The Company has the following plans for its employees:

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
futurecash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash generating unit, or CGU”). 
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50

3.7.1 Provident fund

3.7.2 Employees' share option scheme

3.8 Investments

3.8.1 Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

3.9 Foreign currency transactions

3.10 Trade debts

3.10.1 Expected credit losses

At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Company initiallyrecognizes employee compensation
expense withcorresponding credit to equity as employee compensation reserve at the fair value of option at the
grant date. The fair value of options determined at the grant date is recognized as an employee compensation
expense on a straightline basis over the vesting period. Fair value of options is arrived at using Black Scholes
pricing model

Investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Company has significant influence are measured at cost
in the Company’s separate financial statements in accordance withIAS-27 'Consolidated and separate financial
statements'.

The management determines the classification of its investments at the time of purchase depending on the
Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of financial position date or to
be sold to raise operating capital are included in current assets, all other investments are classified as non-
current assets. (Refer to Note 3.16 for detailed policy of classification, initial and subsequent measurement.)

The Company operates a funded recognized provident fund contribution plan which covers all permanent
employees. Equal contributionsare made on monthlybasis both by the Company and the employees at 10% of
basic pay.

The Company is required to publish consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27
‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’. Investments in associates, in the consolidated financial
statements, are being accounted for using the equity method.

When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Expected credit losses are calculated as a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls(i.e. the difference between cash flowsdue to the Company
in accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Company expects to receive). (Refer to note 3.16.4 for
detailed policy for impairment of financial assets)

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the reporting date. Transactions during the year are converted into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing
at the date of such transaction. All exchange differences are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Trade debts from local customers are stated at amortized cost less expected credit losses while foreign debtors
are stated at translated amount by applying exchange rate applicable on the reporting date.

The Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme. The compensation
committee of the Board of Directors of the Company evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees
and approves the grant of options. These options vest with employees over a specified period subject to
fulfillment of certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of
Company's shares at a price determined on the date of grant of options.
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3.11 Advances and deposits

These are recognized at nominal amount which is fair value of considerations to be received in future.

3.12 Trade and other payables

3.13 Provisions and contingencies

3.14 Government grants

3.15 Revenue recognition

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant willbe received and all
attached conditions willbe complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset. 

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset,
based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

At contract inception the total transaction price is estimated, which is allocated to the identified performance
obligations in proportionto their relative standalone selling prices and revenue is recognized when (or as) those
performance obligations are satisfied. 

Changes in estimates of measures of progress of performance obligations satisfied over time are recognized on
a cumulative catch-up basis, which recognizes in the current period the cumulative effect of any changes on
current and prior periods based on a performance obligation’s percentage of completion. 

Revenue recognized in any period is based on the delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of
when control is transferred to the customer. For contracts with multiple components to be delivered,
management applies judgement to consider whetherthose promised goods and services are: (i) distinct – to be
accounted for as separate performance obligations; (ii) not distinct – to be combined withother promised goods
or services until a bundle is identified that is distinct; or (iii) part of a series of distinct goods and services that
are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

For each performance obligation, the Company determines if revenue willbe recognized over time or at a point
in time. Where the Company recognizes revenue over time this is due to any of the followingreasons: (i) the
Company performing and the customer simultaneouslyreceiving and consuming the benefits provided over the
life of the contract, (ii) the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or (iii) the Company's performance creates an asset with no alternative use,
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For each performance obligation to be recognized over time, the Company applies a revenue recognition
method that faithfullydepicts the Company’s performance in transferringcontrol of the goods or services to the
customer. The Company applies the relevant input method consistently to similar performance obligations in
other contracts. If performance obligations in a contract do not meet the over time criteria, the Company
recognizes revenue at a point in time.

Provisions are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
However, provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate. Where outflowof resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, a contingent liabilityis
disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.

Liabilities for trade and other payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
future for goods and services.
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3.15.1 Professional services

3.15.2 Outsourcing services

3.15.3 Sale of third party software

3.15.4 Licenses and license support services

3.15.5 Contract Assets

The Company considers for each contract that includes a separate license performance obligation all the facts
and circumstances in determining whetherthe license revenue is recognized over time or at a point in time from
the go live date of the license.

A contract asset is initiallyrecognized for revenue earned because the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of the milestones as per contract. Upon completion of the milestone and acceptance by
the customer, the amount recognized as contract assets is reclassified to trade debts.

The Company makes judgments in determining whether the software implementation and software license are
distinct and thus separate performance obligations or part of the bundle and thus a single performance
obligation depending upon the level of customization involved and other key factors surrounding each contract.
Revenue is recognized at a point in time or over time as appropriate. 

Revenue is recognized at the point in time when obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer
are satisfied; generally this occurs when control of the software has transferred and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the software usually on delivery of the software.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by contract type, geographical markets
and timing of revenue recognition, as management believes this best depicts how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of the Company’s revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The revenue
recognition policy relevant to each contract type is as below:

The nature of contracts or performance obligations categorized withinthis revenue type is diverse and includes:
(i) software license from third party; (ii) software implementation; and (iii) software maintenance / support
contracts.

Software licenses delivered by the Company can either be 'right to access' or 'right to use' licenses. Software
licenses meeting the criteria for right to access are recognized over the period of time. Software licenses not
meeting the criteria of ‘rightto access’ are accounted for as rightto use and the revenue is recognized at a point
in time.

The Company considers that the business processing outsourcing and other services provided meet the
definition of a series of distinct goods and services as they are: (i) substantiallythe same; and (ii) have the
same pattern of transfer (as the series constitutes services provided in distinct time increments (e.g. daily,
monthly, quarterlyor annual services)) and therefore treats the series as one performance obligation. For the
majorityof outsourcing services, the Company recognizes revenue based on provision of services over time as
it best reflects the nature in which the Company is transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

Revenue frombusiness process outsourcing services is recognized on completion of processing. Revenue
other outsourcing services is recognized as services are provided.

The Company has assessed that maintenance and support is a performance obligation that can be considered
capable of being distinct and separately identifiable in a contract. These recurring services are substantiallythe
same as the nature of the promise is for the Company to ‘stand ready’ to perform maintenance and support
when required by the customer. Time-based measure of progress is used for such services since it best
reflects the Company's efforts in satisfying the performance obligation. Time-based measure of progress is
ascertained using the Percentage of Completion (PoC) method. To measure the PoC, input method is used by
the management. PoC is measured by taking into account the cost incurred to date as a percentage of total
budgeted cost.
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3.15.6 Contract Liabilities

3.16 Other income

3.17 Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

3.17.1

3.17.2 Classification

3.17.2.1

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

-  at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
-  at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or
-  at amortized cost.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

- 

- 

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- 

- 

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

3.17.2.2 Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

-   at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), or
-   at amortized cost.

Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as " fair value through profit or loss" are 
included in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Classification of financial assets

All financial assets and liabilities are initiallymeasured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given
or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be.

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of
instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial liabilitiesare measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as
instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Initial Recognition

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the related goods or services are transferred. Contract liabilitiesare recognized as revenue as
and when performance obligations are delivered under the contract.

Profit on deposit account and gain on short term investments and other income is recognized using effective
interest rate.
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3.17.3 Subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

3.17.4 Impairment of financial assets

-

-

3.17.5 Derecognition

i) Financial assets

Financial assets and liabilitiescarried at FVTPL are initiallyrecorded at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses
arising fromchanges in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilitiesheld at FVTPL are included in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

ECLs are a probabilityweighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls(i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Where management has opted to recognize a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the
Company’s own credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initiallyrecognized at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss).

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initiallyrecognized at fair value plus transaction costs,
and subsequently carried at amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writtenoff when the Company has no reasonable expectation
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

bank balances for which credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased since inception.

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial assets expire or when it transfersthe financial assets and substantiallyall the associated risks and
rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profitor loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in
a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profitor loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in equity instrumentwhich the Company has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to equity.

Loss allowance for trade debts are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs. Life time ECLs are
the ECLs that result from all possible defaults events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12 month
ECLs are portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following,which are measured at 12 month
ECLs:

other short term loans and receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since
inception.
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3.17.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

3.18 Finance costs

Finance cost is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

3.2 Leases

3.2.1 Right-of-use assets

3.2.2 Lease liabilities

3.20 Dividends and appropriation reserves

Dividends and other appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which
these are approved. However, if they are approved after the reporting period but before the unconsolidated
financial statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the unconsolidated financial
statements.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.  

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilitiesassumed, is recognized in the unconsolidated statementof profitor loss and other comprehensive
income.

Financial assets and liabilities are offsetand the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
the Company has legallyenforceable rightto offsetthe recognized amounts and the Company intends to settle
either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated in the statement of financial position at amortized cost. For the purpose
of the statementof cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cheques / demand draftin
hand and deposits in the bank.

ii) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilitiesassumed, is recognized in the unconsolidated statementof profitor loss and other comprehensive
income.
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3.21 Earnings per share

3.22 Segment reporting

3.23

Effective Date
(Annual periods 

beginning on or after)

IAS 16 amendment regarding proceeds before intended use 01 January 2022
IAS 37 amendment regarding onerous contract 01 January 2022

01 January 2023

IASB effective date 
(Annual periods 

beginning on or after)

IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 01 July 2009

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

IFRS 10 & IAS 28 - Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Associates
and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture  – (Amendment)

Not yet finalized

01 January 2022Annual Improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, 
IAS 41 Agriculture and the Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases

The changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 
9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

01 January 2021

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations update a reference in IFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting
requirements for business combinations.

01 January 2022

The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretationswill have no
material effect in the period of initial application.

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Approved Accounting (Standards that are not yet
effective)

Standard

Standard or Interpretation

IAS 1 amendment regarding the classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current

In addition to the above, the followingnew standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by
the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

The followingstandards, amendments and interpretationswithrespect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or
interpretation:

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a
component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer
(the CEO) to assess segment's performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Segment
results thatare reported to the CEO include items directlyattributableto a segment as wellas those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly other operating expenditures, other
income, finance cost, corporate assets, income tax assets and liabilities. Segment capital expenditure is the
total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and equipment.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profitaftertax attributableto ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributableto ordinary
equity holders of the parent (after adjustment) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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2020 2019
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees

Operating fixed assets

Capital work in progress

(4.1) 1,507,212,971  1,392,619,772          

Capital work in progress (4.2) 746,272 24,025,244  

1,507,959,243        1,416,645,016  

4.1.1 The cost of owned assets include assets amounting to Rs. 319.5 (2019: Rs. 237.3) million with nil book value.

4.1.2 Immovable fixed assets include freehold Land and Building situated at E-1, Sehjpal, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue),
Lahore Cantt. Total area of land is 18.17 kanals.

4.1 Operating fixed assets

 As at 
01 January 

 Additions / 
Transfers 

 Disposals 
 As at 31 

December 
 As at 

01 January 

 Depreciation
charge for

the year 
 Disposals 

 As at 31 
December 

Land - free hold 345,277,701 48,760,578 - 394,038,279 - - - - 394,038,279 -

Building on freehold land 535,883,365 6,841,345 - 542,724,710 28,052,455 13,520,924         - 41,573,379 501,151,331 2.5

Computer equipment and installations 458,284,843 107,336,746 (13,745,539) 551,876,050 286,167,379 104,131,849 (12,996,155) 377,303,073         174,572,977 33

Other equipment and installations 116,382,926 16,360,054 (44,300) 132,698,680 39,820,228 22,520,462         (44,300) 62,296,390 70,402,290 20

Generators and transformer 49,814,973 44,113,920 - 93,928,893 16,667,174 6,739,201 - 23,406,375 70,522,518 10

Furniture and fittings 107,095,328 18,802,046 (57,675) 125,839,699 53,769,222 8,110,355 (18,845) 61,860,732 63,978,967 10

Vehicles 216,248,739 72,958,264 (22,846,025)        266,360,978 57,615,853 46,951,051 (9,641,338)          94,925,566 171,435,412 20

Office equipment 43,339,502 1,660,795 - 45,000,297 14,541,931 4,105,643 - 18,647,574 26,352,723 10

Leasehold Building - Improvements 20,119,599 24,571,156 - 44,690,755           3,192,962 6,739,319 - 9,932,281 34,758,474 24.5
1,892,446,976 341,404,904 (36,693,539)        2,197,158,341 499,827,204     212,818,804 (22,700,638)        689,945,370         1,507,212,971      

 As at 
01 January 

 Additions / 
Transfers 

 Disposals 
 As at 31 

December 
 As at 

01 January 

 Depreciation
charge for

the year 
 Disposal 

 As at 31 
December 

Land - free hold 53,030,412 292,247,289 - 345,277,701 - - - - 345,277,701 -

Building on freehold land 491,815,528 44,067,837 - 535,883,365         14,208,756 13,843,698         - 28,052,454 507,830,911 2.5

Computers equipment and installations 335,126,679 130,864,899 (7,706,735) 458,284,843         231,047,727     61,250,209 (6,130,557) 286,167,379 172,117,464 33

Other equipment and installations 79,120,035 37,594,061 (331,170) 116,382,926 24,071,679 15,988,732 (240,182) 39,820,229 76,562,697 20

Generators 47,406,753           2,408,220 - 49,814,973 12,447,458 4,219,716 - 16,667,174 33,147,799 10

Furniture and fittings 90,172,405 18,201,240 (1,278,317) 107,095,328 48,753,293       5,755,141 (739,212) 53,769,222 53,326,106 10

Vehicles 159,939,602 105,737,074 (49,427,937)        216,248,739 39,039,868       39,320,732         (20,744,747)        57,615,853 158,632,886 20

Office equipment 40,844,236           2,580,266 (85,000) 43,339,502 10,864,247 3,743,069           (65,385) 14,541,931 28,797,571 10

Leasehold Building - Improvements 8,783,220 11,336,379 - 20,119,599 235,507 2,957,455           - 3,192,962 16,926,637 24.5

1,306,238,870 645,037,265     (58,829,159) 1,892,446,976 380,668,535     147,078,752       (27,920,082)        499,827,204 1,392,619,772 

------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Rate 
(%) 

 Rate 

2020

DESCRIPTION

2019

DESCRIPTION

Cost Accumulated Depreciation

Cost Accumulated Depreciation

------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Net book 
value as at 

31 December 

 Net book 
value as at 

31 December 

4.2 Capital work in progress

Advance against purchase of computers 746,272 - 

Transformer - 24,025,244           
(4.2.1) 746,272 24,025,244           

4.2.1 The following is the movement in capital work-in-progress during the year:

Balance at the beginning of the year 24,025,244           22,471,605           
Additions during the year 13,251,015 14,044,235           
Transfer to operating fixed assets (4.2.2) (36,529,987)          (12,490,596)          
Balance at the end of the year 746,272  24,025,244           

4.2.2 Transfers to operating fixed assets relate to generators and transformer.

4.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue (25)          182,934,914          127,479,111 
Selling and distribution expenses (26) 2,285,163             1,882,142 
Administrative expenses (27) 27,598,727           17,717,500           

212,818,804 147,078,753 

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
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Note 2020 2019
9.2 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding by reference to Rupees Rupees

   month-end balances was as follows:

Visionet Systems Incorporation - USA 1,354,441,348   1,039,540,709     
Visionet Deutschland GMBH 18,539,554         -  
TechVista Systems FZ-LLC - UAE 979,278,668      1,004,354,481  
TechVista Pty Limited -  Australia 8,434,440  5,191,234  
TechVista Information Technology - Qatar 113,964,932       9,379,647             

9.3

As at 01 January 135,106,696       37,408,044          
Addition during the year 119,039,124        141,688,348         
Reversal during the year -  (41,604,914)  
Expense for the year 119,039,124        100,083,434  
Balances written off during the year (22,372,056)       (2,384,782)  
As at 31 December (9.3.1) 231,773,764  135,106,696  

9.3.1

Note 2020 2019
10. LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLE Rupees Rupees

Advances to staff against:
salary 11,473,122           6,264,346  
expenses 3,061,469  28,273,442          

14,534,591          34,537,788          
Advances to suppliers - against goods 49,224,901         96,724,366          

63,759,492        131,262,154          
Loans to related parties 441,909,846      392,839,270        
Elimination on account of Joint Operation (10.1) (300,431,067)  (195,941,404)        

(10.2) 141,478,779       196,897,866  
Other receivable (10.3) 128,500  -  

205,366,771  328,160,020  

10.1

10.2 This includes loans provided to the following related parties: Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited (10.2.1) 118,158,259  170,626,354  
SUS JV (Private) Limited (10.2.2) 23,320,520        26,271,512            

141,478,779       196,897,866  

10.2.1

10.2.2

Allowance for ECLs / Provision for doubtful debts

This represents loan provided to UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited for meeting working capital requirements. This
amount is unsecured and carries interest at one-year KIBOR on the outstanding loan balance at the end of each month.

This carries mark-up at one-month KIBOR on the outstanding loan balance at the end of each month.

These include allowance for ECLs against receivables from related party, TechVista Systems FZ - LLC (Dubai) and
TechVista Information Technology (Qatar) amounting to Rs. 26.65 (2019: Rs. 32.67) million and Rs. 54.20 million (2019:
Nil) respectively.

This carries mark-up at one-year KIBOR on the outstanding loan balance at the end of each month.

10.2.3 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding by reference to 2020 2019
   month-end balances was as follows: Rupees Rupees

E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited 212,510,336       368,088,610  
SUS JV (Private) Limited 48,291,083         50,684,876          

260,801,419       418,773,486  

10.3 This represents receivable from related party, Systems Ventures (Private) Limited, on account of incorporation expenses 
paid by the Company on its behalf.

106



Note 2020 2019
11. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees

Security deposits 132,575,274  104,471,284         
Prepayments 55,353,671         26,172,818            

187,928,945  130,644,102         

12. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual fund units (12.1) 559,845,556     -  

Amortized cost
- Term deposit receipts (TDRs) (12.2) 2,085,000,000 780,000,000        

2,644,845,556 780,000,000        

12.1 The details of investments in mutual funds are as follows:

UBL Al-Ameen Asset Islamic Allocation Fund 51,952,710          -  
Number of units : 409,056 (2019: Nil)
Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund 51,291,201           -  
Number of units : 502,485 (2019: Nil)
HBL Asset Islamic Allocation Fund 51,444,992         -  
Number of units : 460,820 (2019: Nil)
Lakson Islamic Tactical Fund 52,449,350        -  
Number of units : 534,122 (2019: Nil)
Meezan Balanced Fund 100,590,950      -  
Number of units : 6,450,950 (2019: Nil)
Meezan Islamic Income Fund 50,337,808        -  
Number of units : 944,653 (2019 : Nil)
NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund 201,778,545      -  
Number of units : 12,352,453 (2019 : Nil)

559,845,556  -  

12.2 The details of investments in TDRs are as follows:

Faysal Bank Limited 400,000,000    -  
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 1,660,000,000  555,000,000        
Habib Bank Limited 25,000,000  25,000,000  
Meezan Bank Limited -  200,000,000        

(12.2.1) 2,085,000,000 780,000,000        

12.2.1

2020 2019

13. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT Rupees Rupees

Income tax - net        166,007,954            181,828,160 
Sales tax -               10,971,356 

       166,007,954           192,799,516 

These carry markup at rates ranging from 6% to 12.75% (2019: 12.25% to 12.65%) per annum.
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Note 2020 2019

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees

Cash in hand 917,983                1,651,049  

Balances with banks:

Local currency:

Current accounts 508,414,734      213,301,563  

Saving accounts (14.1) 395,180,848  862,698,678        

903,595,582  1,076,000,241      

Foreign currency - current accounts 673,246,127  17,904,024           

1,577,759,692   1,095,555,314      

14.1 These carry markup at the rate of 3.10% to 11.50% (2019: 9% to 11.25%) per annum. 

2020 2019
15. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL Rupees Rupees

2020 2019

24,533,095        23,447,380             245,330,950     234,473,800       

100,072,919       100,072,919             1,000,729,190   1,000,729,190      

124,606,014       123,520,299            1,246,060,140   1,235,202,990     

15.1 Reconciliation of ordinary shares

2020 2019

123,520,299      112,213,548              1,235,202,990  1,122,135,480       

-  11,221,354  -  112,213,540          

1,085,715             85,397  10,857,150          853,970  

124,606,014       123,520,299            1,246,060,140   1,235,202,990     

Note 2020 2019
16. CAPITAL RESERVES Rupees Rupees

Share premium reserve (16.1) 614,907,470      512,149,734         

Employee compensation reserve (16.2) 84,747,028        78,970,025  

699,654,498  591,119,759  

16.1

16.2

This reserve shall be utilized only for the purpose as specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

(Number of shares)

(Number of shares)

Stock options exercised

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
   fully paid up as bonus shares

Bonus shares issued

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 
   fully paid in cash

Balance at 31 December

Balance at 01 January

This represents balance amount after exercise of share options by the employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme approved by 
the SECP. According to the scheme, 100% options become exercisable after completion of vesting period from the date of grant. The 
options have a vesting period of 2 years and an exercise period of 3 years from the date the option is vested.
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16.2.1

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

 Number of 
options 

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

 Number of 
options 

Rupees  Number Rupees  Number 

Outstanding at 01 January 77.46               2,479,946 80.73               1,374,396 

Granted during the year

75.34                1,529,034 - -  
-  - 73.34 1,331,912 

122.23 200,000 - -  
Forfeited share options 72.34                 (469,643) 80.73 (140,965)

Exercised during the year:

- - 45.98 (11,050)

62.58 (316,831) 62.58 (74,347)

72.13                 (768,884) - -  

Outstanding at 31 December 83.84               2,653,622 77.46              2,479,946 

Vested and exercisable at 31 December 72.13 17,676 62.12 344004

*

**

16.2.2

16.2.3

16.2.4

16.2.5

2020 2019

Dividend yield 2% 2%
Expected volatility 32% - 40% 36%

Risk–free interest rate  7.30% & 7.80% 11.85%
Expected life of share options (years)  2.1  2.2 
Weighted average share price  Rs. 132.47  Rs. 96 

Model used 
 Black Scholes  Black Scholes 

- stock options awarded in April 
- stock options awarded in January

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, share options
during the year:

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 is 3.80 years
(2019: 3.61 years)

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs. 67.72 (2019: Rs. 39.3)

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the plan for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
respectively :

The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of these options was Rs. 96.32 (2019: Rs. 96.02)

2020

- stock options awarded in 2016*

- stock options awarded in 2018**

2019

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome. 

- stock options awarded in July

- stock options awarded in 2017*

The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of these options was Rs. 143.84.

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year is Rs.72.13 to Rs.122.23 (2019: Rs. 45.98 to Rs.
73.38)
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Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

18. LONG TERM LOAN

MCB Bank Limited         190,641,884 -  
Add: Unwinding of interest              8,125,960 -  

(18.1)        198,767,844 -  
Less: Current portion    (100,754,617) -  

          98,013,227 -  

18.1

Note 2020 2019

19. LEASE LIABILITIES Rupees Rupees

Present value of lease rentals    227,393,268           158,473,516 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities         (37,983,731)          (29,284,595)

       189,409,537            129,188,921 

Not later than one year             58,298,375          20,314,644 

Later than one year but not later than five years           169,649,601            41,165,952 

Later than five years            69,530,724             8,604,836 

         297,478,700          70,085,432 

Not later than one year              46,497,938             17,213,342 

Later than one year but not later than five years             153,913,985           24,725,065 

            200,411,923            41,938,407 

Principal 
outstanding

          60,925,888 

       227,393,268 

Finance cost for 
future periods

Lease Rentals

------------------ Rupees ------------------

           37,983,731 

Lease Rentals
Finance cost for 
future periods

Principal 
outstanding

2019
------------------ Rupees ------------------

           29,284,596 

          129,188,920 

          158,473,516 

This represents loan of Rs. 210 million obtained under Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to Workers
and Employees of Business Concerns (the Scheme) offered by State Bank of Pakistan to mitigate the effect of COVID-19
on employment in Pakistan. The facility has an aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 315 million. It carries mark-up at SBP
rate plus 1% per annum and is secured against a pari passu charge of Rs. 1,326.7 million over the present and future
current assets of the Company and 1st exclusive equitable mortgage and hypothecation charge of Rs. 1,066.7 million over 
the non current assets of the Company. The loan is repayable in equal quarterly installments commencing September 26,
2020 and ending December 26, 2022. The two tranches of loan were initially recognized at amortized cost using
effective interest rate of 7.94% and 7.25% (3-month KIBOR) respectively. The difference between cash received and
present value of cash outflows upon initial recognition has been recognized as deferred grant.

        128,483,649 

2020

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

17. LONG TERM ADVANCES (17.1) 53,857,626        26,868,774          

17.1 These represent advances received from staff and will be adjusted as per Company's car policy against sale of vehicles.
The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments arising in respect of
long term loans is not considered insignificant by the management.
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2020 2019
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupees

Creditors 46,025,945        57,118,426            

Accrued liabilities 614,762,540      440,558,136  
Provident fund contribution payable 32,276,041         21,722,279           
Withholding income tax payable 27,454,129         15,413,584            
Sales tax payable 2,134,640           -  

722,653,295  534,812,425  

21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 88,669,355  104,154,979         

21.1

Note 2020 2019
22. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Rupees Rupees

MCB Bank Limited (22.1)   550,000,000         450,000,000 

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (22.2)   700,000,000         200,000,000 
  1,250,000,000         650,000,000 

22.1

22.2

23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 Contingencies

Income tax

23.1.1 Tax Year 2017 – under section 161

This represents export re-finance (ERF) availed against aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 700 (2019: Rs. 200) million. The
rate of mark up is SBP rate plus 1% (2019: SBP rate plus 1%). These borrowings are secured against Rs. 950 million pari
passu hypothecation charge over current assets and Rs. 232.48 million equitable mortgage over 153.5 marla of land at
Sehjpal near DHA Phase VIII (ex-Air Avenue Eden City).

These represent mobilization advances received from the customers against professional / software development
services, licenses, license support services and other fees.

This represents export re-finance (ERF) availed against aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 800 (2019: Rs. 800) million. The
rate of mark up is SBP rate plus 0.5% (2019: SBP rate plus 0.5%) per annum. These borrowings are secured against Rs.
97.5 million cash margin, 1st pari passu of Rs. 1,327.66 million over the current assets and Rs. 1,066.67 million
hypothecation and equitable mortgage charge over plant and machinery and 203 marla of land at Sehjpal near DHA
Phase VIII (ex-Air Avenue Eden City), respectively.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR”) issued order under section 161(1A) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2017 whereby tax amounting to Rs. 6.53 million for non-deduction of withholding
tax was levied. The Company preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)”], which is
decided against the Company. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (the “ATIR”), which is pending adjudication. The management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

As at 01 January         158,473,516 -  
Additions           99,007,148           182,325,431 
Accretion of interest           20,048,198             20,431,835 
Payments         (50,135,594)          (44,283,750)
As at 31 December    227,393,268           158,473,516 

Salient features of the leases are as follows: 2020 2019

Discounting rate 7.32% - 12.16% 12.16%
Period of lease 60-120 months 60 months
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23.1.4 Tax Year 2012 – under section 122(5A)

Sales tax

23.1.5 Tax Period from January 2016 to December 2016

Commitments

23.2

23.2.1

24. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

24.1 Disaggregated Revenue Information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Note
Export Local Total

Type of goods or services

Outsourcing services 1,373,041,004  175,484,529      1,548,525,533   
Software trading 40,822,932           452,389,126      493,212,058       
Software implementation 4,515,336,879  1,093,870,509  5,609,207,388  
Less: Sales tax (24.1.1) -  (137,178,134)       (137,178,134)       
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,929,200,815     1,584,566,030  7,513,766,845   

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 40,822,932           416,345,504      457,168,436       
Goods and services transferred over time 5,888,377,883     1,168,220,526   7,056,598,409  
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,929,200,815     1,584,566,030  7,513,766,845   

Guarantees issued by the financial institutions on behalf of the Company amount to Rs. 201.90 (2019: Rs. 370.39) million.
This includes guarantees of Rs. 2.72 (2019: Rs. 77.38)  million given on behalf of Joint Operation.

The outstanding purchase commitments are nil (2019: Rs. 1 million).

The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (“ACIR”) issued an order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax year
2012, on the basis of wrong proration of expenses, others etc. and created demand of Rs. 18.46 million. The company
preferred an appeal before the CIR(A) against the impugned order which is partially decided in favor of the Company.
Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before the learned ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The management
expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

The Company was selected for Sales Tax Audit through computer ballot for the tax period January 2016 to December
2016 and on the basis of audit proceedings, the DCIR passed order No. 3 dated 30 July 2020 under section 11(2) of the
Sales Tax Act, 1990 on various issues including suppression of sales, non-chargeability of sales tax on advance from
customers, other income, late filing of sales tax returns etc. and created impugned sales tax demand amounting to Rs.
655.84 million. Being aggrieved, the Company preferred an appeal before the CIR(A), which is pending adjudication.

2020

---------------- Rupees -----------------

23.1.2 Tax Year 2016 - Clause 94 part IV of Second Schedule

23.1.3 Tax Year 2014 - under section 122(5A)

The Company filed an undertaking pursuant clause 94 part IV of Second Schedule to the Ordinance, thereby opting out of
minimum tax on services under section 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance in respect of Tax Year 2016. The Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue (“Addl. CIR”) declined to accept the undertaking against which the Company preferred an
appeal before CIR(A), which has been upheld by the CIR(A). The appeal effect / reassessment may result in tax liability of
Rs. 30.25 million. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed an appeal before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The
management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

The Addl. CIR issued order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax year 2014, on the basis of wrong proration of
expenses, capital gain etc. and created demand of Rs. 48.59 million. The company preferred an appeal against the order,
before the CIR(A) who decided the case in favor of the company. However, the tax department has filed second appeal
before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.
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24.1.2

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

24.2 Contract balances (24.2.1) 69,232,960        12,918,978            

24.2.1

24.3 Transaction prices of remaining performance obligations

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Within one year 244,931,576      261,837,585        
More than one year -  430,747,008       

244,931,576      692,584,593       

Note 2020 2019
25. COST OF REVENUE Rupees Rupees

Salaries, allowances and amenities  (25.1) 3,624,911,038   2,495,496,558    
Purchase of software 416,643,420      437,116,550  
Technical consultancy 97,711,401  65,428,750          
Printing and stationery 1,265,643            1,158,627  
Computer supplies 20,773,210         31,925,954           
Rent, rates and taxes 6,973,665           6,848,439  
Electricity, gas and water 46,485,491         49,862,464          
Traveling and conveyance 98,828,578         172,369,730  
Repair and maintenance 11,411,745  11,726,780            
Postage, telephone and telegrams 71,239,278  61,864,726           
Vehicle running and maintenance 23,679,765  20,648,733          
Entertainment 26,417,190          27,814,262           
Fee and subscriptions 48,262,588  15,838,737           
Insurance 5,196,469            6,998,984             
Depreciation (4.3) 182,934,914       127,479,111           
Amortization (5.3) 17,672,598  25,690,716           
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (7.1) 15,379,034         13,919,406            

4,715,786,027  3,572,188,527     

25.1

These represent the amount of revenue recognized from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
year.

The disaggregated revenue information based on the geographical location has been presented in note 32 to these
unconsolidated financial statements.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December is as follows:

This includes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 158.39 (2019: Rs. 104.79) million.

The Company makes sales against credit terms. In case of credit sales, payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing to the customer.

Export Local Total
Type of goods or services

Outsourcing services 804,592,410          175,169,753         979,762,163  
Software trading -  471,372,110          471,372,110          
Software implementation 3,175,816,255        854,094,649       4,029,910,904     
Less: Sales tax (24.1.1) -  (132,476,435)      (132,476,435)       
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,980,408,665  1,368,160,077  5,348,568,742    

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at a point in time -  455,038,847       455,038,847  
Goods and services transferred over time 3,980,408,665      913,121,230          4,893,529,895    
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,980,408,665      1,368,160,077     5,348,568,742    

24.1.1

---------------- Rupees -----------------

2019

This represents sales tax chargeable under Provincial and Federal Sales tax laws on revenue as defined under relevant
laws.
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26.1 This includes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 3.37 (2019: Rs. 2.86) million.

Note 2020 2019
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Rupees Rupees

Salaries, allowances and amenities (27.1) 294,014,822      277,704,266  
Printing and stationery 4,644,150  3,368,725             
Computer supplies 17,497,725         18,388,818            
Rent, rates and taxes 6,834,192            6,608,052             
Electricity, gas and water 7,941,458            7,167,562              
Traveling and conveyance 9,107,370  14,957,202           
Repair and maintenance 30,730,868  20,778,428          
Postage, telephone and telegrams 14,525,877         10,765,186            
Vehicle running and maintenance 7,246,096           7,642,091  
Legal and professional 21,819,112            11,492,836            
Auditors' remuneration (27.2) 4,553,038           5,028,107              
Entertainment 3,740,825           4,389,554  
Donations 2,203,600  3,825,105              
Fee and subscriptions 17,489,241          10,911,232             
Insurance 3,594,708           1,899,820              
Hiring cost 432,830  884,516  
Newspapers, books and periodicals 137,713  116,918  
Depreciation (4.3) 27,598,727  17,717,500            
Amortization (5.3) 3,061,163  3,822,164  
Others 415,703  867,487  
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (7.1) 22,259,128  20,135,537           

499,848,346     448,471,106         

27.1 This includes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 15.27 (2019: Rs. 10.71) million.

Note 2020 2019
27.2 Auditors' remuneration Rupees Rupees

Statutory audit fee 1,907,747  1,734,315  
Half yearly review and other certifications 1,478,906            1,503,805              
Sales tax advisory 942,500  1,669,987              
Out-of-pocket 223,885               120,000  

4,553,038           5,028,107              

28. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Allowance for ECLs / provision for doubtful debts
- Contract assets (8.1.3) 9,812,284            (11,760,292)           
- Trade debts (9.3) 119,039,124        100,083,434  

Contract assets and bad debts written off -  24,652,515           
Provision against doubtful refundables -  24,508,582          
Tax receivables written off 5,889,010            -  
Advances written off -  1,540,964  

134,740,418       139,025,203  

Note 2020 2019
26. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES Rupees Rupees

Salaries, allowances and amenities (26.1) 97,871,121           78,684,571          
Printing and stationery 370,579  437,593               
Computer supplies 100,314                185,832  
Rent, rates and taxes 139,473  154,619  
Electricity, gas and water 1,107,445  694,845               
Traveling and conveyance 3,869,378  8,373,017  
Repair and maintenance 950,833               229,210                
Postage, telephone and telegrams 754,222  1,023,230            
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,355,995            1,384,000            
Entertainment 489,967               1,308,090            
Insurance 524,075  69,613  
Fee and subscriptions 2,896,029           502,996               
Shows, seminars and advertising 2,991,433            1,954,589  
Depreciation (4.3) 2,285,163            1,882,142  
Amortization (5.3) 255,061  398,665  
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (7.1) 2,832,980           2,410,143             

118,794,068  99,693,155  
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Note 2020 2019

FINANCE COSTS

Rupees Rupees

Markup on guarantee commission               1,257,218                1,135,974 
Markup on borrowings           25,781,337             14,605,600 
Bank charges             2,827,442               2,991,008 
Lease interest           20,048,198             20,431,835 

49,914,195          39,164,417            

TAXATION

Income tax:  
-  current year (31.1)&(31.2) 61,886,727  32,250,920  
-  prior year 11,527,376          (3,710,253)  

73,414,103  28,540,667          
Deferred tax (31.3) -  -  

73,414,103  28,540,667          

2020 2019
Reconciliation of tax charge for the year: Rupees Rupees

Profit before taxation   2,267,329,045 -  

Tax on profit    657,525,423 -  
Tax effect of exempt income    (589,840,311) -  
Tax effect of prior year adjustment            11,527,376 -  
Tax effect of adjustment of carried forward business losses         (18,650,702) -  
Tax effect of business loss of Joint Operation           17,023,597 -  
Others           (4,429,995) -  

          73,155,388 -  

2020 2019
Deferred tax Rupees Rupees
Taxable temporary differences

Depreciation on property and equipment (22,361,343)  (21,032,610)           
Employee compensation reserve -  (5,647,463)  
Right-of-use asset (12,387,186)         (10,431,057)  

(34,748,529)       (37,111,130)  
Deductible temporary differences

Lease liabilities 13,780,885                 9,099,311 
Provision for doubtful debts 13,874,283                4,506,167 
Provision for contract assets 5,152,094  -  
Employee compensation reserve 1,941,267  -  
Minimum tax -             23,505,652 

34,748,529        37,111,130              
- - 

The Company has recognized deferred tax asset on its deductible temporary differences and tax losses to the extent of
available taxable temporary ditferences. Owing to uncertainty relating to future taxable profits, against which the
Company can utilize its tax losses and tax credits, the Company has not recognized any deferred tax asset for minimum
tax of Rs. 35.99 million (2019: Rs. 29.66 million) and unabsorbed depreciation loss of Rs. 36.48 million (2019: 68.14
million). Expiry of minimum tax and excess of corporate alternative tax carried forward is as follows:

This represents tax chargeable under Normal Tax Regime on local sale of software and services. The income of the
Company from export of software is exempt under clause 133 Part 1 of Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001.

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense for the prior year is meaningless in view of the minimum tax
under section 153 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

30.

31.

31.1

31.2

31.3

29. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:
Profit on deposit accounts            25,119,146 18,464,427           
Profit on term deposit receipts         130,159,502 57,843,863          
Dividend income             2,502,253 -  
Unrealized gain on investments classified 
   as fair value through profit or loss            7,343,304 -  
Exchange gain            81,841,960 223,172,268  
Interest on loan to subsidiaries            21,501,786 25,053,472          

268,467,951      324,534,030       
Income from non-financial assets:
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (4.4)              3,312,735 16,743,906           
Others                 864,568 1,368,106  

            4,177,303 18,112,012              
272,645,254  342,646,042  
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32. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographical segments

For management purposes, the Systems Limited is organized into business units based on their geographical areas and has four 
reportable operating segments as follows:
-  North America
-  Europe
- Middle East
- Pakistan
No other operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.  
Management monitors the operating results of its operating segments separately for the purpose of performance assessment. 
Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the 
unconsolidated financial statements. 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from contracts with customers 4,367,846,372       2,956,900,042         825,305,235          475,048,351             725,170,596       548,460,272         1,595,444,642       1,368,160,077         7,513,766,845       5,348,568,742         
Cost of revenue (2,392,470,816)      (1,664,852,689)         (498,779,658)         (295,198,103)             (572,919,574)      (473,009,587)       (1,251,615,979)        (1,139,128,148)          (4,715,786,027)      (3,572,188,527)         
Gross profit 1,975,375,556       1,292,047,353          326,525,577          179,850,248             152,251,022        75,450,685           343,828,663          229,031,929            2,797,980,818       1,776,380,215           

Selling and distribution expenses (17,406,721)             (12,037,257)               (4,024,698)              (1,933,876)  (7,462,548)           (4,315,287)             (89,900,101)             (81,406,735)             (118,794,068)          (99,693,155)               
Administrative expenses (324,640,784)         (301,387,312)             (66,340,926)           (48,420,151)  (59,381,802)         (53,816,533)           (49,484,834)            (44,847,110)             (499,848,346)         (448,471,106)            

(342,047,505)         (313,424,569)            (70,365,624)           (50,354,027)              (66,844,350)        (58,131,820)            (139,384,935)          (126,253,845)          (618,642,414)           (548,164,261)             
Profit / (loss) before taxation and
unallocated income and expenses 1,633,328,051        978,622,784            256,159,953           129,496,221              85,406,672         17,318,865             204,443,728          102,778,084            2,179,338,404       1,228,215,954           

Unallocated income and expenses:
Other operating expenses (134,740,418)          (139,025,203)            
Other income 272,645,254          342,646,042            
Finance costs (49,914,195)             (39,164,417)  

87,990,641              164,456,422             
Profit before taxation 2,267,329,045      1,392,672,376          
Taxation (73,414,103)             (28,540,667)              
Profit for the year 2,193,914,942        1,364,131,709            

----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------------

North America Middle East Pakistan TotalEurope

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Segment operating assets
Property and equipment -  -  -  -  -  -  1,507,959,243   1,416,645,016           1,507,959,243         1,416,645,016 
Intangibles -  -  -  -  -  -  21,345,888          38,657,318                      21,345,888             38,657,318 
Right-of-use assets -  -  -  -  -  204,396,352      145,860,345               204,396,352          145,860,345 
Long term investments -  -  -  -  -  -  272,073,147       271,973,167                 272,073,147           271,973,167 
Long term deposits -  -  -  -  -  -  36,127,162           51,939,797                       36,127,162             51,939,797 
Advance against purchase of land -  -  -  -  -  -  28,750,000           -              28,750,000 
Contract assets -  -  192,018,321        422,820  177,720,960       193,300,187         164,201,529       240,547,816               533,940,810         434,270,823 
Trade debts 1,100,980,956   615,799,194         20,255,836         30,755,597          875,614,023       770,019,884        441,586,683       382,893,637          2,438,437,498        1,799,468,312 
Loans, advances and other reveivable -  -  -  -  -  205,366,771       328,160,020                 205,366,771           328,160,020 
Trade deposits and short 
   term prepayments -  -  -  -  -  187,928,945       130,644,102                 187,928,945           130,644,102 
Interest accrued -  -  -  -  -  38,450,000        2,491,952                       38,450,000                2,491,952 
Short term investments -  -  -  -  -  2,644,845,556  780,000,000           2,644,845,556          780,000,000 
Tax refunds due from government -  -  -  -  -  -  166,007,954      192,799,516                 166,007,954           192,799,516 
Cash and bank balances -  -  -  -  -  -  1,577,759,692   1,095,555,314          1,577,759,692        1,095,555,314 

Total operating assets     1,100,980,956           615,799,194          212,274,157              31,178,417     1,053,334,983          963,320,071    7,468,048,922        5,106,918,000     9,834,639,018        6,717,215,682 

Segment operating liabilities
Long term advances -  -  -  -  -  -  53,857,626         26,868,774                    53,857,626            26,868,774 
Lease liabilities -  -  -  -  -  -  189,409,537       129,188,921                   189,409,537            129,188,921 
Long term loan -  -  -  -  -  -  98,013,227          -             98,013,227 -   
Deferred grant -  -  -  -  -  -  8,338,896            -               8,338,896 -   
Trade and other payables -  -  -  -  -  -  730,270,930      543,157,950               730,270,930          543,157,950 
Contract liabilities -  -  -  -  -  -  88,669,355         104,154,979                   88,669,355           104,154,979 
Mark-up accrued on short term 
   borrowings -  -  -  -  -  -  9,804,346           4,873,969                         9,804,346               4,873,969 
Short term borrowings -  -  -  -  -  -  1,250,000,000  650,000,000           1,250,000,000          650,000,000 
Current portion of lease liabilities -  -  -  -  -  -  37,983,731          29,284,595                      37,983,731            29,284,595 
Current portion of long term loan -  -  -  -  -  -  100,754,617       -          100,754,617 -   
Current portion of deferred grant -  -  -  -  -  -  3,095,996            -               3,095,996 -   
Current portion of long term advances -  -  -  -  -  -  10,754,706         13,220,163                      10,754,706              13,220,163 

Total operating liabilities -   -   -   -   -   -      2,580,952,967        1,500,749,351    2,580,952,967        1,500,749,351 

North America Middle East Pakistan Total

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Europe

32.1 Allocation of assets and liabilities

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

2022 -  49,719,944           

2023 -  31,277,012            

-  80,996,956  

2022 15,307,401  15,307,401            
2023 10,903,102  10,903,102            
2024 3,452,899           3,452,899             
2025 6,324,278           -  

35,987,680  29,663,402          

No Expiry 36,477,150         68,135,769           
72,464,830        178,796,127  

Depreciation loss

Business loss - 2016

Business loss - 2017

Nature Expiry Tax Year 

Minimum tax - 2017
Minimum tax - 2018
Minimum tax - 2019
Minimum tax - 2020
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33. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2020 2019Undertaking Nature of transaction
Rupees Rupees

Sales 571,955,582        731,876,415          
Out of pocket expenses 108,692,945       207,346,832        
Loan - net advanced / (settled) (52,468,094)        (47,562,904)          
Interest income 19,036,663          25,155,530            
Loan - net advanced / (settled) (2,950,992)           26,271,512             
Interest income 2,419,253             1,866,386               
Sales 4,270,475,128   2,957,631,422      
Out of pocket expenses 27,419,070          78,774,869           
Sales 650,852,370      -  
Sales 5,391,955             5,020,382              
Sales 9,414,589             15,551,674             
Purchase of insurance policies 35,220,903         25,964,649           
Purchase of insurance policies 5,293,286             3,980,759              
Contribution 177,022,960       118,363,070          
Sales 95,176,466          26,228,121             

33.1 Details of the Company's subsidiaries and associated companies incorporated outside Pakistan are as follows:

TechVista Systems FZ LLC UAE

E Processing Systems (Private) Limited.

TechVista Systems FZ- LLC - UAE

Visionet Systems Incorporation - USA

Relation 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Associate

SUS-JV (Private) Limited. Subsidiary

Staff retirement fund

Name of Company
Country of incorporation Registered Address

Details
Basis of Association Percentage of shareholding

IGI Insurance Limited Associate

Dawood Family Takaful Limited Associate

Visionet Deutschland GMBH Associate
TechVista Pty Limited -  Australia

TechVista Information Technology - Qatar Associate

Associate

100%TechVista Systems LLC, 
Office 603, 6th Floor, 
Exchange Tower, Business 
Bay, Dubai, UAE

Subsidiary

-

The related parties of the Company comprise subsidiaries, associated companies, companies in which directors are
interested, staff retirement funds and directors and key management personnel (Note 34). The Company in the normal 
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown 
under respective notes to the financial statements. Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

TechVista Pty Limited

Visionet Systems Inc. 

Visionet Deutschland GMBH

TechVista Information 
Technology 

Name of Company

USA

Australia

Germany

Visionet Systems Inc.
Cedarbrook Corporate
Center, 4 Cedarbrook Drive,
Bldg. B Cranbury, NJ 08512-
3641

G Seat 3', 30 Cowper Street, 
Parramatta NSW 2150

Maximilian street 13, 80539, 
Munchen, Germany

Details

Associate

Sub-Subsidiary

Associate

-

-

-

Associate -Qatar TechVista IT WILL, Head 
Office Palm Towers B, Floor 
41, Westbay, Doha, Qatar

Country of incorporation Registered Address Basis of Association Percentage of shareholding

TechVista Systems LLC UAE TechVista Systems LLC, 
Office 603, 6th Floor, 
Exchange Tower, Business 
Bay, Dubai, UAE

Sub-Subsidiary

TechVista Systems Manpower LLC UAE TechVista Systems LLC, 
Office 603, 6th Floor, 
Exchange Tower, Business 
Bay, Dubai, UAE

Sub-Subsidiary -
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Number of persons 1 1 6 6 510 339

Managerial remuneration 36,960,000 33,600,000    -  -  1,561,614,937     959,059,848  
Retirement benefits 2,464,000    2,240,000       -  -  97,024,229         59,096,019            
Bonus -  -  -  -  49,680,471  31,280,931             
Fees (34.2) -  -  2,850,000  1,354,000           -  -  

39,424,000 35,840,000    2,850,000  1,354,000           1,708,319,637    1,049,436,798     

 ----------------------------------------------------- (Nos) -----------------------------------------------------

 ----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------

Other ExecutivesChief Executive Officer Non Executive Directors

34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

34.1

34.2

34.3

34.4

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration including certain benefits to the Chief 
Executive Officer, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows : 

In addition to the above remuneration, the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with company 
maintained cars, free medical and mobile phone facilities in accordance with their entitlement.  

Fees represent the amounts paid to Non Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and its sub-committees. 

During the year, the Chief Executive Officer and Other Executives were granted 570,034 (2019: 525,412) and 1,159,000 (2019: 
406,500) share options respectively, which have a vesting period of two years. Further, the impact of benefits available to the 
Chief Executive Officer and other executives recognized by the Company on account of share-based payment plans aggregated 
to Rs. 25.37 (2019: Rs. 26.44) million and Rs. 21.76 (2019: 29.46) million, respectively. 

During the current year, certain executives of the Company exercised stock option under employee stock option scheme 
according to which 1,085,715  (2019: 85,397) shares were issued to them.  

35. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2020 2019
35.1 Basic earnings per share Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 2,193,914,942  1,364,131,709  

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 124,261,404        123,473,974          

Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 17.66 11.05

2020 2019
35.2 Diluted earnings per share Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year       2,193,914,942          1,364,131,709 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)          124,261,404            123,473,974 
Effect of share options               2,498,226 1,055,607 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares - diluted          126,759,630             124,529,581 

Diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 17.31 10.95

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year as follows:

(Number of shares)

(Number of shares)
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Note 2020 2019
36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Rupees Rupees

Profit before taxation 2,267,329,045   1,392,672,376       
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation on property and equipment (4.3) 212,818,804  147,078,753  
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (7) 40,471,141            36,465,086  
Amortization of intangibles (5) 20,988,822          29,911,545  
Exchange gain on translation of export debts (55,134,623)         (157,598,142)          
Profit on deposit accounts (29) (25,119,146)           (18,464,427)            
Profit on term deposit receipts (29) (130,159,502)       (57,843,863)           
Unrealized gain on investments classified 
  as fair value through profit or loss (29) (7,343,304)  -  
Share based payment expense 45,941,146           55,909,956             
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (29) (3,312,735)            (16,743,906)            
Allowance for ECLs / provision for doubtful debts:

- contract assets (28) 9,812,284  (11,760,292)             
- trade debts (28) 119,039,124  100,083,434  

Tax receivables written off (28) 5,889,010  
Bad debts - written off (28) -  24,652,515  
Interest on loan to subsidiary (29) (21,501,786)          (25,053,472)           
Finance costs (30) 49,914,195  39,164,417              

2,529,632,475   1,538,473,980       

Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Contract Assets (127,624,174)  (60,698,694)  
Trade debts (711,439,121)  84,720,341             
Loans, advances and other receivable 143,663,332        141,460,855  
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (55,995,111)           (9,471,255)               
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 173,665,685        121,256,530            
Contract Liabilities (15,485,624)         79,005,098             

(593,215,013)       356,272,875          
Cash generated from operations 1,936,417,462  1,894,746,855       

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

  - Market risk
  - Credit risk
  - Liquidity risk

This note represents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, it's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and it's management of capital.

Financial instruments comprise deposits, contract assets, interest accrued, trade debts, advances to employees against
salaries, cash and bank balances and short term investments, trade and other payables, lease liabilities, long term loan, short
term borrowing and mark up accrued on short term borrowings.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to react to changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
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37.1 Market risk

(a) Currency risk

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Receivables - USD +1 7,039,373  3,763,694               
-1 (7,039,373)           (3,763,694)  

Receivables - AUD +1 68,406  -  
-1 (68,406)  -  

Receivables - AED +1 16,866,738  20,148,584  
-1 (16,866,738)         (20,148,584)            

Bank balance - USD +1 4,213,054             115,734  
-1 (4,213,054)  (115,734)  

Reporting date rate:
USD 159.8 154.7
AUD 123.3 108.5
AED 43.5 42.1

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that
exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Changes
in Rate

Effect on 
profit 

before tax

Effect on 
profit 

before tax

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax.

Monetary items, including financial assets and financial liabilities, denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the Company are periodically restated to Pak rupee equivalent and the associated gain or loss is taken to the profit and loss
account.

(b) Interest rate risk

2020 2019
Fixed rate instruments Rupees Rupees

Financial assets 

Short term investments    2,085,000,000            780,000,000 

Bank balances - deposit accounts          395,180,848            862,698,678 

    2,480,180,848         1,642,698,678 

Financial liabilities

Long term loan         198,767,844 -  

Lease liabilities         227,393,268             158,473,516 

Short term borrowings     1,250,000,000            650,000,000 

     4,156,341,960          2,451,172,194 

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company mitigates its risk against the exposure by focusing on short-term investment
and maintaining adequate bank balances. 

At the statement of financial position, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments was:
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

(c) Other price risk

37.2 Credit risk

Other price risk is the risk of changes in the fair value of investment in mutual funds as a result of changes in the levels of net
asset value of units held by the Company. As at 31 December 2020, had there been increase / decrease in net asset value by
1%, with all other variables held constant,the profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 5.09 million
(2019: Nil).

The Company is not exposed to future cash flow risk.

As at 31 December 2020, had there been increase / decrease in fixed interest rates by 100 basis points, with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 7.91 million (2019: Rs.8.34
million).

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely
to perform as contracted. The Company does not have significant exposure to any individual third party. To reduce exposure
to credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The
management also continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those
balances considered doubtful of recovery. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks and mutual funds with reasonably high credit
ratings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a
large number of counter parties and subscribers in case of trade debts.

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Contract Assets 533,940,810  434,270,823  
Trade debts 2,438,437,498  1,799,468,312        
Trade deposits 168,702,436  140,598,446  
Advances to employees against salaries 11,473,122            6,264,346               
Loans to related party 141,478,779        196,897,866           
Interest accrued 38,450,000         2,491,952  
Short term investment 2,644,845,556   780,000,000          
Bank balances 1,576,841,709  1,095,555,314        

7,554,169,910  4,455,547,059      
The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:

0 - 120 days 1,777,945,119     1,321,399,384        
121 - 365 days 819,766,010  551,611,073  
Above one year 68,807,452  61,564,551  

2,670,211,262  1,934,575,008       

Expected credit losses (231,773,764)      (135,106,696)  
2,438,437,498  1,799,468,312        

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date was as follows:

The Company has applied the IFRS’s simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses.
The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the bank balances and
investments held with some major counterparties at the reporting date:

As at year end, 75% of trade debts (2019: 76%) were represented by five customers amounting to Rs. 2,003.57 (2019: Rs.
1,396.08) million. The management believes that the Company is not exposed to customer concentration risk as these
customers are related parties of the Company.
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2020 2019
Short term  Long term Agency

Banks
Habib Metropolitan Bank A1+ AA+ PACRA 863,170,613  275,740,889          
Bank Islami Pak A1 A+ PACRA 7,694,420            7,694,101  
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 24,677,388  103,185,630  
Faysal Bank A1+ AA PACRA 21,549,769  63,875,350  
Standard Chartered Bank A1+ AAA PACRA 42,394,856  17,953,790  
Finca Microfinance Bank A1 A PACRA -  362,203  
Meezan Bank A1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 2,998,384  7,752,821                
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 22,018,363  17,341,735              
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 4,598,296  15,559,729  
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 587,739,620  584,438,017  

1,576,841,709  1,093,904,265       
Mutual Funds

Not Available Not Available Not Available 100,590,950  -  
-  

559,845,556       -  

Alfalah GHP Islamic 
Income Fund

-  

-  

Not Available Not Available Not Available 51,444,992  -  

51,952,710  -  

Not Available AA-(f) PACRA 51,291,201  

Not Available Not Available Not Available 52,449,350  

Meezan Islamic Income 
Fund

Not Available A+(f) JCR-VIS

Meezan Balanced Fund

Not Available Not Available Not Available 201,778,545  NBP Islamic Sarmaya 
Izafa Fund

--------- Rupees ----------
Rating

Al-Ameen Asset Islamic 
Allocation Fund 

Not Available Not Available Not Available

-  

HBL Islamic Asset 
Allocation Fund
Lakson Islamic Tactical 
Fund

50,337,808  

37.3 Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2020:

 Carrying 
amount 

 Contractual cash 
flows 

 Less than 
one year 

 One to 
five years 

 More than five 
years 

Long term loan 198,767,844  198,767,844              100,754,617        98,013,227          -  
Lease Liabilities 227,393,268        227,393,268              37,983,731          128,483,649       60,925,888           
Trade and other payables 720,518,655  720,518,655               720,518,655  -  -  

Short term borrowings 1,250,000,000    1,250,000,000          1,250,000,000   -  -  

Mark-up accrued on short 

term borrowings 9,804,346  9,804,346  9,804,346  -  -  

2,406,484,113     2,406,484,113           2,119,061,349     226,496,876       60,925,888           

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019:

Lease Liabilities 158,473,516  158,473,516  29,284,596            129,188,920           -  

Trade and other payables 534,812,425          534,812,425                 534,812,425  -  -  

Short term borrowings 650,000,000          650,000,000  650,000,000         -  -  

Mark-up accrued on short 

term borrowings 4,873,969 4,873,969 4,873,969 - - 

1,348,159,910 1,348,159,910 1,218,970,990 129,188,920 -

----------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
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37.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

37.5 Financial instruments by categories

Financial 
assets at fair 
value through 
profit or loss

Financial 
assets at 

amortized 
cost

Total

Rupees Rupees
Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposits -              36,127,162 36,127,162  

Contract assets -          533,940,810 533,940,810  

Trade debts -      2,438,437,498 2,438,437,498  

Loans, advances and other receivable -          205,366,771 205,366,771  

Security deposits -          132,575,274 132,575,274  

Interest accrued -            38,450,000 38,450,000          

Short term investments         559,845,556    2,085,000,000 2,644,845,556    

Cash and bank balances -       1,577,759,692 1,577,759,692  

        559,845,556    7,047,657,207 7,607,502,763  

The carrying values of other financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate their fair
values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

2020

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available.

Financial 
assets at fair 

value through 
profit or loss

Financial 
assets at 

amortized 
cost

Total

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits -               51,939,797               51,939,797 
Contract assets -           434,270,823           434,270,823 
Trade debts -          1,799,468,312          1,799,468,312 
Loans, advances and other receivable -             328,160,020             328,160,020 
Security deposits -             104,471,284             104,471,284 
Interest accrued -                  2,491,952 2,491,952 
Short term investments -            780,000,000            780,000,000 
Cash and bank balances -          1,095,555,314          1,095,555,314 

-        4,596,357,502        4,596,357,502 

2020 2019
Financial 

liabilities at 
amortized 

cost

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortized cost

Liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupees Rupees

Long term loan           198,767,844 -  
Lease liabilities          227,393,268             158,473,516 
Mark-up accrued on short term borrowings                9,804,346                 4,873,969 
Short term borrowings        1,250,000,000            650,000,000 
Unclaimed dividend                 7,617,635                 8,345,525 
Trade and other payables           722,653,295            534,812,425 

       1,990,075,276            1,198,031,919 

2019
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37.6 Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 December 2020

Fair value through profit and loss
- Mutual Fund units 559,845,556 -  -  559,845,556

As at 31 December 2019
Fair value through profit and loss
- Mutual Fund units -  -  -  -  

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values. The
table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different level have been defined as
follows:

     '----------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable either,
directly or indirectly.

37.7 Capital risk management

a)

b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products.

The debt-to-equity ratio as of 31 December is as follows:
2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

Long term loan - Note 18           198,767,844 -  

Lease Liabilities - Note 19           227,393,268             158,473,516 

Trade and other payables - Note 20          722,653,295            534,812,425 

Short term borrowing - Note 22      1,250,000,000           650,000,000 

Mark up accrued on borrowings               9,804,346 4,873,969 

      2,408,618,753          1,348,159,910 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents     (1,577,759,692)        (1,095,555,314)

Net debt 830,859,061  252,604,596          

Total capital       7,253,686,051          5,216,466,331 

Capital and net debt        8,084,545,112        5,469,070,927 

Capital gearing ratio 10% 5%

to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

The Company’s policy is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a going concern and ensure a strong
capital base in order to maintain investors’, creditors’ and market’s confidence and to sustain future development
of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the returns on capital, which the Company defines as net
operating income divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Company’s objectives when managing:

Consistent with the industry norms, the Company monitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings as shown in
the statement of financial position less cash and cash equivalent. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the statement of financial position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares.
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38. PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

38.1

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

Un-audited Audited

Size of the fund (net assets) 690,232,668  464,023,268  

Cost of investment made (actual investments made) (38.2) 126,955,075  124,601,173  

Percentage of investment made (cost of investments) 18.4% 26.9%

Fair value of investments 504,062,481         446,877,691  

The Company has maintained an employee provident fund trust and investments out of provident fund have been
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act 2017, and the rules formulated for
this purpose. The salient information of the fund is as follows:

38.2 Break-up of investments of provident fund

Rupees Rupees

Mutual funds 122,000,000  17.7% 121,601,173  26.2%
Defense saving certificates -  0.0% 3,000,000  0.6%
Equity 4,955,075  0.7% -  0.0%

126,955,075  18.4% 124,601,173  26.8%

39. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019

Total number of employees at the end of the year are as follows:
Regular

Contractual 1,259 1,527 
3,361 3,174 

2,102 1,647 

Average number of employees during the year are as follows:

Regular 1,837 1,449 
Contractual 1,308 1,381 

3,145 2,830 

40. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

40.1

41. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

43. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 3 March 2021 have proposed a final cash dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 of Rs. 3.5 (2019: Rs. 2.25) per share and 10% bonus issue for approval of the members at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 March 2021. These financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 do not include the effect of these appropriations.

Description

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on 3 March 2021 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation. However, no
significant re-arrangement / reclassifications have been made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows:

 % of 
investment
as size of
the fund 

InvestmentsInvestments

20192020
 % of 

investment
as size of
the fund 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Systems Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion 

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Systems Limited and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss , the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows  for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of consolidated financial position of 
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash 
flows for the year ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan / The Institute of Cost and 
Management Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Following are the key audit matters: 

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
1. Revenue recognition 

The Group’s revenue is derived from a number of 
revenue streams, as referred to in Note 24 to the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements, 
including outsourcing services and software sale in 
the form of short term and long term projects, 
sometimes leading to revenue being recognized over 
multiple accounting periods. These often include sale 
of software bundled with related customization / 
development and support services leading to multiple 
performance obligations in individual transactions. 

Further, as referred to in Note 33 to the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements, a 
significant portion of the Group’s revenue transactions 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included: 

Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the 
appropriateness of the Group’s revenue 
recognition policies including those relating to 
assessment of performance obligations and 
compliance of those policies with applicable 
accounting standards; 

Selecting a sample of revenue transactions 
recognized during the year and recalculating 
the revenue recognized along with evaluation 
of the management basis used in determining 
the performance obligations in accordance 
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Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
is with related parties.  

Revenue is recognized based on performance 
obligations as mentioned in Note 3.15 to the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements, 
which requires significant management judgement 
and estimates in relation to assessment of distinct 
performance obligations along with respective 
standalone selling prices and budgeting the cost to be 
incurred.  

Due to complexity of accounting for multiple revenue 
streams, significant judgement and estimation 
involved in the revenue recognition process and the 
significance of related party transactions to the 
Group’s revenue, we have identified revenue 
recognition as a key audit matter. 

with accounting policy; 

Performing substantive procedures on related 
party revenue transactions including review of 
contractual terms, underlying invoices, and 
analytical procedures; 

Performing substantive analytical procedures 
including monthly trend analysis of revenue by 
comparing the trends with our understanding 
of the business and external economic 
environment; 

Comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue 
transactions recorded before and after the 
reporting date with underlying documentation 
to assess whether revenue has been 
recognized in the appropriate accounting 
period; and 

Assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in 
respect of accounting policy, revenue 
recognized, and related party revenue 
transactions entered into during the year. 

2. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The Group’s consolidated financial statements 
comprise of transactions and balances of the parent 
company and its subsidiaries and sub-subsidiaries in 
foreign countries. Consolidating these financial 
statements involves translation of foreign entities’ 
financial statements, elimination of intercompany 
transactions and balances, and consolidation of the 
amounts and disclosures of each entity’s financial 
statements. 

Significant auditor attention is required in review of 
the consolidation schedules as the foreign exchange 
differences and intercompany transactions are 
material to the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, hence these are considered a Key Audit Matter. 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included: 

Reviewing the consolidation schedules in 
relation to translation of foreign currency 
transactions and balances at appropriate 
foreign exchange rates and the computation 
of resultant exchange differences. 

Cross-matching the intercompany 
transactions and balances with the respective 
financial statements of the entities for 
elimination of the same. 

Reviewing the arithmetic accuracy of the 
consolidation schedules.  

Reviewing the completeness of disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements by 
comparing with the relevant disclosures in 
each entity’s individual financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon  

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
 estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.   

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sajjad Hussain Gill.  

Chartered Accountants 
Lahore
10 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

TOTAL ASSETS 11,475,927,250    7,378,216,501     

 

15    
16

   
    

(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

ASSETS

Non-current assets 
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Long term deposits 
Advance against purchase of land
Right-of-use asset

Current assets 
Contract assets
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Interest accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Tax refunds due from the government
Cash and bank balances

Note

4
5

6

7
8
9

10

11
12
13
14

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital
200,000,000 (2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Capital reserves
Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit 

Non-controlling interest

Non-current liabilities 
Long term advances
Long Term loan
Lease liabilities
Provision for gratuity
Deferred grant

1,518,666,515 1,432,463,695 
204,249,277 186,746,196 

40,133,162 54,945,797 
- 28,750,000 

204,396,352 145,860,345 
1,967,445,306 1,848,766,033 

642,780,081 577,444,198 
2,372,716,741 1,749,074,142 

95,913,324 145,239,392 
438,473,348 368,768,673 

38,450,000 2,491,952 
118,222,637 180,821,432 

2,644,845,556 780,000,000      
171,975,691 209,458,326      

2,985,104,566 1,516,152,353

9,508,481,944 5,529,450,468 

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000   

1,246,060,140 1,235,202,990 
956,611,816 640,362,515 

5,626,952,295 3,674,024,548   
7,829,624,251 5,549,590,053 

146,389,075 (20,655,613) 
7,976,013,326 5,528,934,440   

53,857,626 28,652,726 
98,013,227 - 

189,409,537 129,188,921
47,599,384 27,360,907 

8,338,896 - 
397,218,670 185,202,554 

17
18
19

  
       

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Contract liabilities
Short term borrowings
Mark-up accrued on short term borrowings
Current portion of lease liabilities
Current portion of long term advances
Current portion of long term loan
Current portion of deferred grant

20 1,186,129,984 771,932,212 
7,617,635 8,345,525 

21 297,554,223 164,423,043 
22 1,449,000,000 672,000,000 

9,804,362 4,873,969 
37,983,731 29,284,595 
10,754,706 13,220,163 

100,754,617 - 
3,095,996 - 

3,102,695,254  1,664,079,507 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,475,927,250 7,378,216,501

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

131



(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

Revenue from contracts with customers 24 9,876,827,710    7,535,648,069    

Cost of revenue 25 (6,619,640,203)   (5,166,301,606)   

Gross profit 3,257,187,507 2,369,346,463    

Selling and distribution expenses 26 (201,024,729)      (178,002,387)      

Administrative expenses 27 (722,310,556) (698,066,995)      

Other operating expenses 28 (220,135,525) (163,532,016)      

(1,143,470,810) (1,039,601,398)   

Operating profit 2,113,716,697 1,329,745,065    

Other income 29 235,201,038 318,491,575       

Finance costs 30 (66,659,676) (47,022,121)        

Profit before taxation 2,282,258,059 1,601,214,519    

Taxation 31 (117,960,376) (33,281,698)        

Profit for the year 2,164,297,683 1,567,932,821    

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 2,209,645,930 1,587,316,864    

Non-controlling interest (45,348,247) (19,384,043)        

2,164,297,683 1,567,932,821    

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 35 17.78 12.86

Diluted earnings per share 35 17.43 12.75

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 2,164,297,683 1,567,932,821

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods

- -

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss 
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation 10,104,923 22,434,746 

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,174,402,606 1,590,367,567

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 2,219,750,853 1,609,751,610

Non-controlling interest (45,348,247) (19,384,043) 
2,174,402,606 1,590,367,567

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations (36) 2,466,896,526       1,895,128,152       

Finance costs paid (41,681,085)           (45,837,157)

Gratuity paid (6,323,733)             (6,297,671)

Taxes paid (74,261,306)           (73,466,595)

(122,266,124)         (125,601,423) 

Cash flows from operating activities 2,344,630,402       1,769,526,729 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (323,406,939)         (657,856,842)         
Decrease / (increase) in advance against payment of land 28,750,000            93,810,000            
Development expenditures (46,632,375)           (50,218,616)           
Sale proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 18,180,536            48,005,073            
Short term investments - net (1,864,845,556)      (485,000,000)         
Profit received on short term investments 101,544,758          57,391,884            
Revenue reserve of subsidiary 19,368,928            -       
Increase in long term deposits 14,812,635            (31,975,244)           

Cash used in investing activities (2,052,228,013)      (1,025,843,745)      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options 75,284,389            5,069,153
Proceeds from issuance of shares 410,002,641          -
Dividend paid (278,648,714)         (218,057,391) 
Long Term Loan 210,202,736          -
Short term borrowing 777,000,000          211,576,086
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (50,135,594)           (23,851,915)
Increase in long term advances 22,739,443            13,647,089

Cash flows from financing activities 1,166,444,901       (11,616,978)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,458,847,290       732,066,006

Net foreign exchange difference 10,104,923            22,434,746           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,516,152,353       761,651,601
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (14) 2,985,104,566       1,516,152,353 

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)
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(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Issued, 
subscribed
and paid up

capital

Share 
premium

Employee 
compensation 

reserve

Gain on 
dilution of 

interest

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

 Un-
appropriated 

profit 

 Total equity 
attributable to 

shareholders of 
Holding Company 

 Non 
controlling

interest 
Total equity

Balance as on 01 January 2019  1,122,135,480 505,511,843     27,568,374 - 26,808,010 2,488,343,457  4,170,367,164 (1,276,580) 4,169,090,584

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 22,434,746 1,587,316,864 1,609,751,610 (19,384,043) 1,590,367,567
Impact of adoption of IFRS-15 - - - - - (67,080,734) (67,080,734) - (67,080,734)

Transactions with owners

Issue of share capital - - - - - - - 5,010 5,010 

Exercise of share options 853,970 6,637,891 (2,422,708) - - - 5,069,153 - 5,069,153 

Forfieted share options - - (2,085,597) - - 2,085,597 - - - 

Share based payments - - 55,909,956 - - - 55,909,956 - 55,909,956 
Bonus issue 112,213,540   - - - - (112,213,540)   - - - 

- - - - - - - - - 
- - - - - (224,427,096)   (224,427,096) - (224,427,096)     

113,067,510   6,637,891         51,401,651       - - (334,555,039)   (163,447,987)         5,010 (163,442,977)     
Balance as on 31 December 2019  1,235,202,990 512,149,734     78,970,025       - 49,242,756     3,674,024,548  5,549,590,053       (20,655,613)    5,528,934,440    

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 10,104,923     2,209,645,930  2,219,750,853       (45,348,247)    2,174,402,606    
Revenue reserve of subsidiary (Note 1.2.7) - - - - - 19,368,928      19,368,928            - 19,368,928        

Transactions with owners
Exercise of share options 10,857,150 102,757,669 (38,330,430) - - - 75,284,389 - 75,284,389 
Issuance of shares at premium - - - - - - - 212,392,935 212,392,935 
Gain on dilution of interest (Note 1.2.5) - - - 197,609,706 - - 197,609,706 - 197,609,706 
Forfeited share options - - (3,017,856) - - 1,833,713 (1,184,143) - (1,184,143) 
Share based payments - - 47,125,289 - - - 47,125,289 - 47,125,289 

- 
- 

10,857,150     102,757,669     5,777,003 197,609,706  - (276,087,111)   40,914,417 212,392,935   253,307,352       

Balance as at 31 December 2020  1,246,060,140 614,907,403     84,747,028 197,609,706  59,347,679     5,626,952,295  7,810,255,323 146,389,075   7,976,013,326    

The annexed notes, from 1 to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
   at the rate of Rs. 2.25 per share

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
at the rate of Rs. 2 per share

- - 

Revenue 
reserve

Capital reserves

---------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------

- (277,920,824) (277,920,824) - (277,920,824) - 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 Holding Company

1.2 Subsidiary Companies

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

1.2.6

1.2.7

1.3 Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Group are as under:

Geographical 
Location

Lahore

Dubai

Systems Limited ("the Company") is a public limited Company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act,
2017 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is principallyengaged in the business of software
development, trading of softwareand business process outsourcing services. The registered office of the Company
is situated at E-1, Sehjpal Road, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue), Lahore Cantt.

Business Units

Head Office - Systems Limited

Address

Dubai Office - TechVista Systems FZ
LLC

TechVista Systems FZ - LLC, a limited liabilityCompany incorporated in Dubai Technology and Media Free Zone
Authority, is a 100% owned subsidiary of Systems Limited, Pakistan. The Company is engaged in the business of
developing software and providing ancillary services.

Systems Venture (Private) Limited, a private limited Company registered under the Companies Act, 2017
incorporated on 11 November 2019, is a 99.98% (2019: nil) owned subsidiary of Systems Limited. The Company is
aimed to invest in new ventures, start-ups and incubate new ideas.

TechVista Systems LLC is a Limited LiabilityCompany registered in the Emirate of Dubai under Federal Law No. 2
of 2015, is 100% controlled by TechVista Systems FZ-LLC. The Company is licensed as a software house.

E-1, Sehjpal, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue), 
Lahore Cantt.

TechVista Systems FZ LLC, Unit 105, Building 11, 
Dubai Internet City, Dubai Creative Clusters Authority, 

Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

TechVista Manpower LLC (TechVista MP LLC) , a Sole Establishment, duly licensed by Dubai Economic
Department, under License No. 800123, is 100% controlled by TechVista Systems FZ-LLC.

SUS JV Private Limited, a private limited company registered under the Companies Act, 2017 is a 95% owned
subsidiary of Systems Limited. The Company is set up for the Balochistan Land Revenue Management Information
Systems project. The project is related to digitization of land records and development of a web-based management
information system.

E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited, a private limited Company registered under the Companies Act, 2017
incorporated on 06 February 2013, is a 44.60% (2019: 55%) owned subsidiary of Systems Limited. The Company is
principally engaged in the business of purchase and sale of airtime and related services. During the year, the
subsidiary has issued 80,491 shares at a premium of Rs. 5,084 per share to the International Finance Corporation
which has resulted into dilution of interest of the Holding Company. However, the management has assessed that
the Holding Company maintains the control of the entity. The gain on dilution of interest has been recognized in the
statement of changes in equity.

TechVista Systems Pty Ltd, is a fully owned subsidiary of Techvista Systems FZ LLC and was incorporated in
December 2014 in Australia with the paid up share capital of AUD 1. This subsidiary has been identified by the
management of the Holding Company during the year as a result of review of the related party relationships. The
management considers that the subsidiary is an insignificant component of the group and its net assets are also
immaterial, therefore it has been incorporated prospectively in these consolidated financial statements.

DubaiDubai Office - TechVista Systems LLC
TechVista Systems LLC, Office 1905, Regal Tower 

Business Bay, Dubai, UAE
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Geographical 
Location

Dubai

Lahore

Australia

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

- Provisions and directives issued under the Act.

2.2 Basis of preparation

2.3 Principles of consolidation

2.3.1 Subsidiaries

2.3.2 Non-controlling interest

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Systems Limited and its subsidiary
companies, here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

A Company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or
holds more than fiftypercent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty
percent of its directors.

Dubai Office - TechVista MP LLC
TechVista Systems MP LLC, Office 603, 6th Floor, 

Exchange Tower, Business Bay, Dubai, UAE 

Systems Venture (Pvt) Ltd.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company,
using consistent accounting policies.

Geographical Location and address of the E-processing Systems (private) Limited and SUS (private) Limited is
same as of the Holding Company.

E-1, Sehjpal, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue), 
Lahore Cantt.

TechVista Pty Limited G Seat 3', 30 Cowper Street, Parramatta NSW 2150

Business Units Address

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Holding Company obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) ; and 

All inter-Company balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting from inter-Company
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and
carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’
shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Non‐controllinginterest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the subsidiaries which are not
owned by the Group either directly or indirectly. Non-controlling interest is presented as a separate item in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non‐controllinginterests
as transactions withparties external to the Group. Disposals to non‐controllinginterest result in gains and losses for
the Group and are recorded in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act, differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act , have been followed.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees,
which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. 
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2.5 Use of estimates and judgments

2.5.1 Provision for taxation (Note 3.3)

2.5.2 Useful life and residual values of property and equipment (Note 3.4)

2.5.3 Expected credit losses (Note 3.9.1)

2.5.4 Revenue recognition (Note 3.12)

2.5.4.1 Identification of distinct performance obligations

2.5.4.2 Estimating stand-alone selling prices of performance obligations

2.5.4.3 Stage of completion

2.5.5 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options (Note 3.17)

The Group's significant accounting policies are stated in Note 3. Not all of these significant policies require the
management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The followingis intended to provide
an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment of
estimation involved in their application and their impact on these consolidated financial statements. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in
respect of futureevents and the actual resultsmay differfrom these estimates. The areas involving higher degree of
judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

The Group reviews the useful lives of propertyand equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future
years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of propertyand equipment with a corresponding effect
on the depreciation charge and impairment.

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances
where the Group's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and
where the Group considers that its views on items of material nature are in accordance with law, the amounts are
shown as contingent liabilities.

The Group determines stand-alone selling prices of all performance obligations in a bundled contract, which include
sale of license, implementation, support, warrantyand training. The totaltransaction price is allocated to all distinct
performance obligations based on estimated cost of completion, plus target margin on each of the performance
obligations.

The Group determines stage of completion on the basis of cost incurred to date as a percentage of totalestimated
cost to deliver the performance obligations.

For contracts with multiple components to be delivered, the Group applies judgement to determine performance
obligations which are distinct; or not distinct, which are aggregated withother performance obligations until a bundle
is identified that is distinct.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for an additional term. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whetherit is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew i.e. it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy).  

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, and customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group calibrates the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information which includes forecast
economic conditions. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
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2.5.6 Provisions (Note 3.11)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 New, amended standards and interpretations which became effective

3.2

3.3 Taxation

3.3.1 Current

IAS 1 and IAS 8 Presentation of Financial Statements & Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors: Definition of Material, to clarify the definition of material and its alignment with the definition used in the 
Conceptual Framework (amendments)

Interests in joint operations

Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;

Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly

Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and

When Group transacts with a joint operation in which a Group is a joint operator, the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognized in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of other parties' interests in the
joint operation.

When Group transacts with a joint operation in which Group is a joint operator, the Group does not recognize its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

The Group has interest in joint operation UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited, a Group set up specifically for
executing multi-year contract “Package 04A – Airport Information Management System (AIMS)”, a turnkey project
for New Islamabad International Airport by Pakistan Civil Aviation Authority.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Definition of business (amendments)

Amendments to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

IFRS 16 - Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions (amendments)

A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflowof economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group has adopted the following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which
became effective for the current year and had material impact on the accounting policies and financial statements:

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of consolidated financial statements
of the Group are consistent with previous year except as described in Note 3.1, below:

IFRS 9, IAS 39 & IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (amendments)

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rightsto
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractuallyagreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When the Group undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognizes in relation
to its interest in a joint operation:

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to
be applied to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the
year for such years.
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3.3.2 Deferred 

3.4 Property and equipment 

3.4.1 Operating fixed assets

3.4.2 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any.

3.5 Intangibles

- Completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so that it will be available for use or sale.

- The Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

- The Group has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

- Intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

-

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is significant.

Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred;

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Profit or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets represented by the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included in income. 

Depreciation on propertyand equipment is charged to income by applying straightline method on pro-rata basis so
as to write off the historical cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 4.
Depreciation charge commences from the month in which the asset is available for use and continues until the
month of disposal.

Development costs incurred on specific projects are capitalized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

Capital work in progress represents expenditure on propertyand equipment which are in the course of construction
and installation. Transfers are made to relevant propertyand equipment category as and when assets are available
for use.  

Intangible assets acquired from the market are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment
losses.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can 

The availabilityof adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset.

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.
Freehold land is stated at historic cost. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of purchase cost, borrowing cost
pertaining to construction period and directlyattributablecost of bringing the asset to working condition. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognized as separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to consolidated Statement of profitor loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantivelyenacted by the reportingdate. Deferred tax is charged or credited
in the Statement of profitor loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income in
which case it is included in other comprehensive income.

-

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management,
Development costs not meeting the criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred.

The Group's ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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After initial recognition, internallygenerated intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using straight line method at the rate given in note 5. Full month
amortization on additions is charged in the month of acquisition and no amortization is charged in month of
disposal.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.7 Staff benefits

3.7.1 Provident fund

3.7.2 Employees' share option scheme

3.7.3 Gratuity

When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in
excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are
written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in consolidated
Statement of profitor loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted in the futureperiods to allocate
the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Holding Company initially recognizes employee
compensation expense with corresponding credit to equity as employee compensation reserve at the fair value of
option at the grant date. The fair value of options determined at the grant date is recognized as an employee
compensation expense on a straightline basis over the vesting period. Fair value of options is arrived at using Black
Scholes pricing model

Provision is made for TechVista (the ''Subsidiary'') employees' end of service benefits in accordance with the UAE
Federal labor laws.

The Group has the following plans for its employees:

The Holding Company operates a funded recognized provident fund contributionplan which covers all its permanent
employees. Equal contributions are made on monthly basis both by the Holding Group and the employees at 10% of 
basic pay.

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset
may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

The Holding Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme. The
compensation committee of the Board of Directors of the Company evaluates the performance and other criteria of
employees and approves the grant of options. These options vest withemployees over a specified period subject to
fulfillmentof certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Company's
shares at a price determined on the date of grant of options.

Impairment loss recognized in prior periods is assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated futurecash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of assets (the “cash
generating unit, or CGU”). 
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3.8 Foreign currency transactions

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date. Transactions during the year are converted into Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of such transaction. All exchange differences are charged to consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

3.9 Trade debts

3.9.1 Expected credit losses

3.10 Advances, deposits and other receivables

These are recognized at nominal amount which is fair value, if considerations to be received in future.

3.11 Trade and other payables

3.12 Provisions and contingencies

3.13 Revenue recognition

3.13.1 Professional services

3.13.2 License and license support services

3.13.3 Outsourcing services

3.13.4 Sale of third party software

Trade debts from local customers are stated at amortized cost less expected credit losses while foreign debtors are
stated at translated amount by applying exchange rate applicable on the reporting date.

Revenue is recognized at the point in time when obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer are
satisfied; generally this occurs when control of the softwarehas transferredand there is no unfulfilledobligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the software usually on delivery of the software.

Revenue from license contracts withoutmajor customization is recognized when the license agreement is signed,
delivery of software has occurred, fee is fixed or determinable and collectabilityis probable. Revenue from license
contracts with major modification, customization and development is recognized on percentage of completion
method. Revenue from support services is recognized on time proportion basis.

Revenue from business process outsourcing services is recognized on completion of processing. Revenue from
other outsourcing services is recognized as services are provided.

Revenue from professional / software services includes fixed price contracts and time and material contracts.
Revenue from services performed under fixed price contracts is recognized in accordance with the percentage of
completion method. Revenue from services performed under time and material contracts is recognized as services
are provided.

Provisions are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflowof resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However,
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. Where outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, a contingent liabilityis disclosed, unless the possibilityof
outflow is remote.

Liabilities for trade and other payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and services.

Expected credit losses are calculated as a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls(i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Group expects to receive). (Refer to note 3.14.4 for detailed
policy for impairment of financial assets).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their Statement of profit or loss are translated at average rates
prevailing during the year. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognized in
consolidated other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of consolidated other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in consolidated Statement of profit
or loss.
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3.13.5 Sale and purchase of air time and related services

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amount received and
receivable from the sale of air time and related services in normal course of business, net of discounts, if any.
Revenue from sale of air time is recognized when air time is transferred to customers.
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amount received and
receivable from the sale of air time and related services in normal course of business, net of discounts, if any.
Revenue from sale of air time is recognized when air time is transferred to customers.

3.13.6 Contract Assets

3.13.7 Contract Liabilities

3.14 Other income

3.15

3.16 Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

3.16.1

3.16.2 Classification

3.16.2.1

The Group classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

-  at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),

-  at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or

- at amortized cost.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

- 

- 

Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions willbe complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset. 

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts
and released to consolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the
pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Initial Recognition

Classification of financial assets

The Group determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments
(other than equity instruments) is driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

the financial asset is held withina business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

A contract asset is initially recognized for revenue earned because the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of the milestones as per contract. Upon completion of the milestone and acceptance by the
customer, the amount recognized as contract assets is reclassified to trade debts.

A contract liabilityis recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the related goods or services are transferred. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue as and when
performance obligations are delivered under the contract.

Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as " fair value through profit or loss" are
included in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

All financial assets and liabilities are initiallymeasured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be.

Profiton deposit account and gain on short term investments and other income is recognized using effective interest
rate method.
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- 

- 

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

3.16.2.2 Classification of financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

-   at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), or

-   at amortized cost.

3.16.3 Subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

3.16.4 Impairment of financial assets

-

-

ECLs are a probabilityweighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls(i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and cash
flows that the Group expects to receive).

The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized
cost at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following, which are measured at 12 month ECLs:

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as
instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Elected investments in equity instrumentsat FVTOCI are initiallyrecognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive income / (loss).

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initiallyrecognized at fair value, and subsequently carried
at amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realized and unrealized gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are
included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Where management has opted to recognize a financial liabilityat FVTPL, any changes associated with the Group’s
own credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs. Life time ECLs are
the ECLs that result from all possible defaults events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12 month
ECLs are portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

other short term loans and receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since inception.

bank balances for whom credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument has not increased since the inception.)
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ii) Financial liabilities

3.16.6 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

3.17 Finance costs

Finance cost is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

3.19 Leases

3.19.1 Right-of-use assets

3.19.2 Lease liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of
the consolidated cash flowstatement, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash in hand, cheques/demand
drafts in hand and deposits in the bank.

The Group recognizes right-of-useassets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-useassets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-useassets are depreciated on a
straight-linebasis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to
impairment.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.  

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

A financial asset and a financial liabilityis offsetand the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if the Group has legal enforceable rightto set off the recognized amount and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3.20 Dividends and appropriation reserves

Dividends and other appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which
these are approved. However, if they are approved after the reportingperiod but before the financial statements are
authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

3.21 Earnings per share

3.22 Segment reporting

3.23 Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounting 
Standards that are not yet effective

Effective Date
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods 

beginning on or after)

Not yet finalized

IAS 16 amendment regarding proceeds before intended use 01 January 2022

01 January 2022

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or
interpretation:

IAS 37 amendment regarding onerous contract

The changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Annual Improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16 Leases

IAS 1 amendment regarding the classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current

01 January 2022

01 January 2021

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations update a reference in IFRS 3
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the
accounting requirements for business combinations.

01 January 2022

IFRS 10 & IAS 28 - Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture  – (Amendment)

01 January 2023

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profitafter
tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profitattributableto ordinary equity holders
of the parent (after adjustment) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a
component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses thatrelate to transactions withany of the Group’s other components. An operating
segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to assess segment's
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Segment results that are reported to the CEO
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly other operating expenditures, other income, finance cost, corporate assets,
income tax assets and liabilities. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property and equipment.
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IASB effective date 
Standard (Annual periods 

beginning on or after)

IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 01 July 2009

In addition to the above, the followingnew standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

2020 2019
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees

Operating fixed assets (4.1) 1,517,920,243  1,408,438,451          

Capital work in progress (4.2) 746,272 24,025,244  

1,518,666,515        1,432,463,695           

 As at 
01 January 

 Additions 
 Exchange 
difference 

 As at 31 
December 

 As at 
01 January 

 Depreciation
charge for

the year 
 Disposals 

 Exchange 
difference 

 As at 31 
December 

Land - free hold
345,277,701 48,760,578 - 394,038,279 - - - - - 394,038,279         -

Building
535,883,365       6,841,345 - 542,724,710         28,052,455       13,520,924 - - 41,573,379           501,151,331 2.5

Computers and mobile sets
- -   - - - - - - 33

Computer equipment and installations
480,033,505       111,626,559         432,892              576,340,543         298,915,616     109,724,623 (14,149,993)        198,139 394,688,385         181,652,158         33

Other equipment and installations
116,382,926 16,360,054                - 132,698,680         39,820,228       22,520,462 (44,300) - 62,296,390           70,402,290           20

Generators
49,814,973 44,113,920 - 93,928,893           16,667,174       6,740,821 - (1,620) 23,406,375           70,522,518           10

Furniture and fittings
112,647,514 19,261,360                153,173              132,004,372         55,369,867       9,324,098 (18,845) 26,251 64,701,371           67,303,001           10

Vehicles
231,304,821 72,958,264         435,994              281,853,054         70,242,930       49,492,483 (9,641,338)          323,567 110,417,642         171,435,412         20

Office equipment
44,205,779         1,700,467                24,830 45,906,832           14,969,213       4,273,588 (2,380) 9,631 19,250,052           26,656,780           10

Leasehold Improvements          20,119,599 
24,571,156 - 44,690,755                     3,192,962 6,739,319 - - 9,932,281             34,758,474           

24.5
1,935,670,183 346,193,703     

 Disposals 

- 

- 

(15,752,413)

(44,300)

- 

(57,675)

(22,846,025)

(24,244)

- 

(38,724,657)        1,046,889 2,244,186,118      527,230,445     222,336,318 (23,856,856)        555,968 726,265,875         1,517,920,243      

 As at 
01 January  Additions  Disposals  Exchange 

difference 
 As at 31 

December 
 As at 

01 January 

 Depreciation
charge for
the year 

 Disposal  Exchange 
difference 

 As at 31 
December 

Land - free hold
53,030,412         292,247,289     - - 345,277,701 - - - - - 345,277,701         -

Building
491,815,528       44,067,837       - - 535,883,365         14,208,756       13,843,699        - - 28,052,455           507,830,910         2.5

Computers and mobile sets
-       -        

Computer equipment and installations
349,232,002       136,412,806 (7,706,735) 2,032,416           479,970,489         238,165,342     65,215,751        (6,130,557) 1,639,870 298,890,406         181,080,083         33

Other equipment and installations
79,120,035         37,594,061 (331,170)             -       116,382,926         24,071,679       15,988,732        (240,183) - 39,820,228           76,562,698           20

Generators
47,406,753         2,408,220 -                      -       49,814,973           12,447,458       4,219,716          - - 16,667,174           33,147,799           10

Furniture and fittings
92,151,884         22,468,654 (2,586,755) 613,204              112,646,987         49,826,026       6,811,541          (1,695,558) 416,805 55,358,814           57,288,173           10

Vehicles
171,949,668       105,737,074 (49,427,937)        3,044,587           231,303,392         45,493,069       42,980,165        (20,744,747)        2,518,639 70,247,126           160,850,264         20

Office equipment
41,344,026         2,881,205 (155,115)             135,581              44,205,697           11,119,610       3,882,112          (135,500) 100,796 14,967,018           29,238,679           10

Leasehold Improvements
8,783,220           11,336,379 - - 20,119,599           - 2,957,455          - - 2,957,455             17,162,144           24.5

1,334,833,528    655,153,525     (60,207,712)        5,825,788 1,935,605,129      395,331,940     155,899,171 (28,946,545)        4,676,110 526,960,676         1,408,438,451      

------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Rate
% 

 Rate
% 

2020

DESCRIPTION

2019

DESCRIPTION

Cost Accumulated Depreciation

Cost Accumulated Depreciation

------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Net book 
value as at 

31 December 

 Net book 
value as at 

31 December 

4.1.1 The cost of owned assets include assets amounting to Rs. 319.5 (2019: Rs. 237.3) million with nil book value.

4.1.2 Immovable fixed assets include freehold Land and Building situated at E-1, Sehjpal, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue),
Lahore Cantt. Total area of land is 18.17 kanals.
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2020 2019
4.2 Capital Work In Progress Note Rupees Rupees

Building on freehold land - -  

Transformer 746,272 24,025,244 

(4.2.1) 746,272 24,025,244              

4.2.1 The following is the movement in capital work-in-progress during the year:

Balance at the beginning of the year 24,025,244  22,471,605  
Additions during the year 13,251,015 14,044,235 
Transfer to operating fixed assets (4.2.2) (36,529,987)  (12,490,596) 

Balance at the end of the year 746,272 24,025,244 

4.2.2 Transfers to operating fixed assets relate to generators and transformer.

4.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue (25) 183,243,480               127,712,309
Distribution expenses (26) 2,383,210 1,955,004  
Administrative expenses (27) 36,709,628  26,231,858 

222,336,318 155,899,171

4.4 Disposal of property and equipment 

Details of disposed assets which had a net book value of Rs. 500,000 or more, are as follows:

Accumulated Written  Sale Mode of
depreciation down value proceeds disposal

Vehicles
Employees

Honda City 1,641,600 684,000 957,600 2,014,998  1,057,398  Group Policy Ahmed Azmat
Honda City 2,315,000 347,247 1,967,753  2,511,000  543,247 Group Policy Syed Saud Akhter
Honda City 1,924,000 513,071 1,410,929  1,778,985  368,056 Group Policy Samar Abbas
Toyota Altis 1.8 2,420,250 369,673 2,050,577  2,279,000  228,423 Group Policy Syed Afzal Nizam
Honda Civic 1.8 2,467,230 249,202 2,218,028  1,930,970  (287,058) Group Policy Muhammad Wajhe Ullah

Third party
Toyota Corolla GLI 2,558,000 85,266 2,472,734  1,868,386  (604,348) Group Policy Pak Auto Workshop
Aggregate of items of property and equipment  
with individual book value below Rs. 500,000 25,398,577  21,608,397  3,790,180      5,797,197  2,007,017       
2020 38,724,657 23,856,856 14,867,801  18,180,536  3,312,735 

Employees
Honda Civic 2,522,710       1,680,320         842,390         2,014,998 1,172,608 Group Policy Zahid Janjua
Honda Civic VTI 2,503,000       782,188            1,720,812 2,511,000 790,188 Group Policy Imran Hussain
Corolla GLI 2,372,000       553,467            1,818,533 1,778,985 (39,548)          Group Policy Abid Hanif
Toyota Altis 1.6 2,279,000       417,817            1,861,183 2,279,000 417,817 Group Policy Naureen Anwar
Honda Civic 1.8 2,032,600       101,630            1,930,970 1,930,970 -                 Group Policy Ahmed Saeed
Toyota Corolla 1.6 A/T 2,019,060       1,486,253         532,808         1,900,000 1,367,192 Group Policy Salman Wajid
Honda City 1,903,500       190,350            1,713,150 1,868,386 155,236 Group Policy Wasif Mazhar
Honda City 1.3 1,873,000       437,033            1,435,967 1,729,350 293,383 Group Policy Zohaib Hassan
Honda BRV 1,815,785       423,683            1,392,102 1,733,000 340,898 Group Policy Imran Javed Zia
Corolla Altis 1.6 1,810,500       331,925            1,478,575 1,810,500 331,925 Group Policy Baidar Bakht
Toyota Corolla 1.3 GLI 2,259,600       143,660            2,115,940 2,074,620 (41,320)          Group Policy Faisal Khan
Toyota Corolla Altis 1,563,840       521,280            1,042,560 1,351,439 308,879 Group Policy Mian Habib
Honda City Aspire 1,553,000       659,003            893,997         1,280,436 386,439 Group Policy Faisal Noor
Toyota Corolla XLI 1,550,340       387,585            1,162,755 1,567,980 405,225 Group Policy Shoaib Ali
Honda Civic 1.8 1,537,000       719,562            817,438         1,537,000 719,562 Group Policy Wajhe Ullah
Toyoal Corolla GLI 1.3 1,537,000       744,333            792,667         1,537,305 744,638 Group Policy Muhammad Aijaz
Toyota Altis 1.8 1,537,000       875,864            661,136         1,553,000 891,864 Group Policy Aurangzeb
Honda Civic 1.8 2,353,000       980,417            1,372,583 1,427,147 54,564            Group Policy Waseem Jaffer
Suzuki Cultus 1,137,110       246,374            890,736         1,537,000 646,264 Group Policy Farhan Umair

Third party
Honda Civic 2,337,268  1,573,266         764,002         1,950,000 1,185,998 Negotiation Regal Motors
Honda City Aspire 1,873,000 696,993            1,176,005      1,899,998 723,993          Negotiation Regal Motors
Toyota Corolla 1,791,950 1,125,302         666,648         1,775,000 1,108,352 Negotiation Regal Motors
Honda City 1.3 1,662,226 304,741            1,357,485      1,804,162 446,677          Negotiation Regal Motors
Aggregate of items of property and equipment  
   with individual book value below Rs. 500,000 16,384,223  13,563,498 2,820,725  7,153,797  4,333,072

----------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------

Particulars Cost Gain / (Loss) Particulars 
of buyer

2019 60,207,712 28,946,545 31,261,167    48,005,073   16,743,906 
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Note

2020 2019

5. INTANGIBLES

Rupees

2020
Rupees

2019
Rupees

Rupees

Computer software and licenses 148,588,633 61,020,223            
Software under development 55,660,644 1,607,897  

204,249,277             186,746,196            

5.1 Computer software  and licenses

Accumulated Amortization Accumulated Book value
amortization as charge amortization as as at

at 1 January for the year at 31 December 31 December

Computer software

 and licenses 325,817,444   - - 325,817,444  148,099,517 29,129,294 - 177,228,811 148,588,633  33%

Accumulated Amortization Accumulated Book value

amortization as charge amortization as as at

at 1 January for the year at 31 December 31 December

Computer software

 and licenses 282,553,678   43,263,766   - 325,817,444  111,566,160 36,533,357 - 148,099,517 177,717,927  33%

5.2 The cost of the intangibles include assets amounting to Rs. 130 million (2019: Rs. 81.7 million) with nil book value.

5.3 Amortization charge for the year has been 

Note

(5.1)

allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue (25)             24,917,618          31,584,129 

Distribution expenses (26) 255,061 398,665            

Administrative expenses (27) 3,956,615 4,550,563

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Rate
Additions

Cost as at 
31 December

Cost as at 
01 January

RateCost as at 
01 January

Additions
Cost as at 

31 December

Disposals Disposals

Disposals Disposals
Particulars

Particulars

2020

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2019

29,129,294 36,533,357         

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the year:

As at 1 January 145,860,345 -  
Additions 99,007,148   182,325,431 

Depreciation expense (6.1) (40,471,141)    (36,465,086)

Balance as at 31 December    204,396,352   145,860,345 
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

6.1 The depreciation charge for the year on right-of-use assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue (25)         15,379,034        13,919,406 

Distribution expenses (26)           2,832,980          2,410,143 

Administrative expenses (27)         22,259,128        20,135,537 

        40,471,142        36,465,086 

7. CONTRACT ASSETS

Unbilled revenue (7.1) 590,183,650  517,883,251  
Retention money 52,596,431  59,560,947       

642,780,081  577,444,198     

7.1 Unbilled revenue

Export    468,989,680   143,177,956 

Local    210,464,898   451,842,921 

   679,454,578   595,020,877 

Less: Allowance for ECLs (7.1.1)    (89,270,928)    (77,137,626)

   590,183,650   517,883,251 

 2020  2019 

 Visionet 
Deutschland 

GMBH 

 Visionet 
Deutschland 

GMBH 

   135,801,761   171,932,162 

        47,873,522          5,788,798 

- More than six months but not more than twelve months           3,932,960             806,961 

- More than twelve months -  

-  

              46,343 

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding by reference to 
month-end balances was as follows:

Visionet Deutschland GMBH    275,359,167 

7.1.1 Balance as at 01 January         77,137,626        90,817,128 
(Recovery) / Expense for the year - net           9,812,284    (11,033,046)

Balances written off during the year -          (3,856,332)

Foreign exchange movement           2,321,018          1,209,876 

- Not more than three months

- More than three months but not more than six months

Balance as at 31 December         89,270,928        77,137,626 

150



Note
2020

Rupees
2019

Rupees

2020
Rupees

2019
Rupees

2020
Rupees

2019
Rupees

7.1.2

8. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good - unsecured:
Export (8.1) 1,979,840,352  1,378,233,113

Local 677,703,491  539,050,836  
2,657,543,843  1,917,283,949 

Less: Allowance for ECLs / Provision for doubtful debts (8.2) (284,827,102)    (168,209,807)   
2,372,716,741 1,749,074,142 

8.1 Aging analysis of the amounts due from related parties is as follows:

Visionet 
Systems 

Incorporation
 - USA

 Visionet 
Deutschland 

GMBH  

Visionet 
Systems 

Incorporation
 - USA

 Visionet 
Deutschland 

GMBH  

- Not more than one month 500,276,276  18,539,554  322,603,932 -  
- More than one month but not more 

      than three months 609,446,087  -  371,854,773 -  
- More than three months but not more 

      than nine months -  -  8,876,800 -  
1,109,722,363  18,539,554  703,335,505 -  

8.1.1 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding by reference to 

month-end balances was as follows:

Visionet Systems Incorporation - USA 1,354,441,348 1,190,043,500 
Visionet Deutschland GMBH 18,539,554 -  
TechVista Information Technology - Qatar 113,964,932 9,379,647  

8.2 Allowance for ECLs / Provision of doubtful debts

Balance as at 01 January    168,209,807 51,263,930  
Addition during the year    199,362,254 211,486,773 
Reversal during the year -  (86,831,507)  
Expense for the year    199,362,254 124,655,266  
Balances written off during the year    (22,372,056) (2,384,782)       
Foreign exchange movement    (60,372,903) (5,324,607) 
Balance as at 31 December (8.2.2)    284,827,102 168,209,807  

8.2.2 These include allowance for ECLs against receivables from related party, TechVista Information Technology (Qatar)
amounting to Rs. 97.17 million (2019: 48.87 million).

2019

-------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------

2020

These represent unbilled debtors arising due to recognition of revenue upon delivery of performance obligations as
per contract on the basis of percentage of completion as per IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers.
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2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Note

9. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to staff:

against salary 11,529,183 6,768,889 
against expenses 3,061,469  28,273,442       

14,590,652  35,042,331  
Advances to suppliers - against goods 81,322,672       110,197,061

95,913,324 145,239,392  
Loans to related parties (9.1) 300,431,066 195,941,404 
Elimination on account of Joint Operation (300,431,066)    (195,941,404)   

- - 
95,913,324       145,239,392  

9.1

10. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits 347,689,182     169,824,046     
Prepayments 90,784,166       198,944,627     

438,473,348     368,768,673     

11. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables from related parties (11.1) 115,151,066  180,821,432     
Others 3,071,571         -  

118,222,637     180,821,432     

11.1 These include balances due from the following related parties:

TechVista Information Technology Qatar - related party 106,415,131 180,821,432     
Visionet Deutschland GMBH 993,495            -  
Visionet Systems Incorporation - USA 7,742,440         -  

115,151,066 180,821,432     

12. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Fair value through profit and loss
- Mutual fund units (12.1) 559,845,556

-  
Amortized cost
- Term deposit receipts (TDRs) (12.2) 2,085,000,000

  
780,000,000
     2,644,845,556 780,000,000

12.1 The details of investment in mutual funds are as follows:

UBL Al-Ameen Asset Islamic Allocation Fund 51,952,710       -  
Number of units : 409,056 (2019: Nil)

Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund 51,291,201  -  
Number of units : 502,485 (2019: Nil)

HBL Asset Islamic Allocation Fund 51,444,992       -  
Number of units : 460,820 (2019: Nil)

Lakson Islamic Tactical Fund 52,449,350       -  
Number of units : 534,122 (2019: Nil)

Meezan Balanced Fund 100,590,950     -  
Number of units : 6,450,950 (2019: Nil)

Meezan Islamic Income Fund 50,337,808       -  

This represents loan provided to UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited for meeting working capital requirements. This
amount is unsecured and carries interest at one-year KIBOR on the outstanding loan balance at the end of each
month.

Number of units : 944,653 (2019 : Nil)

NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund 201,778,545  
-Number of units : 12,352,453 (2019 : Nil)

559,845,556 
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2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2019
Rupees

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

8.1.1

(8.2.2)

12.2 The details of investments in TDRs are as follows:

Faysal Bank Limited 400,000,000  -  
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 1,660,000,000 555,000,000  
Habib Bank Limited 25,000,000  25,000,000  
Meezan Bank limited -  200,000,000  

(12.2.1) 2,085,000,000  780,000,000     

12.2.1

13. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT - net

Income Tax    171,975,691   198,486,970

Sales Tax -        10,971,356

      171,975,691   209,458,326

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 917,983  1,651,049  
Balances with banks:
Local currency:

Current accounts 1,211,562,880 388,309,463     
Saving accounts (14.1)&(14.2) 766,496,179 1,108,287,817

1,978,059,059 1,496,597,280  
Foreign currency - current accounts 1,006,127,524 17,904,024  

2,985,104,566 1,516,152,353

14.1 These carry markup at the rate of 3.10% to 11.50% (2019: 9% to 11.25%) per annum. 

14.2

15. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2020 2019

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- 

24,533,095  23,447,380               each fully paid in cash 245,330,950  234,473,800     

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

100,072,919  100,072,919             fully paid up as bonus shares 1,000,729,190 1,000,729,190 
124,606,014  123,520,299         1,246,060,140 1,235,202,990  

15.1 Reconciliation of ordinary shares

2020 2019

123,520,299  112,213,548         Balance at 1 January 1,235,202,990 1,122,135,480

-  11,221,354           Issuance of bonus shares -  112,213,540 
1,085,715  85,397  Stock options exercised 10,857,150 853,970            

124,606,014  123,520,299         Balance at 31 December 1,246,060,140 1,235,202,990  

16. CAPITAL RESERVES

(Number of shares)

(Number of shares)

These include margin amount of Rs. 364.63 (2019: Rs. 239.69) million held under lien by the banks against

guarantees issued by them on behalf of the Group.

These carry markup at rates ranging from 6% to 12.75% (2019: 12.25% to
12.65%) per annum.

Share premium reserve (16.1) 614,907,403 512,149,734 
Employee compensation reserve (16.2) 84,747,028 78,970,025  
Gain on dilution of interest (1.2.5) 197,609,706 -  
Translation reserve on foreign operations 59,347,679 49,242,756  

956,611,816 640,362,515  
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16.1

16.2

16.3

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price

 Number of 
options 

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price

 Number of 
options 

Rupees Number Rupees Number

Outstanding at 01 January 77.46 2,479,946           80.73 1,374,396        
Granted during the year

75.34 1,529,034           - -
- - 73.34 1,331,912        

122.23 200,000 - - 
Forfeited share options 72.34 (469,643) 80.73 (140,965)
Exercised during the year:

- - 45.98 (11,050)

62.58 (316,831)             62.58 (74,347)

72.13 (768,884)             - -
Outstanding at 31 December 83.84 2,653,622 77.46 2,479,946

Vested and exercisable at 31 December 72.13 17,676 62.12 344,004            

*
**

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs. 67.72 (2019: Rs. 39.3)

2020 2019

Dividend yield 2% 2%
Expected volatility 32% - 40% 36%
Risk–free interest rate  7.30% & 7.80% 11.85%
Expected life of share options (years)  2.1  2.2 
Weighted average share price  Rs. 132.47  Rs. 96 
Model used  Black Scholes  Black Scholes 

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 is 3.80 
years (2019: 3.61 years)

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year is Rs.72.13 to Rs.122.23 (2019: Rs. 45.98 
to Rs. 73.38)

20192020

The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of these options was Rs. 96.32 (2019: Rs. 96.02)

The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of these options was Rs. 143.84.

- stock options awarded in 2018**

The followingtable illustratesthe number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, share options
during the year:

This reserve shall be utilized only for the purpose as specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act 2017.

This represents balance amount after exercise of share options by the employees under the Employee Stock Option
Scheme approved by the SECP. According to the scheme, 100% options become exercisable after completion of
vesting period from the date of grant. The options have a vesting period of 2 years and an exercise period of 3 years
from the date the option is vested.

- stock options awarded in January

- stock options awarded in April 

- stock options awarded in July

- stock options awarded in 2016*

- stock options awarded in 2017*

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the plan for the years ended 31 December 2020  and 2019, 
respectively :

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatilityover a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome. 
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Note

17. LONG TERM ADVANCES (17.1) 53,857,626  28,652,726       

17.1

18. 2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

MCB Bank Limited    190,641,884 -
-
-
-

Add: Unwinding of interest           8,125,960
(18.1)    198,767,844

Less: Current portion   (100,754,617)
        98,013,227

18.1

19. LEASE LIABILITIES

Present value of lease rentals    227,393,268   158,473,516

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities    (37,983,731)    (29,284,595)

   189,409,537   129,188,921

Not later than one year           58,298,375         20,314,644        37,983,731

Later than one year but not later than five years         169,649,601         41,165,952   128,483,649

Later than five years           69,530,724           8,604,836        60,925,888
        297,478,700         70,085,432   227,393,268

Not later than one year           46,497,938         17,213,342        29,284,596
Later than one year but not later than five years         153,913,985         24,725,065

        200,411,923         41,938,407   158,473,516

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

These represent advances received from staffand willbe adjusted as per Group's car policy against sale of vehicles.
The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of
long term loans is considered insignificant by the management. 

Lease Rentals
Finance cost 

for future 
periods

-----------------Rupees---------------

Finance cost for 
future periods

Principal 
outstanding

2019
-----------------Rupees---------------

2020

Principal 
outstanding

LONG TERM LOAN

This represents loan of Rs. 210 million obtained under Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to
Workers and Employees of Business Concerns (the Scheme) offered by State Bank of Pakistan to mitigate the effect
of COVID-19 on employment in Pakistan. The facilityhas an aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 315 million. It carries
mark-up at SBP rate plus 1% per annum and is secured against a pari passu charge of Rs. 1,326.7 million over the
present and futurecurrent assets of the Group and 1st exclusive equitable mortgage and hypothecationcharge of Rs.
1,066.7 million over the non current assets of the Group. The loan is repayable in equal quarterly installments
commencing September 26, 2020 and ending December 26, 2022. The two tranches of loan were initiallyrecognized
at amortized cost using effective interest rate of 7.94% and 7.25% (3-month KIBOR) respectively. The difference
between cash received and present value of cash outflowsupon initial recognition has been recognized as deferred
grant.

Lease Rentals
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2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

As at 1 January    158,473,516 -  

Additions         99,007,148   182,325,431 

Accretion of interest         20,048,198        20,431,835 

Payments    (50,135,594)       (44,283,750)

As at 31 December    227,393,268   158,473,516 

Salient features of the leases are as follows: 2020 2019

Discounting factor 7.32% - 12.16% 12.16%

Period of lease 60-120 months  60 months 

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 496,582,818     49,438,600 

Bills discounted 2,063,910         -                   

Accrued liabilities 621,170,242     681,282,705     
Provident fund contribution payable 32,276,041       21,722,279       

Withholding income tax payable 30,774,556       18,669,110       

Sales tax payables 2,134,640         -                   

Other Payables 1,127,777         819,518            

1,186,129,984  771,932,212     

21. Contract Liabilities (21.1) 297,554,223     164,423,043     

21.1

22. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

MCB Bank Limited (22.1)    550,000,000     450,000,000 

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (22.2)    700,000,000   200,000,000 

Running finance facility - National Bank of Pakistan (22.3)         39,000,000        22,000,000 

Running finance facility - Meezan Bank Limited (22.4)    160,000,000 -  

   1,449,000,000   672,000,000 

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4

These represent mobilization advances received from the customers against professional / software development
services, licenses, license support services and other fees.

This represents export re-finance (ERF) availed against aggregate sanctioned limitof Rs. 700 (2019: Rs. 200) million.
The rate of mark up is SBP rate plus 1% (2019: SBP rate plus 1%). These borrowings are secured against Rs. 950
million pari passu hypothecation charge over current assets and Rs. 232.48 million equitable mortgage over 153.5
marla of land at Sehjpal near DHA Phase VIII (ex-Air Avenue Eden City).

This represents running finance (RF) facility availed from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) against aggregate
sanctioned limit of Rs. 40 million. This carries mark up i-e 3-month KIBOR plus 2.5%. These borrowings are secured
against exclusive first charge of Rs.134 million over current assets (including receivables) and fixed assets of the
Group, cross-corporate guarantee of the Group.

This represents mubaraha facilityavailed from Meezan Bank Limited (MBL) against aggregate sanctioned limitof Rs.
200 million. This carries mark up i-e respective 1-month KIBOR. These borrowings are secured against 110% cash
collateral in shape of lien over foreign currency account of Group. 

This represents export re-finance (ERF) availed against aggregate sanctioned limitof Rs. 800 (2019: Rs. 800) million.
The rate of mark up is SBP rate plus 0.5% (2019: SBP rate plus 0.5%) per annum. These borrowings are secured
against Rs. 97.5 million cash margin, 1st pari passu of Rs. 1,327.66 million over the current assets and Rs. 1,066.67
million hypothecation and equitable mortgage charge over propertyand equipment and 203 marla of land at Sehjpal
near DHA Phase VIII (ex-Air Avenue Eden City), respectively.
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23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 Contingencies

Income tax

23.1.1 Tax Year 2017 – under section 161

23.1.2 Tax Year 2016 - Clause 94 part IV of Second Schedule

23.1.3 Tax Year 2014 - under section 122(5A)

23.1.4 Tax Year 2012 – under section 122(5A)

Sales tax

23.1.5 Tax Period from January 2016 to December 2016

23.2 Commitments

The Group was selected for Sales Tax Audit through computer ballot for the tax period January 2016 to December
2016 and on the basis of audit proceedings, the DCIR passed order No. 3 dated 30 July 2020 under section 11(2) of
the Sales Tax Act, 1990 on various issues including suppression of sales, non-chargeability of sales tax on advance
from customers, other income, late filing of sales tax returns etc. and created impugned sales tax demand amounting
to Rs. 655.84 million. Being aggrieved, the Group preferred an appeal before the CIR(A), which is pending
adjudication.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR”) issued order under section 161(1A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2017 whereby tax amounting to Rs. 6.53 million for non-deduction
of withholdingtax was levied. the Group preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the
“CIR(A)”], which is decided against the Group. Being aggrieved, the Group filed an appeal before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (the “ATIR”), which is pending adjudication. The management expects a favorable outcome
in this regard.

the Group filed an undertaking pursuant clause 94 part IV of Second Schedule to the Ordinance, therebyopting out of
minimum tax on services under section 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance in respect of Tax Year 2016. The Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue (“Addl. CIR”) declined to accept the undertaking against which the Group preferred an
appeal before CIR(A), which has been upheld by the CIR(A). The appeal effect / reassessment may result in tax
liability of Rs. 30.25 million. Being aggrieved, the Group has filed an appeal before the ATIR, which is pending
adjudication. The management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

The Addl. CIR issued order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax year 2014, on the basis of wrongproration
of expenses, capital gain etc. and created demand of Rs. 48.59 million. the Group preferred an appeal against the
order, before the CIR(A) who decided the case in favor of the Group. However, the tax department has filed second
appeal before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (“ACIR”) issued an order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax
year 2012, on the basis of wrong proration of expenses, others etc. and created demand of Rs. 18.46 million. the
Group preferred an appeal before the CIR(A) against the impugned order which is partiallydecided in favor of the
Group. Being aggrieved, the Group filed an appeal before the learned ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The
management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

Guarantees issued by the financial institutions on behalf of the Group amount to Rs. 251.90 (2019: Rs. 420.39)
million. This includes guarantees of Rs. 2.72 (2019: Rs. 77.38)  million given on behalf of Joint Operation.

The outstanding purchase commitments are nil (2019: Rs. 1 million).
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2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

24. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

Export Local Total

Types of goods or services
Outsourcing services 1,373,041,004    175,484,529 1,548,525,533  
Software trading 40,822,932         452,389,126 493,212,058  
Software implementation 6,489,977,353    1,124,720,374 7,614,697,727  
Sale of air-time and related services - 357,570,526  357,570,526     

Less: Sales tax - (137,178,134)  (137,178,134)   
Total revenue from contracts with customers 7,903,841,289    1,972,986,421 9,876,827,710  

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at a point in time - 773,916,030 773,916,030  
Goods and services transferred over time 7,903,841,289    1,199,070,391 9,102,911,680 
Total revenue from contracts with customers 7,903,841,289    1,972,986,421 9,876,827,710  

Export Local Total

Types of goods or services
Outsourcing services 804,592,410       175,169,753     979,762,163     
Software trading -  471,372,110     471,372,110     
Software implementation 5,065,302,154    937,048,339     6,002,350,493  
Sale of air-time and related services 316,068,732     316,068,732     

Less: Sales tax (101,428,994)      (132,476,435)    (233,905,429)   
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,768,465,570    1,767,182,499  7,535,648,069  

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at a point in time -  771,107,579     771,107,579     
Goods and services transferred over time 5,768,465,570    996,074,920     6,764,540,490  
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,768,465,570    1,767,182,499  7,535,648,069  

24.1

24.1.1

24.2 Contract balances (24.2.1) 53,828,061       53,828,061       

24.2.1

24.3 Transaction prices of remaining performance obligations 

Within one year 234,262,085     298,911,169     
More than one year 702,786,254     491,736,477     

937,048,339     790,647,646  

2020

----------------Rupees---------------

2019

----------------Rupees---------------

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partiallyunsatisfied) as at 31
December are as follows:

These represent the amount of revenue recognized from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year.

The disaggregated revenue information based on the geographical location has been presented in Note 32 to these
consolidated financial statements.

This represents sales tax chargeable under Provincial and Federal Sales tax laws on revenue as defined under 
relevant laws.

The Group makes sales against credit terms. In case of credit sales, payment is generally due within30 days from the
date of billing to the customer.
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2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

25. COST OF REVENUE

(25.1) 5,251,513,969 3,859,160,870  
Commission paid 202,988,942     208,929,953     
E-link connectivity charges 7,100,617         7,632,166 
Printing and stationery 1,732,581         1,239,613 
Computer supplies 20,886,069       32,271,290 
Rent, rates and taxes 8,389,411         6,848,439  
Electricity, gas and water 47,409,042       50,564,690  
Traveling and conveyance 100,839,087     176,629,357  
Repair and maintenance 12,405,269       15,741,434 
Postage, telephone and telegrams 72,107,402       62,863,507  
Vehicle running and maintenance 25,303,832       21,990,257 
Entertainment 26,756,350       28,451,139 
Fee and subscriptions 59,044,261 16,385,313 
Insurance 5,201,344         7,065,035 
Depreciation (4.3) 183,243,480     127,712,309 
Amortization (5.3) 24,917,618       31,584,129 
Depreciation of right-of-use (6.1) 15,379,034       13,919,406 
Other 13,647,344 22,092,982  

6,078,865,652 4,691,081,889 
Purchase of software for trading 540,774,551     475,219,717 

6,619,640,203  5,166,301,606  

25.1

26. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and amenities (26.1) 122,004,346 105,210,374 
Collection charges 57,999,389 51,690,085 
Printing and stationery 370,579 378,483 
Computer supplies 100,314 185,832 
Rent, rates and taxes 139,473 154,619 
Electricity, gas and water 1,107,445 694,845 
Traveling and conveyance 3,869,378 8,373,017 
Repair and maintenance 950,833 229,210 
Postage, telephone and telegrams 754,222 1,023,230 
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,355,995 1,384,000 
Entertainment 489,967 1,308,090 
Insurance 524,075 69,613 
Fee and subscriptions 2,896,029 502,996 
Shows, seminars and advertising 2,991,433 1,975,071 
Depreciation (4.3) 2,383,210 1,955,004 
Amortization (5.3) 255,061 398,665 
Tender documents - 59,110 
Depreciation of right-of-use (6.1) 2,832,980 2,410,143 
Miscellaneous - - 

201,024,729     178,002,387  

26.1 This includes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 3.37 (2019: Rs. 2.86) million.

27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and amenities    (27.1) 427,741,501 461,283,670  
Printing and stationery 4,910,958 13,803,773 
Computer supplies 17,702,919 18,650,466 
Rent, rates and taxes 13,002,908 11,234,900 
Electricity, gas and water 15,670,825 10,167,488 
Traveling and conveyance 17,862,611 30,063,730  
Repair and maintenance 30,813,270 21,721,174 
Postage, telephone and telegrams 23,650,878 16,174,228 
Vehicle running and maintenance 7,246,096 7,642,091 
Legal and professional 57,331,448 18,419,280 
Auditors' remuneration (27.2) 7,048,819 7,322,162 
Entertainment 3,863,323 4,780,856 
Donations      2,203,600 3,825,105 
Fee, subscriptions and training 19,952,059 11,565,900 
Insurance 4,441,431 2,918,153 
Hiring cost 432,830 884,516 
Newspapers, books and periodicals 137,713 116,918 
Depreciation (4.3) 36,709,628 26,231,858 
Amortization (5.3) 3,956,615 4,550,563 

This includes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 158.39 (2019: Rs. 104.79) million.

Depreciation of right-of-use (6.1) 22,259,128 20,135,537       
Others 5,371,996 6,574,627         

722,310,556 698,066,995     
159



2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

27.1 This includes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 42.83 (2019: Rs. 37.52) million.

27.2 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee:  
- Holding Company 1,907,747 1,734,315         
- Subsidiary Companies 2,445,781 2,294,055         

Half yearly review & other certifications 1,478,906 1,503,805         
Sales tax advisory 942,500 1,669,987         
Out-of-pocket 273,885 120,000            

7,048,819 7,322,162         

28. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Allowance for ECLs / provision for doubtful debts
- Contract assets 9,812,284         (9,823,170)       
- Trade debts 199,362,254 119,330,659     

Unbilled revenue and bad debts written off 5,071,977         27,974,981       
Tax receivables written off 5,889,010         24,508,582       
Advances written off -  1,540,964         

220,135,525 163,532,016     

29. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:
Profit on deposit accounts           9,176,716 18,781,267       
Profit on term deposit receipts    130,159,502 58,426,028       
Dividend income           2,502,253 - 
Unrealized gain on investments classified
   as fair value through profit or loss           7,343,304 -                   
Exchange gain         81,841,960 223,172,268     

231,023,735  300,379,563     

Income from non-financial assets:

Gain on disposal of property and equipment           3,312,735 16,743,906       

Others              864,568 1,368,106         

          4,177,303 18,112,012       

235,201,038 318,491,575     

30. FINANCE COSTS

Markup on guarantee commission           2,383,653          1,301,502 

Markup on short term borrowing         39,661,983        16,483,100 

Bank charges           4,565,842          8,805,684 

Lease Interest         20,048,198        20,431,835 

66,659,676 47,022,121       

31. TAXATION

Income tax:  

-  current year (31.1)&(31.2) 90,648,215 36,991,951       

-  prior year 27,312,161  (3,710,253)       

117,960,376 33,281,698       

Deferred tax - -
117,960,376 33,281,698       
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32. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographical segments

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their geographical areas and has
four reportable operating segments as follows:

- North America
- Middle East
- Europe
- Pakistan

No other operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Management monitors the operating results of its operating segments separately for the purpose of performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit or loss
 in the consolidated financial statements.

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from contracts with customers 4,367,846,372       2,956,900,042                 2,699,811,070           2,336,517,177       1,983,865,033     1,767,182,499       9,876,827,710       7,535,648,069       
Cost of revenue (2,392,470,816)      (1,664,852,689)               (2,218,084,612)          (1,781,950,614)      (1,510,305,117)    (1,424,300,200)      (6,619,640,203)      (5,166,301,606)      
Gross profit 1,975,375,556 1,292,047,353                 481,726,458            554,566,563          473,559,916        342,882,299          3,257,187,507       2,369,346,463       

Distribution expenses (17,406,721)  (12,037,257)                        (7,462,548)                (4,315,287)             (172,130,762)       (159,715,967)         (201,024,729)         (178,002,387)         
Administrative expenses (324,640,784)  (301,387,312)                    (218,841,511)             (276,250,721)         (112,487,335)       (72,008,812)           (722,310,556)         (698,066,996)         

(342,047,505) (313,424,569)                    (226,304,059)             (280,566,008)         (284,618,097)       (231,724,779)         (923,335,285)         (876,069,383)         
Profit / (loss) before taxation and

unallocated income and expenses 1,633,328,051 978,622,784                   255,422,399              274,000,555          188,941,819        111,157,520          2,333,852,222       1,493,277,080       

Unallocated income and expenses:

Other operating expenses (220,135,525) (163,532,015)         
Other income 235,201,038 318,491,575          
Finance cost (66,659,676) (47,022,121)           

(51,594,163) 107,937,439          
Profit before taxation 2,282,258,059 1,601,214,519     
Taxation (117,960,376) (33,281,698)           

Profit for the year 2,164,297,683 1,567,932,821       

----------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------------

North America

2020 2019

825,305,235 475,048,351          
(498,779,658) (295,198,103)         

326,525,577 179,850,248          

(4,024,698) (1,933,876)             
(66,340,926) (48,420,151)           
(70,365,624) (50,354,027)           

256,159,953 129,496,221          

Europe Pakistan TotalMiddle East

32.1 Allocation of assets and liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Segment operating assets
Property and equipment -  -  - -  8,216,212            13,559,391          1,510,450,304      1,418,904,304           1,518,666,516        1,432,463,695 

Intangibles -  -  -  -  -  -  204,249,277         186,746,196                 204,249,277           186,746,196 

Right-of-use assets -  -  -  -  -  204,396,352         145,860,345                204,396,352           145,860,345 

Long term investments -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -                      -  -  

Long term deposits -  -  -  -  -  -  39,496,070           54,945,797                     39,496,070             54,945,797 

Advance against purchase of land -  -  -  -  -  -  28,750,000          -              28,750,000 

Contract assets -  -  192,018,321 422,820                     253,079,192        286,823,338        197,682,568         230,637,093                642,780,081           517,883,251 

Trade debts 1,100,980,956  615,799,194     20,255,836                     30,755,597                590,695,553        621,296,791        660,784,396         481,222,560              2,372,716,741        1,749,074,142 

Loans, advances and other reveivable -    -  -  -  32,126,945          13,977,238          63,292,237           131,262,154                  95,419,182           145,239,392 

Trade deposits and short 
   term prepayments - -  -  -  97,647,869          127,808,641        340,825,478         300,520,979                438,473,347           428,329,620 

Interest accrued - -  -  -  -  38,450,000           2,491,952                       38,450,000               2,491,952 

Other receivables 116,282,300        180,821,432        3,071,571             -                              119,353,871           180,821,432 

Short term investments - -  -  -  -  2,644,845,556      780,000,000               2,644,845,556           780,000,000 

Tax refunds due from government - -  -  -  -  -  171,975,691         209,458,326                171,975,691           209,458,326 

Cash and bank balances - -  -  -  1,013,436,517     386,734,372        1,971,668,049      1,129,417,981           2,985,104,566        1,516,152,353 

Total operating assets    1,100,980,956      615,799,194                    212,274,157                 31,178,417       2,111,484,588       1,631,021,203       8,051,187,549       5,100,217,687     11,475,927,250        7,378,216,501 

Segment operating liabilities
Long term advances -  -  -  -  -  1,783,952            53,857,626           26,868,774                    53,857,626             28,652,726 

Lease liabilities -  -  -  -  -  -  189,409,537         129,188,921                189,409,537           129,188,921 

Long term loan -  -  -  -  -  -  98,013,227           -                                98,013,227 -  

Deferred grant -  -  -  -  -  -  8,338,896             -                                  8,338,896 -  

Trade and other payables -  -  -  -  441,404,612        232,647,365        744,725,372         557,774,440               1,186,129,984           790,421,805 

Contract liabilities -  -  -  -  204,626,045        50,728,171          92,928,178           113,694,872                 297,554,223           164,423,043 

Mark-up accrued on short term 
   borrowings -  -  -  -  -  -  9,804,362             4,873,969                         9,804,362               4,873,969 

Short term borrowings -  -  -        -  -  -  1,449,000,000      672,000,000               1,449,000,000           672,000,000 

Unclaimed dividend -  -  -        -  7,617,635             8,345,525                         7,617,635               8,345,525 

Provision for gratuity -  -  -        -  47,599,384          8,871,314            -  -                                47,599,384               8,871,314 

Current portion of lease liabilities -  -  -        -  -  -  37,983,731           29,284,595                     37,983,731             29,284,595 

Current portion of long term loan -  -  -        -  -  -  100,754,617         -                              100,754,617 -  

Current portion of deferred grant -  -  -        - -  -  3,095,996             -                                  3,095,996 -  

Current portion of long term advances -                    -  -        - -  -  10,754,706           13,220,163                    10,754,706             13,220,163 

Total operating liabilities -  -  -        - 693,630,041        294,030,802        2,806,283,883      1,555,251,259      3,499,913,924     1,849,282,061       

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------------------------------------

North America Pakistan TotalMiddle EastEurope
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33. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Undertaking Relation Nature of transaction

Sales 4,270,475,128   3,400,580,878  

Reimbursement of expenses 65,702,534        78,774,869       
Sales 95,176,466        26,228,121       
Reimbursement of expenses - 47,118,891       
Sales 9,414,589          15,551,674       
Purchase of insurance policies 35,220,309        25,964,649       

Dawood Family Takaful Limited Associate Purchase of insurance policies 5,293,286          3,980,759         

Visionet Deutschland GMBH Associate Sales (33.3) 664,579,940      -  
Staff retirement funds Contribution 177,022,960      118,363,070     

33.1

33.2

33.3

34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Number of persons 1 1 6 6 525 259

Managerial remuneration 36,960,000  33,600,000   - - 1,613,369,420  1,059,452,693  

Retirement benefits 2,464,000  2,240,000 - - 97,181,202 59,096,019 

Bonus 27,946,387  29,724,106 - - 50,131,001 31,280,931 

Fees - - 2,850,000 1,354,000 - - 

67,370,387  65,564,106   2,850,000  1,354,000  1,760,681,623   1,149,829,643  

34.1

34.2

34.3

Fees represent the amounts paid to Non Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and its sub-committees.

 --------------------------------------------- (Nos) ---------------------------------------------

 -------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------

Non Executive 
Directors

Chief Executive Officer Other Executives

In addition to the above remuneration, the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with company
maintained cars, free medical and mobile phone facilities in accordance with their entitlement.

During the year, the Chief Executive Officer and Other Executives were granted 570,034(2019: 525,412) and 1,159,000
(2019: 406,500) share options respectively, which have a vesting period of two years. Further, the impact of benefits
available to the Chief Executive Officer and other executives recognized by the Company on account of share-based
payment plans aggregated to Rs. 25.37 (2019: Rs. 26.44) million and Rs. 21.76 (2019: 29.46) million, respectively.

The aggregate amounts charged in the accounts for the year for remuneration including certain benefits to the Chief
Executive Officer, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows : 

TechVista Information Technology Qatar is associated company of the Group on the basis of common directorshipand
incorporated in Qatar. The registered address is Palm Towers, floor 41 Westbay, Doha, Qatar.

IGI Insurance Limited Associate

Visionet Duetschland GMBH is associated company of the Group on the basis of common directorshipand incorporatedin
Qatar. The registered address is Maximilian Street 13, 80539, Munchen, Germany.

(33.1)

Visionet Systems Incorporation- USA (VSI) is associated company of the Group on the basis of common directorshipand
incorporated in United States of America (USA). The registered address of VSI is Cedarbrook Corporate Center, 4
Cedarbrook Drive, Bldg. B Cranbury, NJ 08512-3641.

The related parties and associated undertakingscomprise subsidiary, associated companies, companies in which directors
are interested, staffretirement funds and directors and key management personnel (Note 33). The Group in the normal
course of business carries out transactionswithvarious relatedparties. Amounts due from and to relatedparties are shown
under respective notes to the consolidated financial statements. Other significant transactions with related parties are as
follows:

Visionet Systems Incorporation 
- USA

Associate

TechVista Information 
Technology Qatar

Associate (33.2)

34.4 During the current year, certain executives of the Company exercised stock option under employee stock option scheme
according to which 1,085,715  (2019: 85,397) shares were issued to them. 
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35. EARNINGS PER SHARE- BASIC AND DILUTED

35.1 Basic earnings per share 

Profit for the year 2,209,645,930 1,587,316,864       

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 124,261,404 123,473,974          

Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 17.78 12.86

35.2 Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year      2,209,645,930        1,587,316,864

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic)         124,261,404           123,473,974

Effect of share options             2,498,226               1,055,607

Weighted average number of ordinary shares - diluted         126,759,630           124,529,581 

Diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 17.43 12.75

36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Note

Profit before taxation 2,282,258,059     1,601,214,519 
Adjustment for:

Depreciation on property and equipment (4.3) 222,336,318        155,899,171  
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 40,471,141  36,465,086            
Amortization of intangibles (5.3) 29,129,294          36,533,357            
Allowance for ECLs / provision for doubtful debts - contract assets (28) 9,812,284            (9,823,170)            
Allowance for ECLs / provision for doubtful debts - trade debts (28) 199,362,254        119,330,659          
Bad debts - written off (28) 5,071,977            27,974,981            
Tax receivables written off 5,889,010            -  
Gain on disposal of share in subsidiary - -  
Provision for gratuity 26,562,211  26,808,037            
Finance costs (30) 66,659,676          47,022,121            
Exchange gain on translation of export debts (29) (81,841,960)         (223,172,268)        
Gain on short term investments (29) (130,159,502)       (58,426,028)          
Unreallised gain on investments classified as fair value (7,343,304)           -  

through profit or loss
Share based payment expense 45,941,146          55,909,956            
Reversal of Worker's Welfare Fund - -  
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (3,312,735)           (16,743,906)          

2,710,835,869     1,798,992,515       
Working capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Contract assets - net 52,911,036          107,268,572          
Trade debts (741,162,893)       18,590,969            
Loans and advances 49,326,068          (75,543,641)          
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (69,704,675)         (105,610,670)        
Other receivables 62,598,795          26,959,498            

(646,031,669)       (28,335,272)          

Increase in trade and other payables 402,092,326        124,470,909          
(243,939,343)       96,135,637            

Cash generated from operations 2,466,896,526     1,895,128,152  

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profitfor the year attributableto ordinary shareholdersof the Group by
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

(Number of shares)

(Number of shares)
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The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

  - Market risk

  - Credit risk

  - Liquidity risk

37.1 Market risk

(a) Currency risk

Receivables - USD +1 7,039,373 18,581                   

-1 (7,039,373) (18,581)                 

Receivables - AED +1 13,016,877 16,632,636            

-1 (13,016,877) (16,632,636)          

Bank balance - USD +1 4,213,054 115,734                 

-1 (4,213,054) (115,734)               

Bank balance - AED +1 23,139,976 9,180,420              

-1 (23,139,976) (9,180,420)            

Reporting date rate:

USD 159.8 154.7

AED 43.5 42.1

Effect on 
profit 

before tax

Monetaryitems, including financial assets and financial liabilities,denominated in currency other than functionalcurrency of the
Group are periodically restated to Pak rupee equivalent and the associated gain or loss is taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Changes
in Rate

Effect on 
profit 

before tax

The Group's risk managementpolicies are establishedto identifyand analyze the risksfaced by the Group, to set appropriaterisk
limitsand controls,and to monitorrisks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systemsare reviewed regularly
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

This note representsinformationaboutthe Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, it'sobjectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and it's management of capital.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futurecash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuatebecause of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from futurecommercial transactionsor receivables and payables thatexist
due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Board of Directorshas the overallresponsibilityforthe establishmentand oversightof Group’s risk managementframework.
The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

The followinganalysis demonstratesthe sensitivityto a reasonablypossible change in exchange rates, withall other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit before tax.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments comprise deposits, unbilled revenue, interest accrued, trade debts, advances to employees against
salaries, loans, other receivables, cash and bank balances and shortterm investments,trade and other payables and mark up
accrued on short term borrowings.
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- 

- 

The Group is not exposed to other price risk as its investments are fixed with respect to price and maturity.

(c) Interest rate risk

Fixed Rate instruments

Financial assets 

Short term investments      2,644,845,556           780,000,000

Bank balances - deposit accounts         766,496,179        1,108,287,817

     3,411,341,735        1,888,287,817

Financial liabilities

Long term loan         198,767,844     -  
Lease Liabilities         227,393,268 -  
Short term borrowings      1,250,000,000           650,000,000

     1,676,161,112           650,000,000

Floating Rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings         199,000,000             22,000,000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

37.2 Credit risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. 

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely to
perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant exposure to any individual third party. To reduce exposure to credit
risk the Group has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The management
also continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those balances considered
doubtful of recovery. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

The Group has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Group's interest rate risk arises from short term borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020, had there been increase / decrease in fixed interest rates by 100 basis points, with all other variables
held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 17.35 million (2019: Rs.12.38 million).

As at 31 December 2020, had there been increase / decrease in KIBOR by 100 basis points, with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 1.99 million (2019: Rs.0.22 million).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks and mutual funds with reasonably high credit
ratings. The Group believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large
number of counter parties and subscribers in case of trade debts.

(b) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk of changes in the fair value of investment in mutual funds as a result of changes in the levels of net
asset value of units held by the Company. As at 31 December 2020, had there been increase / decrease in net asset value by
1%, with all other variables held constant,the profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 5.09 million
(2019: Nil).
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31.2 Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

31.3 Deferred tax

Contract assets 642,780,081 577,444,198        
Trade debts 2,372,716,741 1,749,074,142     
Trade deposits 387,822,344 224,769,843        
Advances to employees against salaries 11,529,183 6,768,889            
Other receivables 118,222,637 180,821,432        
Interest accrued 38,450,000 2,491,952            

Short term investment 2,085,000,000 780,000,000        
Bank balances 2,984,186,583 1,514,501,304     

8,640,707,569 5,035,871,760     

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:
0 - 120 days 2,373,293,997 1,012,093,672     
121 - 365 days 107,033,549 697,740,057         
Above one year 177,216,297 207,450,220         

2,657,543,843 1,917,283,949     

Allowance for ECLs (284,827,102) (168,209,807)      
2,372,716,741 1,749,074,142     

2020 2019
Short term  Long term Agency

Banks
Habib Metropolitan Bank A1+ AA+ PACRA 2,528,702,856 831,599,449          

Bank Islami Pak A1 A+ PACRA 7,694,420            7,694,101              

United Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 39,952,998          117,069,179          

Faysal Bank A1+ AA PACRA 425,165,055  63,875,350            

Standard Chartered Bank A1+ AAA PACRA 42,394,856          17,953,790            

Finca Microfinance Bank A1 A PACRA -   362,203                 

Meezan Bank A1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 337,436,430        215,331,640          

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 35,705,625          17,711,735            

Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 43,746,646          46,750,198            
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 588,681,423  584,439,517          
NRSP Microfinance Bank A1 A PACRA 5,552                   496,684                 

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 115,418               183        

MCB Bank Dubai N/A N/A N/A 291,289,285  153,363,663          

Mobilink Microfinance Bank A1 A PACRA 8,649                   2,886,408              

Habib Bank AG Zurich N/A N/A N/A 646,068,677        233,370,710          

Habib Bank Limited - UAE N/A N/A N/A 75,201,889 -

Telenor Microfinance Bank A1 A+ PACRA 7,016,804            1,596,494              

5,069,186,583  2,294,501,304  

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings or to historicalinformationabout counterpartydefaultrate. The table below shows the bank balances and investments
held with some major counterparties at the reporting date:

Based on past experience and policy of the Group, the management believes that an impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of trade receivables past due by one year except if those receivables are recovered subsequent to year end and if
management has sufficient grounds to believe that the amounts will be recovered.

--------- Rupees ----------
Rating

As at year end, 27% of trade debts (2019: 29%) was represented by two customeramountingto Rs. 730.31 (2019: Rs. 492.9)
million. The management believes thatthe Group is not exposed to customerconcentrationrisk as this customeris relatedparty
of the Group.
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Mutual funds

Not Available Not Available Not Available 100,590,950  - 

- 

559,845,556        -  

37.3 Liquidity risk

Rating
--------- Rupees ----------

- 

- 

- 

Meezan Balanced Fund

Meezan Islamic Income Fund

NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa 
Fund

Not Available A+(f)

Lakson Islamic Tactical Fund

Al-Ameen Asset Islamic 
Allocation Fund 

Alfalah GHP Islamic Income 
Fund

HBL Islamic Asset Allocation 
Fund

Not Available 51,952,710 

PACRA 51,291,201

Not Available 51,444,992 

Not Available Not Available

Not Available Not Available

Not Available AA-(f)

Liquidityrisk is the risk thatthe Group willnot be able to meet its financial obligationsas theyfalldue. The Group's approach to
managing liquidityis to ensure as far as possibleto alwayshave sufficientliquidityto meet its liabilitieswhen due. The following
are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Not Available Not Available

Not Available Not Available

Not Available 52,449,350 - 

- 

JCR-VIS 50,337,808 

Not Available 201,778,545 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2020:

Carrying 
amount 

 Contractual 
cash flows 

 Less than 
one year 

One to five years More than five years

Long term loan 198,767,844 198,767,844 - 98,013,227 - 
Lease Liabilities 227,393,268 227,393,268  - 128,483,649  - 
Short term borrowings 1,449,000,000  1,449,000,000  - - 60,925,888 
Mark-up accrued on short 

term borrowings 9,804,362 9,804,362 9,804,362 - 9,804,362 
Trade and other payables 1,186,129,984 1,186,129,984 1,186,129,984 - - 

3,071,095,458 3,071,095,458  1,195,934,346 226,496,876  70,730,250 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019:

 Carrying 
amount 

 Contractual 
cash flows 

 Less than 
one year 

One to five years More than five years

Long term loan - -                    -                       - - 
Lease Liabilities 158,473,516 158,473,516     29,284,596 129,188,920 - 
Trade and other payables 771,932,212 - 770,933,177 - - 
Short term borrowings 672,000,000 - 672,000,000 - - 
Mark-up accrued on short 

term borrowings 4,873,969 - 4,873,969 - - 
1,607,279,697 158,473,516     1,477,091,742 129,188,920 - 

--------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------

37.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available.

The carryingvalues of otherfinancialassets and financialliabilitiesreflectedin financialstatementsapproximatetheirfairvalues.
Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.
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The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair 
values. The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different level 
have been defined as follows:  
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable 
either, directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 
observable market data.

37.5 Financial instruments by categories

Financial 
assets at fair 
value through 
profit or loss

Financial 
assets at 
amortized 

cost

Total

Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposits -             40,133,162             40,133,162 
Unbilled revenue -           642,780,081           642,780,081 
Trade debts -        2,372,716,741        2,372,716,741 
Loans and advances -             95,913,324             95,913,324 
Security deposits -           347,689,182           347,689,182 
Interest accrued -             38,450,000             38,450,000 
Other receivables -           118,222,637           118,222,637 
Short term investments          559,845,556      2,085,000,000        2,644,845,556 
Cash and bank balances -        2,985,104,566        2,985,104,566 

         559,845,556      8,726,009,693        9,285,855,249 

Financial 
assets at fair value 

through profit or 
loss

Financial 
assets at 
amortized 

cost

Total

Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposits -           118,222,637           118,222,637 
Unbilled revenue -   -   -   
Trade debts -   -   -   
Loans and advances -   -   -   
Security deposits -           347,689,182           347,689,182 
Interest accrued -        2,000,000,000        2,000,000,000 
Other receivables -   -   -   
Short term investments -        1,246,060,140        1,246,060,140 
Cash and bank balances -        5,626,952,295        5,626,952,295 

------------------------Rupees-----------------------

------------------------Rupees-----------------------

2020

2019

-        9,338,924,254        9,338,924,254

2020 2019
Financial 

liabilities at 
amortized 

cost

Financial liabilities 
at amortized cost

Liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupees Rupees
Long term loan         198,767,844 -   
Lease liabilities         227,393,268           158,473,516
Mark-up accrued on short term borrowings             9,804,362               4,873,969
Short term borrowings      1,449,000,000           672,000,000
Trade and other payables      1,186,129,984           771,932,212

     3,071,095,458        1,607,279,697

37.6 Fair value hierarchy
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2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

2020 2019
Rupees RupeesNote

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 December 2020

Fair value through profit and loss
- Mutual Fund units      559,845,556 -  -            559,845,556 

As at 31 December 2019
Fair value through profit and loss
- Mutual Fund units - - - -  

     ----------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------

37.7 Capital risk management

a)

b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products.

The debt - to- equity ratio as to 31 December is as follows

Long term loan - Note 18         198,767,844 -  
Lease Liabilities - Note 19         227,393,268           158,473,516 
Trade and other payables - Note 20      1,186,129,984           771,932,212 
Short term borrowing - Note 22      1,449,000,000           672,000,000 
Mark up accrued on borrowings             9,804,362               4,873,969 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents     (2,985,104,566)       (1,516,152,353)
Net debt           85,990,892             91,127,344 
Total capital      7,976,013,326        5,528,934,440 
Capital and net debt 8,062,004,218

     

       5,620,061,784 

Capital gearing ratio 1.07% 1.62%

38. PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

38.1

Un-audited Audited
Size of the fund (net assets) 690,232,668        459,671,598          

Consistentwiththe industrynorms, the Group monitorsits capitalon the basis of gearing ratio. The ratiois calculatedas net debt
divided by totalcapital. Net debt is calculatedas totalborrowingsas shown in the balance sheet less cash and cash equivalent.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt (as defined above).

The Group’s policyis to safeguard the Group’s abilityto remain as a going concern and ensure a strongcapital base in order to
maintain investors’,creditors’and market’sconfidence and to sustain futuredevelopmentof the business. The Board of Directors
monitors the returns on capital, which the group defines as net operating income divided by total shareholders’equity. The
Group's objectives when managing is:

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, or issue new shares.

to safeguardthe group’sabilityto continue as a going concern, so thatit can continue to provide returnsforshareholdersand
benefits for other stakeholders; and

The Group has maintained an employee provident fund trust and investments out of provident fund have been made in
accordance withthe provisionsof section 218 of the Companies Act 2017, and the rules formulatedfor thispurpose. The salient
information of the fund is as follows:

Cost of investment made (actual investments made) (38.2) 126,955,075        124,601,173          
Percentage of investment made (cost of investments) 18.4% 27.11%
Fair value of investments 504,062,481        446,877,691          
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38.2 Break-up of investments of provident fund

Rupees Rupees

Mutual Funds 122,000,000  17.7% 121,601,173  26.5%

Defense saving certificates -  0.0% 3,000,000            0.7%

Term Deposit Receipts 4,955,075  0.7% - 0.0%

126,955,075  18.4% 124,601,173        27.2%

39. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019

Total number of employees at the end of the year were as follows:

Regular 2,289 1,833 

Contractual 1,259 1,527 

3,548 3,360 

Average number of employees during the year were as follows:

Regular 1,817 1,608 

Contractual 1,308 919 

3,125 2,527 

40. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

40.1

41. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

43. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Description

Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows:

 % of 
investment
as size of
the fund 

 % of investment
as size of
the fund 

InvestmentsInvestments

20192020

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on 3 March 2021 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation. However, no
significant re-arrangement / reclassifications have been made in these consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 3 March 2021 have proposed a final cash dividend for the year ended
31 December 2020 of Rs. 3.5 (2019: Rs. 2.25) per share and 10% bonus issuance for approval of the members at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 March 2021. These financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 do not include the effect of these appropriations.

(CHAIRMAN)  (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)
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44th

31 March 2021 at 10:50am through video link.
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